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SAFE
1997 14
1994
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
157,231 154,159 145,545 124,839 104,813
(2,715,379) (2,662,326) (2,513,562) (2,155,970) (1,810,121)
42,878 41,786 41,740 41,454 39,717

(740,503)  (721,644) (720,850)  (715,911)  (685,913)

42,566 41,629 41,158 40,692 39,175
(735,115)  (718,933)  (710,799) (702,751)  (676,552)
312 157 582 762 542

(5,388) (2,711)  (10,051)  (13,160) (9,360)
399,638 379,224 317,740 259,677 225,601
(6,901,748) (6,549,198) (5,487,370) (4,484,622) (3,896,129)
48,935 48,935 48,935 46,787 46,787

(845,107)  (845,107) (845,107)  (808,011)  (808,011)
5,677,691 5,931,050 5,122,292 4,138,815 3,641,193
(98,053,724) (102,429, 234) (88,461,983) (71,477,335) (62,883,403)

( ) 7.45 7.04 6.49 5.55 4.82
(129) (122) (112) (96) (83)

( ) 0.84 0.85 0.88 0.87 0.84
(15) (15) (15) (15) (15)

54,074 218,811  (20,835) 34,150  (136,228)

(933,858) (3,778,866) (-359,820)  (589,771)(-2,352,658)
(133,695)  (176,451) (142,554)  (48,285)  (10,324)
(-2,308,913) (-3,047,309)(-2,461,908) (-833,882) (-178,295)

39,445 110,123 154,229 44,394 11,722
(681,215) (1,901,824) (2,663,535) (766,684)  (202,439)
337,915 385,356 226,364 228,375 199,643
(5,835,792) (6,655,098) (3,909,306) (3,944,036) (3,447,835)
56,724 58,023 56,489 50,735 46,822
rRoaa) @ 0.74% 0.76% 0.90% 1.07% 1.20%
(
ROAE ® 11.63% 12.58% 14.26% 16.77% 18.48%
(ROAE)
*
Tierl 8.49% 8.64% 9.12% 8.93% 8.78%
Tierl 9.34% 9.65% 9.17% 8.99% 8.78%

11.65% 11.98% 11.87% 12.33% 11.24%
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cITIC 1987 cITIC
cITIC cITIC
1985 1987

cITIC 800
(1)2005 cITIC CITIC
(2)2006 11 16  CIFH cITIC

2006 11 22 cITIC BBVA BBVA
®) 2006 12 31
(4)2007 27
(5)2009 10 23 CIFH 70.32%
(6)2011
25.786
5,273,622,484 2,480,360,496 46,787,327,034
31,905,164,057 14,882,162,977
)
1.00 2,462,490,897
4.84
2014 12 16 2014 2014
2014 2015 30
4.84 5.55 2,462,490,897 2,147,469,539
1501428 2015 12 31 11,918,455,941.45
11,888,695,194.53
2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573
34,052,633,596 14,882,162,977 cITIC
cITIC
(8)2016 350,000,000
48,934,796,573 350,000,000 34,052,633,596

14,882,162,977 350,000,000
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2017
2017
5.37% 81.955
55.45%
23.89% 12.848
2017
35,700 6.4% 595,000
2017 136
2017
28.39% 52.271
35.36% 41.00%
33.556 62.39% 9.93
28.60
2.89 85.2% 8.6%
CITIC Red

80.0493
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18.64%
586,700

203.030

2017

6.42%

VIP

5.5784

12.21%

21.45%

CITIC Red

43.76%
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ciTic 139 (6) 65.37%
2017 12 31
CIFH 7,503 100%
cITIC 27
2701-9
89
CNCB 1,889 99.05%
21 2106
200 51%
777
cimic CBD 4,000 100%
2-310

27 28

39/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn
56,724
52,235 4,489
10,706 42,003 4,015 11,164
19.68% 39,555 69.73% 6,005
10.59% 1,151
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oOoOooodn
2017
2017
GDP 6.9% 7.3%
CPI 1.6% PPI 6.3%
21% 0.6
58.8%
CPC 19
PBOC
PBOC MPA
CBRC CSRC CIRC SAFE
RRR CBRC
2017 8.7% 252
12._4% 8.4% 129
233 7.8% 157 Tierl
Tierl 13.65% 11.35% 10.75% NPL 1.71
1.74% 3.41 3.49%
5.02
0.09 181.42% 3.16%
2.25% 42.566 1.99% 157.231
19.92% 57.586
10.43% 53.648
1.68% 0.01
13.94 169.44%
0.22 2.84%
4.27% 5,677.691
11.08% 3,196.887 6.37% 3,407.636

5.3 38.5%
700.2 44 3%

0.11 1.67%
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54.353 26.98% 34.57% 6.8
36.63% 5.48
10
IT
IT CITIC
609.541
74.06
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2017 2016 %
99,645 106,138 (6,493) (6.12)
57,586 48,021 9,565 19.92
157,231 154,159 3,072 1.99
(48,913) (47,272) (1,641) 3.47
(55,787) (52,288) (3,499) 6.69
52,276 54,608 (2.332) 4.27)
(9,398) (12,822) 3,424 (26.70)
42,878 41,786 1,092 2.61
42,566 41,629 937 2.25
2017 1.99% 157.231
5.4 63.4% 5.4
36.6%
%
2017 2016 2015
63.4 68.8 71.8
36.6 31.2 28.2
100.0 100.0 100.0
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2017 6.493 6.12% 99.645
2017 2016
(0 (%)
3,064,369 141,336 4.61 2,741,863 132,218 4.82
835,780 35,540 4.25 1,142,552 45,820 4.01
@ 790,157 25,922 3.28 631,763 21,567 3.41
490,041 7,633 1.56 496,305 7,566 1.52
339,891 9,263 2.73 268,567 5,446 2.03
36,910 1,068 2.89 37,212 857 2.30
5,557,148 220,762 3.97 5,318,262 213,474 4.01
3,346,853 53,190 1.59 3,303,483 55,630 1.68
1,089,966 39,902 3.66 1,233,287 34,099 2.76
317,756 12,346 3.89 108,242 5,586 5.16
196,804 6,151 3.13 89,099 2,686 3.01
141,981 6,825 4.81 287,244 8,466 2.95
92,397 2,691 2.91 35,619 861 2.42
490 12 2.45 299 8 2.68
5,186,247 121,117 2.33 5,057,273 107,336 2.12
99,645 106,138
@ 1.64 1.89
® 1.79 2.00
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2017 2016
15,545 (6,427) 9,118
(12,302) 2,002 (10,280)
5,401 (1,046) 4,355
(95) 162 67
1,448 2,369 3,817
) 218 211
9,990 (2,702) 7,288
729 (3,169) (2,440)
(3,956) 9,759 5,803
10,811 (4,051) 6,760
3,242 223 3,465
(4,285) 2,644 (1,641)
1,374 456 1,830
5 () 4
7,920 5,861 13,781
2,070 (8,563) (6,493)
2017 0.21 1.79%
0.25 1.64%
3.97% 0.21
2.33%
2017 220.762 7.288 3.41%
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2017 9.118 6.90% 141.336
322.506
2017 2016
(0 (%)
1,138,694 47,935 4.21 1,245,091 55,807 4.48
1,925,675 93,401 4.85 1,496,772 76,411 5.11
3,064,369 141,336 4.61 2,741,863 132,218 4.82
2017 2016
0 (%)
1,852,573 89,053 4.81 1,860,308 92,655 4.98
91,921 4,004 4.36 87,753 2,705 3.08
1,119,875 48,279 4.31 793,802 36,858 4.64
3,064,369 141,336 4.61 2,741,863 132,218 4.82
2017 10.280 22.44%
35.540
306.772
2017 4.355 20.19% 25.922
158.394 25.07%
2017 67 0.89%
7.633
2017 3.817
70.09% 9.263 0.70
71.324
2017 211 24.62%
1.068 0.59
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2017 13.781 12.84% 121.117
0.21
2017 2.440 4.39% 53.190
0.09
2017 2016

(%) (%)

1,303,396 32,833 2.52 1,483,786 38,033 2.56

1,507,450 12,571 0.83 1,281,695 9,029 0.70

2,810,846 45,404 1.62 2,765,481 47,062 1.70

311,517 7,169 2.30 343,475 8,028 2.34

224,490 617 0.27 194,527 540 0.28

536,007 7,786 1.45 538,002 8,568 1.59

3,346,853 53,190 1.59 3,303,483 55,630 1.68

2017
.803 17.02% 39.902
0.90
2017 1.641 19.38%
6.825 145.263
2017 6.760 121.02% 12.346
209.514
2017 3.465 129.00% 6.151
107.705
2017 1.830
212.54% 2.691 56.778
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2017 9.565 19.92% 57.586
2017 2016 %
46,858 42,280 4,578 10.83
6,583 3,547 3,036 85.59
3,757 1,682 2,075 123.37
1 - 1 -
387 512 (125) (24.41)
57,586 48,021 9,565 19.92
2017 4.578 10.83% 46.858
13.95% 51.687
2017 2016 %
30,453 19,324 11,129 57.59
5,536 7,114 (1,578) (22.18)
4,534 6,128 (1,594) (26.01)
4,261 5,777 (1,516) (26.24)
3,201 2,566 635 24.75
2,097 2,384 (287) (12.04)
1,215 1,396 (181) (12.97)
390 671 (281) (41.88)
51,687 45,360 6,327 13.95
(4,829) (3,080) (1,749) 56.79
46,858 42,280 4,578 10.83
11.129 57.59%
2017 3.036 6.583
2017 2016 %
2,187 894 1,293 144.63
2,131 77 2,054 2,667.53
1,664 2,311 (647) (28.00)
601 265 336 126.79
6,583 3,547 3,036 85.59
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2017 1.641 3.47% 48.913
1.31%
2017
2.30 30.05%
2017 2016 %
27,416 24,418 2,098 12.28
9,104 9,225 121 (1.31)
10,733 9,142 1,501 17.40
47,253 42,785 4,468 10.44
1,660 4,487 (2,827) (63.00)
48,913 47,272 1,641 3.47
) 31.11% 30.66% 0.45
) 30.05% 27.75% 2.30
2017 3.499 6.69% 55.787
50.170 4.455 9.75%
2017 2016 %
50,170 47,715 4,455 9.75
4,212 5,033 (821) (16.31)
1,018 871 147 16.88
) 387 669 (282) (42.15)
55,787 52,288 3,499 6.69
2017 3.424 26.70% 9.398
5.50 17.98%
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4.27%
5,677.691
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
% "
3,196,887 56.3 2,877,927 48.5
(90,903) (1.6) (75,543) (1.3)
3,105,984 54.7 2,802,384 47.2
531,118 9.4 1,035,728 17.5
™ 916,521 16.1 818,053 13.8
568,300 10.0 553,328 9.3
296,419 5.2 375,849 6.3
54,626 1.0 170,804 2.9
@ 204,723 3.6 174,904 3.0
5,677,691 100.0 5,931,050 100.0
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2017 11.08% 3,196.887
54.7% 7.5
1,857.847 11.573
0.63% 1,231.584 274.978
28.75% 38.5%
5.3
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
(%) (%)
1,857,847 58.1 1,846,274 64.2
107,456 3.4 75,047 2.6
1,231,584 38.5 956,606 33.2
3,196,887 100.0 2,877,927 100.0
(90,903) (75,543)
3,105,984 2,802,384
2017 503.423 48.52%
534.061
327.120 68.06% 169.328 68.69%
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
) )
153,510 28.7 480,630 46.3
303,386 56.8 310,361 29.9
77,165 14.5 246,493 23.8
534,061 100.0 1,037,484 100.0
(2,943) (1,756)
531,118 1,035,728
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2017 98.382 12.02%
916.599
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
®) ®)
65,904 7.2 64,911 8.0
631,768 68.9 534,695 65.3
216,586 23.6 217,500 26.6
2,341 0.3 1,111 0.1
916,599 100.0 818,217 100.0
(78) (164)
916,521 818,053
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
®) ®)
730,982 79.7 628,389 76.8
60,347 6.6 166,749 20.4
121,547 13.3 20,767 2.5
3,697 0.4 2,290 0.3
26 - 22 -
916,599 100.0 818,217 100.0
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2017 102.593 16.33% 730.982
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
D)} )
146,627 20.1 132,073 21
314,813 43.1 230,511 36.7
130,509 17.9 164,608 26.2
1,154 0.2 3 -
137,879 18.7 101,194 16.1
730,982 100.0 628,389 100.0
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
) )
684,612 93.7 503,257 94.4
46,370 6.3 35,132 5.6
730,982 100.0 628,389 100.0
2017 8.445 54.949
26.17% 2.210 14.382
24
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2017 12 31
/ 7/ )
4,907 18/02/2021 2.96% -
4,000 18/08/2029 5.98% -
3,875 04/03/2019 2.72% -
3,497 28/04/2020 4.20% -
3,226 27/02/2023 3.24% -
2,998 08/03/2021 3.25% -
2,757 07/01/2019 2.77% -
2,643 27/07/2021 2.96% -
2,514 25/08/2026 3.05% -
10 2,498 22/11/2021 3.25% -
32,915
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
1,196 -
1,145 1,111
2,341 1,111
2017
1 CIFH 100 16,569,226 - 16,569,226 -
2 CNCB 100 1,578,732 - 1,578,732 -
3 51 102,000 5,100 102,000 -
4 CITIC 100 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 -
22,249,958 5,100 22,249,958
CITIC ai 70 1,191,367 (203,633) - -
1,196,367 (203,633) - -
46 1,013,538  (81,389) 1,010,424 -
(CIAM)
20 97,313 (2,778) 100,000 -
(BFAE)
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- 33,954 3,016 234 -

1,144,805  (81,151) 1,110,658

24,591,130 (279,684) 23,360,616

CNCB
2017 12 31 2016 12 31

164 201

1) 45

® (15) (82)

78 164

2017 12 31 2016 12 31
1,641,988 2,553 2,312 856,455 3,365 2,813
3,347,855 62,030 62,368 2,612,557 42,232 40,045
51,586 868 257 77,385 1,769 2,201
5,041,429 65,451 64,937 3,546,397 47,366 45,059
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2016 12 31 2017 12 31
14,482 141,336 (142,275) 13,543
9,608 25,922 (24,392) 11,138
10,951 35,438 (36,881) 9,508
1,787 18,066 (17,453) 2,400
36,828 220,762 (221,001) 36,589
(3,906) 4,212) 4,172 (3,946)
32,922 216,550 (216,829) 32,643
2017 12 31 2016 12 31

1,931 1,836

518 196

(80) (145)

(320) (73)

2,049 1,814
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OOooOoOoOoo
2017
5.07% 5,265.258
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
% "
3,407,636 64.7 3,639,290 65.6
875,602 16.6 1,065,169 19.2
134,500 2.6 120,342 2.2
441,244 8.4 386,946 7.0
@ 406,276 7.7 334,807 6.0
5,265,258 100.0 5,546,554 100.0
2017 231.654 6.37% 3,407.636
0.9 64.7%
2,874.198 207.079 6.72%
533.438 24.575 4.40%
55. 4% 2.5
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
(%) (%)
1,651,180 48.5 1,691,065 46.5
1,223,018 35.8 1,390,212 38.2
28,092 0.8 69,012 1.9
2,874,198 84.3 3,081,277 84.7
234,961 6.9 232,960 6.4
208,477 8.8 325,053 8.9
533,438 15.7 558,013 15.3
3,407,636 100.0 3,639,290 100.0
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
(%) ()
3,053,751 89.6 3,304,504 90.8
353,885 10.4 334,786 9.2
3,407,636 100.0 3,639,290 100.0
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
(%) ()
12,361 0.4 26,999 0.7
806,528 23.7 889,591 24.4
823,925 24.2 828,014 22.8
619,598 18.2 653,838 18.0
478,097 14.0 528,599 14.5
378,958 11.1 434,248 11.9
62,311 1.8 68,361 1.9
225,858 6.6 209,640 5.8
3,407,636 100.0 3,639,290 100.0
12
2017 () @) @) () () )
1,721,712 50.5 522,430  15.3 436,529  12.8 193,520 5.7 7 - 2,874,198  84.3
260,506 7.7 148,003 4.4 76,510 2.2 48,419 1.4 - - 533,438  15.7
1,982,218  58.2 670,433  19.7 513,039  15.0 241,939 7.1 7 - 3,407,636  100.0
12
2016 ) ) ) () Q) ()
1,878,541  51.6 461,667  12.7 474,021  13.0 265,410 7.3 1,638 0.1 3,081,276  84.7
323,690 8.8 122,909 3.4 65,184 1.8 45,989 1.3 241 - 558,014  15.3
2,202,231 60.4 584,576  16.1 539,205  14.8 311,399 8.6 1,879 0.1 3,639,290 100.0
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2017
2017
2017 48,935 34,955 58,636  (1,142) 101,174 136,666 5,272 384,49
1 - - - - - 42,566 312 42,878
2 - - - (10,642) - . - (10,642)
3
) - - 341 . - - 7,506 7,847
4 - - - - 4,260 (16,111) (295)  (12,146)
2017 12 31 48,935 34,955 58,977 (11,784) 105,434 163,121 12,795 412,433
CIFH CNCBI 3,027,780,392
9.053 CNCBI
Tier2 CIFH CNCBI 75%
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2017
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
- 427,561 535,313
- 195,746 163,157
- 88,772 86,499
- 72,360 74,936
- 310,315 215,845
1,094,754 1,075,750
13,614 13,348
7,385 7,297
460,646 353,567
1,576,399 1,449,962
54.074
42.756 133.695
39.445
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2017 ®)
54,074 (75.29)
503,423 565.74
(215,583) -
(365,544) 0.97)
(56,411) (29.36)
@)

(133,695) (24.23)
1,007,237 84.59
(1,131,592) 58.38
39,445 (64.18)
862,890 42.77
(801,447) 57.81

IFRS
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
65,904 64,911 396 -

65,451 47,366 1,008 -

631,078 534,122 - (10,728)

295 305 30 -

762,728 646,704 1,434 (10,728)

64,937 45,059 - -

64,937 45,059 - _

(

)
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30%

2017 )
124,350 (40.40)
65,451 38.18
54,626 (68.02)
531,118 (48.72)
2,341 110.71 CITIC ai
21,825 71.89
64,937 44.12
8,858 39.19
(11,784) (931.87)
12,795 142.70 CNCB
6,583 85.59
3,757 123.37
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2017 2016
() () (D) ()
87,080 55.4 20,743 39.7 91,166 59.1 24,033 44.0
54,353 34.6 20,283 38.8 42,805 27.8 13,988 25.6
11,080 7.0 8,764 16.8 17,252 11.2 15,103 27.7
4,718 3.0 2,486 4.7 2,936 1.9 1,484 2.7
157,231 100.0 52,276  100.0 154,159  100.0 54,608  100.0
15.4
2017 12 31 2017
(€ @
() () ()
2,300,101 40.7 2,466,613 46.8 27,022 51.7
1,288,981 22.8 1,135,639 21.6 3,323 6.4
916,081 16.2 820,311 15.6 4,402 8.4
1,228,113 21.7 1,079,757 20.5 8,884 17.0
626,587 11.1 565,919 10.7 3,456 6.6
574,942 10.2 483,560 9.2 1,396 2.7
94,618 1.7 86,047 1.6 47 0.1
307,796 5.4 266,293 5.1 3,746 7.1
(1,681,353) (29.8)  (1,638,889) (31.1) - -
5,655,866 100.0 5,265,250 100.0 52,276 100.0
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2016 12 31 2016
@ ()
() () (D)
2,118,608 35.8 2,837,756 51.2 19,801 36.3
1,396,595 23.6 1,134,943 20.5 9,710 17.8
1,133,438 19.2 883,235 15.9 6,698 12.3
1,489,553 25.2 1,258,132 22.7 9,181 16.8
802,949 13.6 656,226 11.8 2,143 3.9
723,310 12.2 568,835 10.3 4,222 1.7
116,586 2.0 85,161 1.5 80 0.1
285,453 4.8 236,894 4.3 2,773 5.1
(2,148,139) (36.4) (2,114,639) (38.2) - -
5,918,353 100.0 5,546,543 100.0 54,608 100.0
2017
2012 CBRC
0.33
11.65% Tierl 0.31 9.34%
Tierl 0.15 8.49% 0.33%
274.978
86.21%
195.608
353.054 (8.91%) 5.40%
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31 (%) 2015 12 31
Tierl 366,567 342,563 7.01 316,159
Tierl 403,378 382,670 5.41 317,987
502,821 475,008 5.86 411,740
4,317,502 3,964,448 8.91 3,468,135
Tierl 8.49% 8.64% 0.15 9.12%
Tierl 9.34% 9.65% 0.31 9.17%
11.65% 11.98% 0.33 11.87%
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 (%) 2015 12 31
6.18% 5.47% 0.71 5.26%
Tierl 403,378 382,670 5.41 317,987
6,527,276 6,994,025 (6.67) 6,044,069
(@)
http://www._citichank.com/about/investor/financialaffairs/gglzb/ IR
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2017 12 31

41

112
9,295

CNCB

142
1,285

CNCBI
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1,435
85
4,024
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38
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€))
2017 12 31
1) 1)
49,284,796,573
@
@ 34,052,633,596 14,882,162,977 350,000,000
2017 12 31
1.00 48,934,796,573
100.00 350,000,000
)
16

@)
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®3)

2012 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905, 164,057
551,002

2013 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
551,002

2014 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
551,002

2015 12 31 31,905,164,057 31,905,164,057
551,002

2016 20 2,147,469,539 2,147,469,539 )

37,087

2016 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596
588,089

2017 12 31 34,052,633,596 34,052,633,596
588,089

(1)2016 20 2,147,469,539
48,934,796,573 2,147,469,539

2012 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
257,015

2013 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
257,015

2014 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
257,015

2015 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
257,015

2016 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977
257,015

2017 12 31 14,882,162,977 14,882,162,977

257,015

721478
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W
016 11 350,000,000 0 @
016 12 31 350,000,000 0
017 12 31 350,000,000 0
@
) 2016 10 21 100.00 350
2016 11
©)
2017 12 31 103,141 161,644
31,497
®)
"
2017 12 31
) (%)
CITIC 31.988 728,773 D@ 65.37%
199
2,147,469,539 P 4.39%
55
1,032,669,817 2.11%
28
47,288,222.291 96..64%
@
)
G)CITIC
(4)HKSCC HKSCC
2017 12 31
(5)CITIC CITIC CITIC CITIC
CITIC 65.97%

32,284,227,773 28,938,928,294 3,345,299,479
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CITIC 65.37% 31,988,728,773
28,938,928,294 3,049,800,479

2017 12 31 %

74/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

2017 12 31 31 10

2017 12 31

) ) )
- 43,860,000  12.53 - - -

- 38,430,000 10.98 - - -

005L  FHO002
- 38,400,000 10.97 - - -

005L CT001
- 30,700,000 8.77 - - -
- 30,700,000 8.77 - - -
- 30,700,000 8.77 - - -
- 21,930,000 6.27 - - -
- 15,350,000 4.39 - - -
- 10,960,000 3.13 - - -
- 8,770,000 2.51 - - -
- 8,770,000 2.51 - - -

€Y)

@

005L  FHO02 005L CT001
10

751478
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10

50
MOF

Tierl
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2012
1.5% 2017 12 31

GAAP IFRS

Tierl

51
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2007 27 2007 27
€))
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
5.45 6.22 7.35 5.36 5.42
76 87 103 75 76
3.39 3.62 4.41 4.03 4.69
47 51 62 56 66
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
5.48 8.19 10.50 7.52 7.35
95 141 181 130 127
3.39 3.57 5.41 5.15 5.79
59 62 93 89 100
@

2017 2017 2017 2017 10 2017 11 2017 12
5.07 5.18 5.19 5.18 5.17 5.03
71 73 73 73 72 70
4.75 4.92 4.94 5.02 4.96 4.83
67 69 69 70 69 68

2017 2017 2017 2017 10 2017 11 2017 12
7.35 6.83 6.63 6.48 6.56 6.56
127 118 115 112 113 113
6.18 6.23 6.28 6.18 5.99 6.11
107 108 108 107 103 106

771478
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21 19%

2018 25
2017
12 31
LI Qingping CITIC
1962 10 CITIC
CITIC
CIFH CITIC
2016 20
2014 2016
2014
2014
2013 CITIC
CITIC
2014 CITIC
2015 12
CITIC CITIC CITIC
2017 12 CITIC
2015 CIFH
2014 CITIC
2009
2013
2009 2009
2007
2008 12
1984 2007
30
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2016 20
(SUN Deshun) CNCBI 2014
(1958 11 ) 2016 2014
2011 12 2014
2011 10
2010 2011 10
2005 12 2009 12
1984 2005
11
1995 12 2005 11
1999 2004
1981
1984 PBOC
30
2017 CITIC
ZHU Gaoming CITIC
1965
2014 2015
2009 12 2014
2004 2009 12
1990
2004
2018 CITIC
CAO Guogiang 2015 12 2018
1964 12 2015 CITIC
2017 12
2016
10
2015 12 CITIC 2013
12
2009 10 2016 CIFH
CNCBI 2005 12 2014
CNCB
2010 2015 10
2006 2010
2005 2006
1992 12 2005
1988
1992 PBOC
30
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2016 11
HUANG Fang 2015 11 2013
1973 2011
2010 10
2011
1992 2010
2016 2011
WAN Liming 11
1966 2009 12 2011 11
2007 2009 12
1996 2007
1996
1996 1988
1996
29
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2016
HE Cao
1955
1979
2002
2013 2002
Tierl
2009
2009 2010
2014
12
13
2007 2012
20
1979
1986
1987
2004
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2016
CHEN Lihua
1962

21

1999
2001

2005 2006

1983
1988 1998
1999
2000

European Journal
of Operational Research Proceeding of
Workshop on Internet and Network Economics

82/478
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2016 12 2017
QIAN Jun
1970 2014 2017
EMBA/DBA/EE
2013 12 2016 12
Review of Finance 2013
2017
EMBA
2009 2013
2000 2013
2000
2006 2006 2013
2011 2013
Haub 2011
Frontiers of Economics in China
2007 2009
2007
2008 MIT
2002
1988 1991
1993
2000

American Economic Review

Journal of Finance Journal of Financial and
Quantitative Analysis Journal of
International Economics

China’ s
Great Economic Transformation Emerging Giants
in the World Economy: China and India China’ s
Emerging Financial Markets: Challenges and
Opportunities Global Perspectives of Rule

of Law
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1984
YAN Lap Kei lIsaac 1987 KPMG
1960 10 1988 KPMG
1989
1993
1998
2000 2016 KPMG
KPMG
CSRC
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2008
LIU Cheng 2018
1967 12 2004 12
2008
2003 2004 12
1995 2003
2014 11
DENG Changging 2016
1973
2009
2014 11
2007
2009
2003
2002
2003
2000
2002
1996
2000
WANG Xiuhong 2003 12 2015
1946 10
2004 10 2010 12
2003 2004
1997
2003
1994 1997
2016
JIA Xiangsen) 2010 2014
1955 2008
2010
1983 12 2008
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ZHENG Wei)
1974 1988
1999
2016
2016
2017
1999 2000
2015
CHENG Pusheng
1968 2013 10 2015
2011 2013
10
2008 2011
2005 2008
2004
2005
1995 2004
1992 1995
1991 1992
PBOC
2014 12
CHEN Panwu) 2015
1964 2005 2014 11
2012 10
2014 11
1994 2005
2011
ZENG Yufang) 2008 2011
1970 12 2003 12 2008
2001 2003 11
1998 12 2001
1996 1998 11
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(SUN Deshun)

(1958 11 )
2014 2014 11
FANG Heying) 2017
1966 CNCB
CNCBI CIFH
2013 2014 11
2014
2007 2013
2003 2007
1996 12
2003
1996 1996 12
1992
12 1996
1991 1992 12
20
2014
GUO Danghuai) 2014 11
1964 2013 2014
2010 2013
2006 2010
2005 2006
2001 2005
2000 11 2001
CITIC
1999 2000 11
1986
1999
30

87/478



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

oOoOooodn

2015
YANG Yu 2015 12
1962 12 CITIC
2011
2015
2006 2011
1982 2006
30
2017
MO Yue 2015 10 2017
1959 10 CITIC
2010 2015 10 CITIC
2007
2010
2000 11 2007
1997 2000 11
1984
1997
2017 2017 11
HU Gang 2014 12
1967 2015
2014
2017
2013 2014
2005 2013
2000
2005
1997 10 2000
1993
1997 10
1993
1989 1993
10
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2014 10 2017
YAO Ming
1960 2014 10
2013 2014
2004 2013
1999
2004
1996 10
1999
1995 1996
1993 1995 924
1991 1993
1984
1991 924
20
2017
LU Wei 2016 10
1971 10 2016
2013 2016 10
2013
2013
1997 2013
2001
2002
1994 1997
20
2018 25 2017
@
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10

2020
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2017

2017

2017

2017
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2017
2017
21
CBIRC
11
2017
2017
36.4922
- 66
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2017 2017 12 31

2017

2016-2020

2016 2017

2015

@
GAAP 2017 2017 12 31

IFRS
2017 18.81

12.18

94/478



131

193

2018

2017 12 31

95/478
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2016 12 31
IFRS

38 59

( 23 103 )

17.27
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12 31
2017 2016
)
220,762 3,812,560 213,474 3,686,696
(121,117) (2,091,691) (107,336) (1,853,693)
6 99,645 1,720,869 106,138 1,833,003
51,687 892,634 45,360 783,367
(4,829) (83,397) (3,080) (53,192)
7 46,858 809,238 42,280 730,176
8 6,583 113,688 3,547 61,257
9 3,757 64,883 1,682 29,048
10 1 17 — —
387 6,683 512 8,842
157,231 2,715,379 154,159 2,662,326
11 (48,913) (844,728) (47,272) (816,387)
108,318 1,870,652 106,887 1,845,938
(50,170) (866,436) (45,715) (789,498)
(5,617) (97,006) (6,573) (113,516)
12 (55,787) (963,441) (52,288) (903,014)
30 518 8 138
(285) (4,922) 1 17
52,276 902,807 54,608 943,080
13 (9,398) (162,303) (12,822) (221,436)
42,878 740,503 41,786 721,644
42,566 735,115 41,629 718,933
312 5,388 157 2,711
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12 31
2017 2016
( ) ( )
42,878 740,503 41,786 721,644
(8,042) (138,885) (6,627) (114,448)
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(14,521) (250,778) (14,155) (244,457)
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14,730 254,387 (46,833) (808,806)
(9,442) (163,063) 5,967 103,050
10,896 188,174 (49,368) (852,585)
14,712 254,076 (37,851) (653,687)
116,178 2,006,394 (32,196) (556,025)
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333,719 237,712

226,545 173,735

166,015 111,949

1,231,584 956,606

3,196,887 2,877,927

34

(28,930) (25,448)

(61,973) (50,095)

(90,903) (75,543)

3,105,984 2,802,384
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()
2017 12 31
()
(¢ @)
( ) ) ( ) ( )
3,143,239 11,393 42,255 3,196,887 1.68
(52,997) (8,976) (28,930) (90,903)
3,090,242 2,417 13,325 3,105,984
2016 12 31
C ()
¢ @)
( ) ) ( ) ( )
2,829,347 10,579 38,001 2,877,927 1.69
(41,988) (8,107) (25,448) (75,543)
2,787,359 2,472 12,553 2,802,384
)
(i)
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
24,360 19,060
17,895 18,941
42,255 38,001
(28,930) (25,448)
13,325 12,553
22,199 18,643
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©
2017 12 31

( ) ( ) ) )

2017 41,988 8,107 25,448 75,543

11,032 6,406 37,310 54,748

— (1,063) (3,515) (4,578)

— — (555) (555)

(i) (23) — (398) (421)

63 — (5,540) (29,761) (35,301)

— 1,066 401 1,467

2017 12 31 52,997 8,976 28,930 90,903

2016 12 31

( ) ( ) ) )

2016 39,306 5,846 15,345 60,497

2,662 6,918 38,845 48,425

— (405) (2,305) (2,710)

— — (564) (564)

(i) 20 — 255 275

63 — (4,657) (26,295) (30,952)

— 405 167 572

2016 12 31 41,988 8,107 25,448 75,543
O)
@

2017 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ) )

6,739 7,624 767 424 15,554

8,543 9,741 8,814 1,466 28,564

14,168 13,614 11,886 363 40,031

3,392 2,201 1,620 162 7,375

32,842 33,180 23,087 2,415 91,524

1471478



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

OooooOodd
2016 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) «( ) ( )
3,985 5,576 2,750 300 12,611
7,776 11,649 7,136 115 26,676
22,689 17,101 8,560 561 49,001
1,592 2,765 1,046 62 5,465
36,042 37,181 19,492 1,038 93,753
Q)
CFLL CIFH
25
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

6,920 9,952 7,677 8,459
10,233 11,371 6,514 7,761
8,365 9,066 6,279 6,766
19,740 22,501 14,039 16,762
45,258 52,890 34,509 39,748

@ @

(1,003) (643)

44,254 33,864
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
©) 469,843 396,545
() 40,947 116,050
1,356 1,179
©) 744 768
©) 612 411
) 119,518 20,737
26 22
631,690 534,533
@
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )

245,368 166,151
72,171 91,905
31,985 34,906
78,084 70,094
427,608 363,056
13,635 15,023
18,535 11,787
1,151 —
8,914 6,679
42,235 33,489
469,843 396,545
23,590 10,935
429,769 356,827
16,484 28,783
469,843 396,545
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(b)
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
38,391 112,127
1,436 —
1,120 3,923
40,947 116,050
40,947 116,050
©
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
927 391
145 136
284 652
1,356 1,179
284 305
70 116
1,002 758
1,356 1,179
)
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
118,925 19,585
263 457
330 695
119,518 20,737
118,925 19,585
593 1,152
119,518 20,737
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CITIC
2016 12 31
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
55,105 49,286
54,246 69,861
88,774 76,572
18,133 21,430
216,258 217,149
325 348
3 3
328 351
216,586 217,500
34 — )
216,586 217,498
273 291
209,985 213,008
6,328 4,199
216,586 217,498
212,530 219,014
206,202 214,813
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
268,247 452,966
139,020 458,390
126,794 126,128
534,061 1,037,484
34 (2,943) (1,756)
531,118 1,035,728
91,976
CITIC
58a(viii)
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27
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
(©) 1,196 —
(b) 1,145 1,111
2,341 1,111
@
2017 12 31
CITIC aiBank
Corporattion Limited 70
2017 11 18
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
( )« )« ) ( )« )
9,970 8,262 1,708 30 (291)
( )
1,400
2017 —
1,400
(204)
2017 12 31 1,196
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(b)
2017 12 31
CIAM 46 2,218
BFAE 20 500
2016 12 31 CIAW 40
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
) ) ) ( ) ( )
CIAN 2,412 236 2,176 181 (251)
BFAE 581 98 483 1 (14)
2016 12 31 2016 12 31
) ) ) ( ) ( )
CIAN 3,102 579 2,523 (48) 3
BEAE 499 2 497 — @
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1,111
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993
976
100
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43
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28
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
CIFH ) 16,570 16,570
CQEEB (it) 1,577 1,577
(iid) 102 102
CFLL (iv) 4,000 4,000
22,249 22,249
2017 12 31
. 7,503
CIFH O) 100 — 100
CNCB 1,889
. 99.05 0.95 100
(i)
.. 200 51 — 51
(i)
CFLL  (iv) 4,000 100 — 100
(i) CIFH
CIFH 100 CIFH CITIC
CBI 75
(ii) CNCB 1984
CNCB
CNCB 99.05 CIFH CNCB
0.95 2017 12 31 CNCB 100
(i) 2011 200
51
(iv) 2015 CFLL
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29
) ( ) ) )

2017
17,468 470 10,359 28,297
3,933 608 877 5,418
7 — (130) arm
(41) — (88) (129)
2017 12 31 21,313 1,078 11,018 33,409
2017 (3,949) — (6,514) (10,463)
(568) — (1,250) (1,818)
— — 115 115
20 — 67 87
2017 12 31 (4,497) — (7,582) (12,079)
2017 13,519 470 3,845 17,834
2017 12 31 C () 16,816 1,078 3,436 21,330
) ( ) ) )
2016 14,372 1,121 9,468 24,961
2,396 29 1,073 3,498
680 (680) — —
(65) — (253) (318)
85 — 71 156
2016 12 31 17,468 470 10,359 28,297
2016 (3,452) — (5,526) (8,978)
(506) — (1,177) (1,683)
27 — 243 270
(18) — (54) (72)
2016 12 31 (3,949) — (6,514) (10,463)
2016 10,920 1,121 3,942 15,983
2016 12 31 C () 13,519 470 3,845 17,834
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2017 12 31 2,860
2016 12 31 3,620
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2017 12 31
IFRS 13

158/478

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

Ogoooood
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
305 325
30 8
(18) (51)
22) 23
295 305
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2017 12 31
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
914 854
(65) 60
849 914
2016 12 31
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
21,825 12,697
® 11)
21,817 12,686
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@
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
/( /(
) C ) ) C )
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
68,409 17,060 52,757 13,165
12,357 3,078 (968) (250)
6,248 1,562 2,882 721
402 125 (3,844) (939)
87,416 21,825 50,827 12,697
(48) () (65) (11)
87,368 21,817 50,762 12,686
()
( ) ( ) ) ( ) ( )
2017 13,165 (261) 721 (939) 12,686
3,899 645 838 1,060 6,442
— 2,686 3 — 2,689
@ - — 4 -
2017 12 31 17,060 3,070 1,562 125 21,817
2016 9,694 (2,027) 704 (400) 7,971
3,468 422) 19 (536) 2,529
— 2,188 ) — 2,186
3 — — ®) —
2016 12 31 13,165 (261) 721 (939) 12,686
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©

2017 12 31
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
26,313 23,927
@ 10,521 12,335
4,740 3,684
(b) 2,049 1,814
2,030 805
1,546 4,448
1,315 1,677
1,024 1,054
1,023 1,065
©) 7,282 7,845
57,843 58,654
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
1,931 1,836
518 196
2,449 2,032
(400) (218)
2,049 1,814
2016 12
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2017 12 31
12 31

( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) ) )
O)
17 34 — 32) — ©) —
18 9 — — — () 1
22 3,906 5,388 (1,176)  (3,977) (195) 3,946
23 75,543 54,748 (4,578)  (35,301) 491 90,903
162 27 (96) — (15) 78
25 2 — O} — — —
26 1,756 1,018 — — 169 2,943
2,360 725 (158) (364) 38 2,601
83,772 61,906 (6,042)  (39,642) 478 100,472
2016 12 31
12 31

( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) ) )
@
17 — 34 — — — 34
18 8 — — — 1 9
22 2,134 5,452 (419)  (3,29) 35 3,906
23 60,497 48,425 (2,710)  (30,952) 283 75,543
160 45 ©) — (41) 162
25 41 2 — — (41) 2
26 885 871 — — — 1,756
1,999 742 (70) (387) 76 2,360
65,724 55,571 (3,201)  (34,635) 313 83,772
12
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
170,801 446,824
611,011 531,949
781,812 978,773
16,142 2,566
53 107
16,195 2,673
798,007 981,446
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
43,172 46,689
28,733 20,000
71,905 66,689
5,690 17,034
77,595 83,723

163/478



37

@

()

PBOC

2017

12 31

55
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
88,063 85,415
46,321 33,100
134,384 118,515
116 1,758
— 69
116 1,827
134,500 120,342
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
52,415 29,055
82,085 91,287
134,500 120,342
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@
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
1,645,002 1,683,827
234,961 232,960
1,879,963 1,916,787
1,223,018 1,390,212
298,477 325,053
1,521,495 1,715,265
6,178 7,238
3,407,636 3,639,290
®)
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
195,308 213,624
24,941 25,822
9,289 9,624
108,830 148,798
338,368 397,868
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39
2017 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
(@) 8,673 23,253 (23,291) 8,635
() 32 2,377 (2,375) 34
©) 35 11 @ 44
79 89 (43) 125
8,819 25,730 (25,711) 8,838
2016 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
(@) 8,158 20,554 (20,039) 8,673
(b) 32 2,190 (2,190) 32
©) 49 6 (20) 35
63 39 (23) 79
8,302 22,789 (22,272) 8,819
a
2017 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
7,483 18,594 (18,524) 7,553
49 1,324 (1,345) 28
— 1,121 (1,121) _
19 1,291 (1,300) 10
1,060 378 (483) 955
48 497 (470) 75
14 48 (48) 14
8,673 23,253 (23,291) 8,635
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2016 12 31
12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

7,134 15,442 (15,093) 7,483

35 1,189 (1,175) 49

— 1,470 (1,470) —

26 1,250 (1,257) 19

915 613 (468) 1,060

34 484 (470) 48

14 106 (106) 14

8,158 20,554 (20,039) 8,673

b
CITIC
2016 12 31
2017 12 31
662 2016 12 31 629
Occupational Retirement Scheme Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme
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@

12 31

2017
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
4,668 3,442
4,175 2,911
15 11
8,858 6,364
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
26,212 27,867
3,551 2,045
9,560 7,243
39,323 37,155
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
394 244
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
244 2
152 243
@ —
— )
394 244

152
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43
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )

@ 94,571 31,288

(b) 68,448 68,441

CBI ©) 5,280 7,801

(d) 2,849 9,493

) 270,096 269,923

441,244 386,946

(a) 2017 12 31
2017 2016
12 31 12 31

2017 17 2020 17 4.20 50,000 —

2013 11 2018 11 12 5.20 15,000 15,000

2015 11 17 2020 11 17 3.61 8,000 8,000

2015 21 2020 25 3.98 7,000 7,000
2017 12 14 2020 12 14 2.47 4,555 —
2017 12 14 2022 12 15 2.57 3,579 —
2017 24 2020 24 4.40 2,993 —
2017 12 14 2020 12 14 2.88 1,952 —
2017 12 14 2022 12 15 3.13 1,627 —

2014 27 2017 27 4.13 — 1,500

94,706 31,500
(90) (35)
(45) @77

94,571 31,288
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2024

(i) 2010 28

4.30
(ii) 2012 21

5.15
(iii) 2014 26

6.13

(©) 12 31 CBI

2020
2022
2024

(i) 6.875

D) 3.875
2017 28
28 CBI

(i) 6.00

2019

@) CBI

(e) 2017 12 31
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
O) 11,500 11,500
(i) 19,981 19,979
(iii) 36,967 36,962
68,448 68,441
4.30 2020 28
5.15 2022 21
6.13 2019 26
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
O) 3,341 3,641
(i) — 2,077
(i) 1,939 2,083
5,280 7,801
500 2010 24 CBI
300 2012 27 CBI
2017
300 2013 11 CBI
4.718
2024
0.70 3.62
270,096 2016 12 31 269,923
4.00 5.35 2016 12 31 2.68 3.75

170/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

44

45

OooooOodd
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
13,545 3,414
6,667 30,033
0 6,306 3,756
4,872 448
4,278 3,740
1,616 1,166
636 655
8,398 9,893
46,318 53,105
O)
2017 12 31 6,306 2016 12 31 3,756
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ) ( )
34,053 34,053
14,882 14,882
48,935 48,935
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )

48,935 48,935
12 31 48,935 48,935
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100 350 35,000
3.80
3.80
100 350 200 2016 10
2017 12 31 34,955
Tier Tier
59
1.30
CBRC No.56 [2012])
)
7.07
CBRC Tier
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )

388,002 368,702
353,047 333,747
34,955 34,955
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
58,896 58,555
81 81
58,977 58,636
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
58,636 58,636
52 341 —
58,977 58,636
39
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12 31
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ooooooo
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
27,263 23,362
3,920 3,901
31,183 27,263
50 10
25
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
73,911 64,555
340 9,356
74,251 73,911
2017 12 31
2017 12 31
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51
@
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
49 3,920 3,901
50 340 9,356
12 31 4,260 13,257
2018 26 2017 3,920
CFLL
(b) 2017 26 2017 24 10,521
10 2.15
(c) 2017 24 2017 10 26 1,330
3.8 3.80 350
(d) 2018 26 2017 12 31 10 2.61
12,772
2017 12 31
(e) 2017 12 31 141 2016 12 31
87 53 2016 12 31 38

2017 12 31
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
CBI 5,149
Tier
7.25
2014 300 2019
22 22 5-627
4.25

2016 500 2021

10 11 10 11 3.107
CBI

CBI
2017 12 31 290
2016 12 31 146
2017 29 26 CIFH 100
CNCBI
CNCBI
3,027,780,392 9,053
CNCBI 100

CIFH CNCBI 75
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )

6,740 7,407
89,288 58,855
110,898 204,665
79,078 63,158
51,911 51,271
331,175 377,949
337,915 385,356

2017 2016

12 31 12 31
( ) ( )

14,926 8,446
57,434 66,490
72,360 74,936
195,746 163,157
88,772 86,499
427,561 535,313
310,315 215,845
1,094,754 1,075,750
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
351,475 337,216
CBRC
150
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(ii) 2017
CNTC
Jsc
Jsc
2017 12 31

(iii) 2015 11 17

@
©
2017 12 31
748
244
®
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
7,385 7,297
JsC 60
2018
12 31
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
2,876 2,917
2,892 2,454
2,306 2,137
3,418 3,354
2,122 2,486
13,614 13,348
2016 12 31 517
394 2016 12 31
42

MOF PBOC
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31

11,492 12,723

MOF

12 31
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@
()
2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
407,755 324,303
52,780 29,188
111 76
460,646 353,567
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
12
D) 2017 12 31
1,668 2016 12 31 1,153
)
21
2017 12 31
2016 12 31 2017 12 31

2016
12 31
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®

2017 12 31
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2017 2016
12 31 12 31
( ) ( )
791,555 703,259
791,556 703,260
62(c) 62 (b)
62(b)

62(b)
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2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ¢ ) ( )
56,534 43,899 20,671 (21,459) 99,645
16,442 (23,724) (17,572) 24,854 —
72,976 20,175 3,099 3,395 99,645
( ) 13,285 32,866 702 5 46,858
(i) 819 1,312 7,279 1,318 10,728
87,080 54,353 11,080 4,718 157,231
(995) (432) (554) (830) (2,811)
(20,691) (23,747) (1,552) 112) (46,102)
(44,651) (9,891) (210) (1,035) (55,787)
_ _ — 30 30
— — — (285) (285)
20,743 20,283 8,764 2,486 52,276
(9,398)
42,878
3,309 1,981 1,953 1,157 8,400
2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2,392,695 1,324,514 1,416,678 519,638 5,653,525
— — 131 2,210 2,341
21,825
5,677,691
3,057,267 875,285 650,713 681,985 5,265,250
8
5,265,258
784,439 310,315 — — 1,004,754
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OooooOodd
2016 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
59,858 30,447 26,573 (10,740) 106,138

) 14,685 (12,125) (16,670) 14,110 —
74,543 18,322 9,903 3,370 106,138

( ) 12,843 23,136 6,296 5 42,280
) 3,780 1,347 1,053 (439) 5,741
91,166 42,805 17,252 2,936 154,159
(1,099) (470) (760) (374) (2,703)
(21,693) (21,025) (1,172) (679) (44,569)
(44,341) (7,322) 17) (408) (52,288)

— — — 8 8

— — — 1 1

24,033 13,988 15,103 1,484 54,608

(12,822)

41,786

2,811 1,182 1,955 840 6,788

2016 12 31

( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2,566,820 1,034,645 1,775,788 539,989 5,017,242

— — 100 1,011 1,111

12,697

5,931,050

3,223,082 809,320 1,261,472 252,669 5,546,543

11

5,546,554

859,905 215,845 — — 1,075,750

(H
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2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
16,386 14,398 7,764 14,662 14,345 2,375 24,542 5,173 — 99,645
4,129 2,191 12,649 (158) (2,061) (576) (15,987) 187) — —
20,515 16,589 20,413 14,504 12,284 1,799 8,555 4,986 — 99,645
4,150 3,689 5,724 1,940 1,945 302 27,564 1,544 — 46,858
0) 647 372 702 204 99 25 7,108 1,571 — 10,728
25,312 20,650 26,839 16,648 14,328 2,126 43,227 8,101 — 157,231
“72) (289) 412) (333) (386) (104) (640) (175) — (2,811)
(7,555) (5,379) @7,717) (5,067) (4,996) (1,233) (11,288) (2,867) — (46,102)
(13,962) (10,580) (9,826) (7,792) (7,550) (742) (4,103) (1,232) — (55,787)
— — — — — — 30 — — 30
— — — — — — (204) (81) — (285)
3,323 4,402 8,884 3,456 1,396 47 27,022 3,746 — 52,276
(9,398)
42,878
3,193 198 347 1,161 301 38 2,987 175 — 8,400
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2017 12 31

) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,288,981 916,081 1,228,113 626,587 574,942 94,618 2,298,905 306,651 (1,681,353) 5,653,525
_ _ _ _ — — 1,196 1,145 — 2,341
21,825
5,677,691
1,135,639 820,311 1,079,757 565,919 483,560 86,047 2,466,613 266,293 (1,638,889) 5,265,250
8
5,265,258
198,104 158,719 154,949 161,686 85,618 13,277 304,020 18,381 — 1,004,754
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ooooooo
2016 12 31
( ) ) ) ) ( ) ) ) ) )
19,616 13,893 9,343 15,409 15,132 3,084 25,884 3,777 106,138
1,802 2,444 11,224 (587) (1,613) (852) (12,366) (52) —
21,418 16,337 20,567 14,822 13,519 2,232 13,518 3,725 106,138
5,308 3,270 5,644 2,746 3,152 404 20,319 1,437 42,280
0) 857 490 882 313 271 46 2,065 817 5,741
27,583 20,097 27,093 17,881 16,942 2,682 35,902 5,979 154,159
(415) 72) (464) (333) (405) (104) (579) (131) (2,703)
(8,067) (5,456) (8,017) (5,451) (5,163) (1,143) (8,671) (2,601) (44,569)
(9,391) (7,671) (9,431) (9,954) (7,152) (1,355) (6,851) (483) (52,288)
— — — — — — - 8 8
— — — — — — — 1 1
9,710 6,698 9,181 2,143 4,222 80 19,801 2,773 54,608
(12,822)
41,786
2,159 636 204 728 472 106 2,308 175 6,788
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ooooooo
2016 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
1,396,595 1,133,438 1,489,553 802,949 723,310 116,586 2,118,608 284,342 (2,148,139) 5,917,242
— — — — — — — 1,111 — 1,111
12,697
5,931,050
1,134,943 883,235 1,258,132 656,226 568,835 85,161 2,837,756 236,894 (2,114,639) 5,546,543
11
5,546,554
211,676 117,938 188,178 193,363 110,711 17,171 208,682 28,031 — 1,075,750

Q)
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oOoOooodn
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ) ( )
561,560 545,921
124,350 208,641
172,069 167,208
61,380 64,910
65,451 47,366
54,626 170,804
32,643 32,922
3,105,984 2,802,384
510,790 512,595
216,586 217,498
531,118 1,035,728
47,972 49,669
5,484,529 5,855,646
1,094,754 1,075,750
6,579,283 6,931,396
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oOoOooodn

2017 12 31

42,255 1 — 137 —
(28,930) Q) — (50) —
13,325 — — 87 —

11,393 — — — —
(8,976) — — — —
2,417 — — — —

)

30,812 — — — —
9,514 — — — —
148 — — — —

40,474 — — — —
(9,315) — — — —
31,159 — — — —

3,102,765 857,979 54,626 788,669 534,061
() (43,682) — — — (2,943)

3,059,083 857,979 54,626 788,669 531,118

3,105,984 857,979 54,626 788,756 531,118
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00000000000 DO0000O00o0o00b0OoO0Odnoo(Es9d)

OooooOodd
2016 12 31
( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) )
38,001 33 — 61 —
(25,448) ) — 31) —
12,553 24 — 30 —
10,579 — — — —
(8,107) — — — —
2,472 — — — —

()
34,667 — — _ _
14,193 — — — —
48,860 — — _ _
(8,395) — — — —
40,465 — — — —
2,780,487 921,780 170,804 795,077 1,037,484
() (33,593) €)) — (104) (1,756)
2,746,894 921,746 170,804 794,973 1,035,728
2,802,384 921,770 170,804 795,003 1,035,728
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ) ( )
23,877 33,486
16,597 15,374
40,474 48,860
33,484 41,139
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(i)
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ( ( (
) ) ) )

333,055 10.4 272,486 293,429 10.2 246,107
324,029 10.1 141,571 385,822 13.4 203,543
221,786 6.9 134,207 180,124 6.3 115,905
193,818 6.1 103,102 238,545 8.3 146,674
179,441 5.6 87,763 148,476 5.2 77,814
152,851 4.8 79,120 161,976 5.6 84,728
77,878 2.4 31,442 90,666 3.2 39,612
70,523 2.2 32,688 60,046 2.1 25,187
18,566 0.6 5,399 19,846 0.7 4,427
285,900 8.9 120,153 267,344 9.2 108,593
1,857,847 58.0 1,007,931 1,846,274 64.2 1,052,590
1,231,584 38.6 859,513 956,606 33.2 695,631
107,456 3.4 — 75,047 2.6 —
3,196,887 100.0 1,867,444 2,877,927 100.0 1,748,221

10

2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
16,843 11,449 11,344 15,722 (14,200)
855 639 4,156 625 (62)
2016 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )

14,506 10,053 9,063 15,573 (10,979)
147 21 3,285 15 (45)
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@iv)
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ( ( (

) ) ) )
967,864 30.3 428,764 771,415 26.8 377,852
691,183 21.6 443,504 634,919 22.1 413,445
493,118 15.4 390,394 477,683 16.6 376,115
421,810 13.2 265,898 374,358 13.0 230,806
389,152 12.2 231,120 379,192 13.2 238,126

67,609 2.1 44,403 70,967 2.5 47,749
166,151 5.2 63,361 169,393 5.8 64,128
3,196,887 100.0 1,867,444 2,877,927 100.0 1,748,221
10
2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
15,225 6,731 19,251
10,705 6,416 8,805
9,672 6,430 13,685
7,809 3,831 8,190
6,029 3,438 10,140
2016 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
13,321 6,781 14,729
10,312 5,307 7,786
8,002 5,117 9,825
7,121 3,324 7,001
6,564 3,273 8,747
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oOoOooodn
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ) ( )
708,164 548,123
513,823 506,536
1,510,366 1,417,736
357,078 330,485
3,089,431 2,802,880
107,456 75,047
3,196,887 2,877,927
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
) ( )
23,245 0.73 17,234 0.60
19,859 0.62 14,680 0.51
2017 12 31
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OooooOodd
(vii)
2017 12 31
AAA AA A A

Q)
257,551 48,565 8,440 375 — 314,931
127,848 — — 609 — 128,457
3 — 1,151 — — 1,154
8,506 160,311 3,986 15,953 6,734 195,490
9,014 96,367 23,018 15,138 5,187 148,724
402,922 305,243 36,595 32,075 11,921 788,756

2016 12 31
AAA AA A A

O)
212,655 14,050 2 208 1,182 228,097
162,917 721 970 — — 164,608
3 — — — — 3
21,735 228,982 23,873 18,606 7,548 300,744
2,513 71,522 20,484 5,608 1,424 101,551
399,823 315,275 45,329 24,422 10,154 795,003

Q)
(viii)
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ( )

153,510 480,630
303,386 310,361
77,165 246,493
534,061 1,037,484
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oOoOooodn
2017 12 31
 G»
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )

1.56 568,300 23,810 544,490 — — —
2.21 124,350 — 120,240 4,110 — —
3.07 172,069 — 87,328 84,741 — —
2.89 54,626 — 54,626 —_ — —
4.25 531,118 38,907 196,646 86,330 141,352 67,883
(in) 4.61 3,105,984 370 1,391,782 799,622 900,054 14,156
aii)) 3.28 916,521 123,246 138,729 117,223 386,946 150,377
204,723 178,407 9,383 16,933 — —
5,677,691 364,740 2,543,224 1,108,959 1,428,352 232,416
3.13 237,600 — 41,500 196,100 — —
315 798,007 2,812 623,409 171,781 5 —
2.85 77,595 — 39,440 38,123 — 32
2.91 134,500 — 121,677 12,823 — —
1.59 3,407,636 14,605 2,647,574 503,511 241,939 7
4.17 441,244 — 199,063 88,880 116,353 36,948
168,676 163,769 2,393 2,514 - -
5,265,258 181,186 3,675,056 1,013,732 358,297 36,987
412,433 183,554 (1,131,832) 95,227 1,070,055 195,429
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2016 12 31
O
( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) )
1.52 553,328 37,488 515,840 — — —
1.40 208,641 — 206,641 2,000 — —
2.56 167,208 24 80,460 86,724 — —
2.30 170,804 — 170,776 28 — —
4.01 1,035,728 28,164 352,938 442,532 169,148 42,946
(ii)) 4.82 2,802,384 349 1,158,361 906,588 724,573 12,513
(iii)) 3.41 818,053 24,339 156,396 188,124 298,639 150,555
174,904 146,546 21,633 6,725 — —
5,931,050 236,910 2,663,045 1,632,721 1,192,360 206,014
3.02 184,050 — 39,000 145,050 — —
2.81 981,446 1,881 770,427 208,588 — 550
2.10 83,723 — 53,943 29,780 — —
2.42 120,342 — 117,349 2,993 — —
1.68 3,639,290 14,658 2,731,303 580,926 310,524 1,879
3.55 386,946 — 88,582 194,164 47,258 56,942
150,757 150,309 245 203 — —
5,546,554 166,848 3,800,849 1,161,704 357,782 59,371
384,496 70,062 (1,137,804) 471,017 834,578 146,643
Q)
i
2017 12 31
43,660 2016 12 31 54,540
Giii)
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
100 (6,328) (1,229) (7,845) (1,442)
100 6,328 1,229 7,845 1,442
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(i)
(i)
2017 12 31
( ( (

551,528 15,956 650 166 568,300
83,703 25,650 8,411 6,586 124,350
133,686 28,356 6,703 3,324 172,069
54,626 — — — 54,626
531,118 — — — 531,118
2,880,887 106,687 103,638 14,772 3,105,984
846,759 46,739 18,687 4,336 916,521
199,761 1,904 1,618 1,440 204,723
5,282,068 225,292 139,707 30,624 5,677,691
237,600 — — — 237,600
769,690 15,103 349 12,865 798,007
66,913 10,411 253 18 77,595
134,384 116 — — 134,500
3,053,751 201,668 128,314 23,903 3,407,636
421,420 19,122 702 — 441,244
159,456 1,966 3,381 3,873 168,676
4,843,214 248,386 132,999 40,659 5,265,258
438,854 (23,094) 6,708 (10,035) 412,433
938,064 117,615 20,124 18,951 1,094,754
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C () (20,790) 9,158 21,489 7,532 17,389
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2016 12 31
( ( (

( ) ) ) ) ( )
524,885 27,676 601 166 553,328
158,350 29,861 12,451 7,979 208,641
139,008 17,843 8,392 1,965 167,208
170,804 — — — 170,804

1,035,728 — — — 1,035,728
2,534,542 169,570 83,657 14,615 2,802,384
751,958 33,959 25,898 6,238 818,053
125,301 41,890 4,163 3,550 174,904
5,440,576 320,799 135,162 34,513 5,931,050
184,050 — — — 184,050
932,435 41,923 815 6,273 981,446
57,671 25,688 197 167 83,723
118,515 1,827 — — 120,342
3,304,504 181,508 119,014 34,264 3,639,290
369,652 16,817 477 — 386,946
126,796 14,603 3,711 5,647 150,757
5,093,623 282,366 124,214 46,351 5,546,554
346,953 38,433 10,948 (11,838) 384,496
958,523 90,017 12,151 15,059 1,075,750

¢ () 31,003 (16,931) 12,341 (16,575) 9,838
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
582 6 804 15
(582) (6) (804) (15)
O] 500
(i)
(iii)
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2017 12 31
( ) ( ) «( )« ) ( )« )« )
(O]
96,481 3,523 1,923 — — 466,373 568,300
69,392 50,819 4,139 — — — 124,350
400 86,928 84,741 — — — 172,069
— 54,626 — — — — 54,626
504 196,142 91,944 174,645 67,883 — 531,118
(i 12,973 495,684 769,740 862,643 919,143 45,801 3,105,984
ii
(i) 1,114 96,202 124,076 417,814 155,248 122,067 916,521
69,662 47,606 55,520 12,831 7,357 11,747 204,723
250,526 1,031,530 1,132,083 1,467,933 1,149,631 645,988 5,677,691
— 41,550 196,050 — — — 237,600
240,616 385,586 171,800 5 — — 798,007
— 39,440 38,123 — 32 — 77,595
— 121,677 12,823 — — — 134,500
1,982,218 670,433 513,039 241,939 7 — 3,407,636
— 199,063 88,880 116,353 36,948 — 441,244
68,746 42,866 40,546 6,506 1,430 8,582 168,676
2,291,580 1,500,615 1,061,261 364,803 38,417 8,582 5,265,258
(2,041,054) (469,085) 70,822 1,103,130 1,111,214 637,406 412,433
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2016 12 31
( ) ) )« ) ) ) )
O]
66,247 85 18,865 — — 468,131 553,328
101,482 105,159 2,000 —_ —_ —_ 208,641
— 80,442 86,742 — — 24 167,208
— 170,775 29 - — — 170,804
— 352,938 442,532 197,312 42,946 — 1,035,728
(i) 15,529 532,820 919,444 588,000 706,599 39,992 2,802,384
1
iii 3,015 122,827 187,363 326,963 156,607 21,278 818,053
(i)
25,929 37,816 51,983 13,095 4,480 41,601 174,904
212,202 1,402,862 1,708,958 1,125,370 910,632 571,026 5,931,050
— 39,000 145,050 — — — 184,050
183,673 588,635 208,588 — 550 — 981,446
— 53,943 29,780 — — — 83,723
- 117,349 2,993 —_ —_ —_ 120,342
2,202,231 584,576 539,205 311,399 1,879 — 3,639,290
—_ 85,346 197,319 47,340 56,941 —_ 386,946
82,716 17,322 34,817 7,247 4,056 4,599 150,757
2,468,620 1,486,171 1,157,752 365,986 63,426 4,599 5,546,554
(2,256,418) (83,309) 551,206 759,384 847,206 566,427 384,496
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ooooooo
2017 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
(i)

96,481 5,348 7,820 — — 466,373 576,022

69,392 51,126 4,353 124,871

400 87,275 88,704 — — — 176,379

— 54,664 — — — — 54,664

504 198,785 104,126 207,422 83,377 — 504,214

iy 14,928 527,401 851,330 1,121,708 1,373,413 48,140 3,936,920
1

(i) 1,114 103,323 145,063 470,191 171,707 122,117 1,013,515

69,662 47,606 55,520 12,831 7,357 11,747 204,723

252,481 1,075,528 1,256,916 1,812,152 1,635,854 648,377 6,681,308

— 42,083 203,230 — — — 245,313

240,617 391,400 178,750 6 — — 810,773

— 39,494 38,166 — 33 — 77,693

— 122,362 13,009 — — — 135,371

1,983,354 682,437 541,013 271,799 8 — 3,478,611

— 200,312 100,698 135,496 40,673 — 477,179

68,746 43,151 40,277 6,491 1,430 8,582 168,677

2,292,717 1,521,239 1,115,143 413,792 42,144 8,582 5,393,617

(2,040,236) (445,711) 141,773 1,398,360 1,593,710 639,795 1,287,691

— 395 871 (86) 20 — 1,200

— 9 (85) (295) 17 — (354)

— 386 956 209 3 — 1,554

— 1,185,850 1,750,876 27,070 3 — 2,963,799

— 1,185,464 1,749,920 26,861 — — 2,962,245
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OooooOodd
2017 12 31
427,490 71 — 427,561
310,315 — — 310,315
113,575 81,171 1,000 195,746
18,718 24,784 28,858 72,360
86,600 2,172 — 88,772
956,698 108,198 29,858 1,094,754
2016 12 31

535,313 — — 535,313
215,845 — — 215,845
87,364 74,772 1,021 163,157
15,172 27,835 31,929 74,936
84,999 1,500 — 86,499
938,693 104,107 32,950 1,075,750

(i) PBOC

(i)

D)

@

IT
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CBRC
CBRC
2013 2012 CBRC
2018 Tier 1
Tier 1 7.50 8.50 10.50
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ooooOoog
CBRC
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
Tier 1 8.49 8.64
Tier 1 9.34 9.65
11.65 11.98
Tier 1
48,935 48,935
58,977 58,636
(11,784) (1,142)
31,183 27,263
74,251 73,911
163,121 136,666
3,872 48
Tier 1 368,555 344,317
Tier 1
(849) (914)
(1,139) (840)
Tier 1 366,567 342,563
Tier 1 O) 36,811 40,107
Tier 1 403,378 382,670
Tier 2
Tier 2 60,842 65,368
37,255 26,963
1,346 7
502,821 475,008
4,317,502 3,964,448
(i) 2017 12 31 Tier 1 46

52
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2017 2016 2017 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
216,586 217,498 212,530 219,014
531,118 1,035,728 533,669 1,040,380
2,849 9,493 2,849 9,443
94,571 31,288 94,131 31,683
73,728 76,242 76,246 78,920
270,096 269,923 265,071 268,664
2017 12 31
( ) ) ( )
897 211,633 — 212,530
— 92,967 440,702 533,669
— 2,849 — 2,849
— 94,131 — 94,131
5,531 70,715 — 76,246
— 265,071 — 265,071
2016 12 31
) ) ( ) )
961 218,053 — 219,014
— 264,700 775,680 1,040,380
— 9,443 — 9,443
— 31,683 — 31,683
8,124 70,796 — 78,920
— 268,664 — 268,664
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(1) (1) (i)
( ) ( ) ( ) )
2017 12 31
3,480 35,248 — 38,728
— 2,000 1 2,001
177 19,223 — 19,400
198 5,577 — 5,775
— 2,552 1 2,553
— 62,030 — 62,030
— 868 — 868
48,906 420,925 12 469,843
189 119,259 70 119,518
104 40,843 — 40,947
— 26 — 26
744 — — 744
53,798 708,551 84 762,433
— 2,311 1 2,312
— 62,368 — 62,368
— 257 — 257
— 64,936 1 64,937
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(M O) (ii)

) ( ) ) )
2,947 6,683 — 9,630
— — 1 1

— 50,699 — 50,699

— 4,581 — 4,581

— 3,363 2 3,365

— 42,232 — 42,232

— 1,769 — 1,769
42,080 354,452 13 396,545
375 20,279 83 20,737

25 116,025 — 116,050

— 22 — 22

768 — — 768
46,195 600,105 99 646,399
— 2,811 2 2,813

— 40,045 — 40,045

— 2,201 — 2,201

— 45,057 2 45,059
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2017 12 31

2016

2016 12
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ooOoooOoo
( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
2 13 83 — 99 @ )
o — (©) — ©) 1 1
— [€)) ) — ®) — —
1 12 70 — 84 [€)) ()
( (
) ) ) ) ) ) )
3 11 70 22 107 ®3) )
1 — — — 1 (€)) (D)
— 1 7 — 8 — —
() — — (22) (24) 2 2
— 1 6 — 7 — —
2 13 83 — 99 @ @
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(i) CITIC
65.37

2015 12 31
CNTC
CBRC

2015
2,292,579,000
2016 17

29

(b)

H

CITIC
4.39
CNTC
2016 11 16
4.74

H 2,446,265,000
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CITIC
CITIC
2,147,469,539 CNTC
2016 17 2016 24
4.68
CBRC
2016 11
H 2,320,177,000
2017 10
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2017 12 31
)
( ) ( ) )
337 46 _
1,573 — 8
(597) (407) (1)
9 — 11
(940) — _
2016 12 31
)
( ) ( ) )
367 13 —
1,204 — _
(588) (333) —
64 ) @an
(804) — —
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2017 12 31
Q)
( ) ( ) ( )
16,556 875 —
(172) (12) —
16,384 863 —
123 1 —
— — 7,000
418 — —
14 — —
390 — 2,341
10,104 — —
16,205 178 266
2,800 — —
6 — —
69,094 17,362 75
107 21 1
72 — —
1,979 13 —
618 190 —
7,695 1,500 —
2,130 6,446 _
496 — 450
7,793 867 _
1,710 — —
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2016 12 31

19,436 5,490 _
(182) (64) —
19,254 5,426 —
170 5 —

693 — —

28 — 19

663 — 1,111
10,743 — —

17,038 159 —
40 — 23
74,011 22,715 64
128 395 —
266 — —

257 — —
36 — —
8,181 — —
190 1,938 —

1,586 — —

7,787 290 —
1,664 — —

BBVA CNTC

CNTC
CNTC
CNTC 61(e)
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2017 12 31

12 31

@

©)

CNTC

8.27

39(b)
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3.37 2016
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ) ( )
13,495 11,475
20,134 8,120
2,860 1,981
36,489 21,576
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@
2017 12 31
2017 12 31
( ( ( ( ( (

) ) ) ) ) )
— — 26 139,020 139,046 139,046
— — — 268,247 268,247 268,247
— — — 126,794 126,794 126,794
— 34,234 16,877 — 51,111 51,111
2,001 — 119,518 — 121,519 121,519
2,001 34,234 136,421 534,061 706,717 706,717

2016 12 31
( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) )
— 22 458,390 458,412 458,412
— — 452,966 452,966 452,966
— — 126,128 126,128 126,128
1,527 9,747 — 11,274 11,274
— 20,737 — 20,737 20,737
1,527 30,506 1,037,484 1,069,517 1,069,517
58(a) (viii)
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2017 12 31
2017 12 31
5,536
1,813
2017 12 31
963
2017 12 31
31 62,000
25,901 2016 12 31
2016 12 31 57,401
2017 12 31

205,416 CITIC

©
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1,132,676 2016 12 31 956,504

2016 7,032 2,258 2016
1,613 2016 1,013

2016 12 31 949
70,488 2016 12
20,000 2017 12 31
72,372
44,233 2016 12 31 20,000
202,167 2016 12 31
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37 2017 12 31
175,601 2016 12 31
146,446
2017 12 31 127,271
2016 12 31 76,475
126,406 2016 12 31 71,976
865 2016 12 31 4,499
© @v)
2017 12 31 2017 12 31
769 2016 12 31 690
23(c)
2017 12 31 48,330
2016 12 31 69,971
38,733 2016 12 31 54,025
(©) v
23(c)
64

2017 12 31
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( )
564,105 550,987
102,139 187,080
3,348 3,372
149,511 162,708
59,976 63,590
61,795 43,546
54,626 170,804
31,674 32,081
2,886,685 2,592,552
579,623 479,591
216,586 217,498
531,118 1,030,059
23,445 22,249
20,594 17,166
1,135 838
21,605 12,589
51,249 52,703
5,359,214 5,639,413
237,500 184,000
799,259 981,326
34,088 50,042
61,236 41,478
134,384 120,342
3,181,070 3,429,060
8,024 8,062
8,153 6,050
38,395 36,447
394 244
430,176 369,829
38,533 43,831
4,971,212 5,270,711
48,935 48,935
34,955 34,955
61,359 61,359
(9,782) (1,737)
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31,183 27,263
73,370 73,370
147,982 124,557
388,002 368,702
5,359,214 5,639,413
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2017 12 31
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(iii)
(iv)

2016 12 31
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48,935 34,955 61,359 @,737) 27,263 73,370 124,557 368,702
— — — — — — 39,196 39,196
— — — (8,045) — — — (8,045)
— — — (8,045) — — 39,196 31,151
— — — — 3,920 — (3,920) —
— — — — — — (10,521) (10,521)
— — — — — — (1,330) (1,330)
48,935 34,955 61,359 9,782) 31,183 73,370 147,982 388,002
48,935 — 61,359 4,790 23,362 64,350 108,842 311,638
— — — — — — 39,010 39,010
— — — (6,527) — — — (6,527)
— — — (6,527) — — 39,010 32,483
— 34,955 — — — — — 34,955
— — — — 3,901 — (3,901) —
— — — — — 9,020 (9,020) —
_ _ — — _ — (10,374) (10,374)
48,935 34,955 61,359 @1,737) 27,263 73,370 124,557 368,702
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@
2017 12 31
(vii)

Li Qingping @ — — — — — — — — —
Sun Deshun — 900 1,112 — 351 233 — — 2,596
Zhu Gaoming — — — — — — — — —
Huang Fang — — — — — — — — —
Wan Liming — — — — — — — — —
Chang Zhenming — — — — — — — — —
Wu Xiaoqging 300 — — — — — — — —
W L Ch

ong Luen Cheung 300 . . . . . . . .

Andrew

He Cao 300 — — — — — — — —
Chen Lihua 300 — — — — — — — —
Qian Jun 300 — — — — — — — —
Cao Guogiang — 700 658 — 297 219 — — 1,874
Wang Xiuhong 300 — — — — — — — 300
Jia Xiangsen 300 — — — — — — — 300
Zheng Wei 300 — — — — — — — 300
Cheng Pusheng — 340 2,418 — 261 202 — — 3,221
Chen Panwu — 430 2,191 — 281 211 — — 3,113
Zeng Yufang — 320 2,344 — 94 340 — — 3,098
Shu Yang — — — — — — — —_ f—
2017
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Zhu Xiaohuang
Wen Shuping

Ma Haiqing

(i) Li Qingping

— 145

Chang Zhenming
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806 — 24 47 — — 1,022
539 — 85 68 — — 762
Zhu Xiaohuang Shu Yang Dou Jianzhogn Zheng Xuexue

229/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

ooooOoog
2016 12 31
(vii)

Li Qingping (i) — — — — — — — — —
Sun Deshun — 783 868 — 313 176 — — 2,140
Chang Zhenming (i) — — — — — — — — —
Zhu Xiaohuang (i) — — — — — — — — —
Huang Fang — — — — — — — — —
Wan Liming —_ —_ —_ — — — — — —
Wu Xiaoqing 300 — —_ —_ — — J— J— 300
Wong Luen Cheung

300 — — — — — — — 300

Andrew

He Cao 150 — — — — — — — 150
Chen Lihua 150 — — — — — — — 150
Qian Jun —_ — — — — — — — —
Cao Guogiang — 700 659 — 298 168 — — 1,825
Shu Yang (i) — — — — — —
Wang Xiuhong 300 — — — — 300
Jia Xiangsen 300 — — — — 300
Zheng Wei 300 — — — — 300
Cheng Pusheng — 340 791 — 253 154 — — 1,538
Vlen Shuping — 290 382 — 42 141 — — 855
Ma Haiging — 240 836 — 294 174 — — 1,544
2016
Zhang Xiaowei (i) — — — — — — — — _
Li Zheping (iii) 150 — — — — — — — 150
Yuan Ming (i) 25 — — — — — — — 25
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(i Li Qingping Zhu Gaoming Chang Zhenming 2017 2016 12 31

CITIC CITIC

(ii) Zhang Xiaowei 2016
(ii1) Li Zheping Yuanming 2016
(iv)
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(b)

2017 12 31
12 31

2017 12 31
2016

2018 26

2017

2016 12 31
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 December
Notes 2007 2016

Interest income 220,762 213474
Interest expense (121117 (107_336)
Net interest income (4] 90 645 106138
Fee and commmssion income 31,687 45360
Fee and commissicn expense (4.829) (3.080)
Net fee and commission income 7 46 858 42 280
Net trading gain g 6,583 31547
Net gain from mvestment securities Q 3,757 1,682
Net hedging gain 10 1 -
Other operating income 387 512
Operating income 157231 154,159
Operating expenses 11 (48.913) (47.272)
Operating profit before impairment 108318 106 887
Impairment losses on

- Loans and advances to customers (50,170) (45,715)

- Others (3.617) (6,573)
Total impairment losses 12 (35,787 (52 288)
Revaluation gaimn on investment properties 30 g
Share of (loss)/profit of associates and jeint ventures (285 1
Profit before tax 52,276 54,608
Income tax expense 13 (9,398) (12 822)
Profit for the Year 42 878 41,786
Net profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 42566 41,629
Non-controlling interests 312 157

10
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 Decembar
Notes 2017 2016
Profit for the vear 42 8T8 41,786
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are
met (net of tax):
- Fair value changes on available-for-sales
financial assets {8,042y (6,627
- Exchange difference on translatimg foreign
operations (2.383) 1,897
- Others @ -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss (net of tax):
- Net changes on the measurement of
defined benefit plan 8 5
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 14 (10,642) (4,723)
Total comprehensive income for the year 32236 37,061
Total comprehensive income attribute to:
Equity holders of the Bank 31,924 36,903
Non-controlling interests 312 158
Earningz per share attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of the Bank
Basic and diluted eamings per share (RMB) 15 0.84 0.85

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

1
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

31 December 31 December

Notes 2007 2016

Aszets
Cash and balances with central banks 16 568,300 533,328
Deposits with banks and non-bank financial

mstitutions 17 124350 208 641
Precious metals 3,348 3372
Placements with and loans to banks and

non-bank financial institutions 18 172,069 167 208
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 63,904 64,911
Denvative financial assets 20 63,451 47 366
Financial assets held under resale agreements 21 34,626 170,804
Interest receivables 12 32,643 320922
Loans and advances to customers 23 3,105,984 2,802 384
Awvailable-for-zale financial assets M 631,690 534,533
Held-to-maturity investments 25 216,586 217 498
Investments classified as receivables 26 331,118 1,033,728
Investments in associates and joint ventures 27 2,341 1,111
Property, plant and equipment i 21,330 17834
Intangible assets 1,139 240
Investment properties 30 205 303
Goodwill 31 249 914
Deferred tax assets 32 21,825 12,697
Other assets i3 57,843 58654
Total assets 5.677.601 5,831,050

12
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(continued)

As at 31 December 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

31 December 31 December
Notes 2017 2016
Liabilities
Bommowings from central banks 237,600 184,050
Deposits from banks and non-bank financial
institutions 33 798,007 981,446
Placements from banks and non-bank financial
institutions 36 71,593 83,723
Denvative financial liabilities 20 64,937 45,059
Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements 37 134,500 120,342
Deposits from customers 38 3407636 3,639,290
Accrued staff costs 39 2.838 8,819
Taxes payable 40 2,838 6,364
Interest payable 41 39,323 37,155
Provisions 42 304 244
Debt secunties issued 43 441244 386,946
Deferred tax habilities 32 8 11
Other liabilities 44 46,318 33,105
Total liahilities 3,265,258 3,546,554

13
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(continued)

As at 31 December 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

31 Decembar 21 December
Notes 2007 2016
Equity
Share capital 45 48935 48 935
Preference shares 46 34955 34,955
Capital reserve 47 38977 58,636
Other comprehensive income 48 (11, 784) (1,143
Surplus reserve 49 31,183 27,263
General reserve 50 74,251 73,911
Retained eamings 51 163,121 136,666
Total equity attributable to equity holders of
the Bank 399 638 379224
Non-controlling interests 52 12,795 5,272
Total equity 412 433 384 496
Total liahilities and equity 5.677.691 5,931,050

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2018,

Li Qingping Sun Deshun
Chairperson President
Fang Heying Li Peixia

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer General Manager of Finance Department

Company stamp
14
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Chma CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Conszolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2017
{(dmounts in millions qf Renminbi unless otherwize stated)

Esquity afrfadabl & aymiy buldirs of the ok Netm-comtrallag mlereits
Tt Otkir dqquity
Shard  Frafe Copid Aemnve Sarpie Genre! Redamed ey insume
Mafis__capita dhares  remivi  icoewd  renr  hemivwi  earwingsaquity holders  haldivs  Tetal eguiy
At Tunsey 2017 48935 PSS SEES (Ll 36 TS 1366 13 5,148 34,496
[E) Met pesii - - - - - L 2 =0 42378
(=] Cther cumpreienuive mome 14 - - - (MI54T) - - - - - {MLE4T)
Total comprehersine insoms - - - ] - - 42566 i Pl e
[ Comtrilration by non-cimtrelling sheeeho ke 52 - - 341 - - - - 7,506 - 7347
[} Poodfit sgppropeiation
- Afproprition o sdplu e 4 - - - - A - (300 - - -
- Approperitionm 1o pesena] reere 50 - - - - - 0 fet ] - - -
- Dividend distribation o
coditey sturebublers of the Bank 51 - - - - - - [0Sy - - (10521}
- Cividend distribaion e
srelerenze shwchailen of te Bak - - - - - - ,330) - - {1,330
- Davadend b s -cniredling nienels - - - - - - - (1] - 5
- Dividend distribation o other sguity
st holdas 5z - - - - - - - (!‘L @
At 31 Diecermber 2017 __da935 B SESTT (L7R  3LIEI T3S 1831N T4 5,140 412433

15
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes m Equity
(contmued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
{dmounts in millions qf Renminbi unless otherwize stated)

Eigusty sstribunsiile 8 aquity hodders of the Bank Pmnireding inferests
Otk A i
Fhere  Prifirdecs Capial  compechassiide  Jarpled  Oaniral | Rétsviad Orfrssy  bwframnmils
Metis  copieel  dhaves riwerve  incomd  redivve  resenw esedngs squityholders kol Toval sguisd
Aaul] Funsey D06 45535 - SEA36 3584 133 E4555 115568 Lzl 1815 32588
{£) Mt peskit - - . - . T n 146 4178
[i=] Cther etemmprsienaie ime 14 - - - (4728 - - - 1 - Amn
Total camprehermine inssms - - - {4715 - - AlEX 12 146 37,061
o) Frizzeed Scam ssusnze of jreference shiees - ETE T - - - . - - - 555
[ow) Priscoadh froe other eiily irstiusents haldes - - - - - - - - 3,31 3324
) Prodit appeefetilin
- Apreprstio b vapls resene ] - - - - asol - @S - . -
- Apprcpeition 1 gesenl reerie 1] - - - - - BASE  (RI5E) - - -
- Diwidend datribilion b
splifsey shkanckobers of the Bank - - - - - LT - I 1% Y
- Davidend dstribiilion b son-oonisslling
nlerets - - - - - - - am - L]
- Dwidend Satribilion b ol soihty
stnmens bldes 52 - - - - - - - - 146} (14)
s 3] December 2016 41935 34955 SEEI6 (L147) 17361 TR0 136665 18 5140 3B4405

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
14

239/478



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

oOoOooodn

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise siated)

Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
- revaluation (gain)loss on investments, denvatives
and investment properties
- Investment gain
- net loss/(zaim)on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
- unrealised foreign exchange (gam)/loss
- impairment losses
- depreciation and amortisation
- Interest expense on debt secunties 1ssued
- dividend income from equity investment
- Income tax paid

Subtotal
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in balances with central banks
(Increase)/decreasein deposits with banks and
non-bank financial institutions
Decrease/(increasze) m with and loans to
banks and non-bank ial institutions
Decrease/(increase) m financial assets at fair value
throngh the profit or loss
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets held under
resale agreements
Increaze in loans and advances to customers
Decrease in investments classified
as recervables
Decrease in deposits from banks and
non-bank financial institutions
Increaze mn bormowings from central banks
(Decrease)/increase in placements from banks and non-
bank financial institutions
Increaze in financial assets sold under
repurchasze agreements
(Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers
Decrease/(Increase) in other operating assets
{(Decrease)/increase in other operating liabilities

Subtotal

Net cash flows from operating activities

17
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Year ended 31 Daecember
2007 2016
52276 34,608
(1434) 1,068
(1.006) (212)
9 (62)
(415) 230
53,787 52288
2811 2,703
19.171 14,052
(178) (70}
(14.521) (14,155
112 500 110470
14,730 (46,833)
(9.442) 3,967
10,896 (49.368)
14,712 (37.851)
116,178 (32.196)
(363,544) (369.112)
503,423 73,619
(183,284) (87.181)
53,550 146,550
(4.921) 33,747
14,162 48172
(215,583) 443,232
405 (30.769)
(7.798) 7.364
(38.426) 108341
54,074 218,811
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Remminbi unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 Decamber
Notes 2007 2016

Imvesting activities
Proceeds from disposal and redemption

of investments 1,007,237 545 658
Proceads from disposal of property, plant and

equipment, land use nghts, and other assets 52 109
Cash received from equity investment income 178 20
Payments on acquisition of investments (1,131,592) (7144900
Payments on acquisition of equipment

and other assets (7.,980) (7.708)
Net cash paid for acquisition of associates

and joint ventures 27 (1,590) (100)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (133,60%) (176.451)
Financing activities
Cash received from share capital izsued 7847 -
Cash received from preference shares 46 - 34,955
Cash received from debt securities issued 43 262,800 604,406
Cash received from other equity mnstruments 1ssued 52 - 33
Cash paid for redemption of debt securities 1zsued (801 447 (507 840)
Interest paid on debt securities issued (17.699) (14,192}
Dividends paid (12.148) (10,530)
Net cash flows from financing activities 39445 110,123
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

cash equivalents (40.176) 152 483
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 Jamary 385,356 226,364
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents (7,263) 6,509
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 53 337915 385356
Cash flows from operating activities include:
Interest received 226,761 213 544
Interest paid (101 .237) (94.307)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the “Bank™ or “CINCB™) is a joint stock company
incorporated in the People’s Bepublic of China (the “PRC™ or “Mainland China™) on 31
December 2006. Headguartered in Beijing, the Bank’s registered office is located at No 9
Chaoyangmen Beidajie, Dongcheng District. Beijing | China  The Bank listed its A shares
and H shares on Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, respectively on 27 April 2007.

The Bank operates under financial services certificate No. BOOOSH111000001 issued by the
China Banking Regulatory Commission (the “CBRC™), and unified social credit code No.
91110000101690723E issued by the State Administration of Industry and Commerce of the
PEC.

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidianies (collectively the “Group™) are the
provision of corporate and personal banking services, conducting treasury business, the
provision of asset management, finance leasing and other non-banking financial services.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group mainly operates in Mainland China with branches
covering 31 provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities. In addition the Bank’s
subsidiaries have operations in Mainland China, the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Fegion of PRC (“Hong Kong™) and other overseas countries and regions.

For the purpose of these consclidated financial statements, Mainland China refers to the
PRC excluding Hong Kong, the Macan Special Admimistrative Region of the PRC
{"Macan™) and Taiwan Owerseas refers to countries and repions other than Mainland
China.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank
on 26 March 2018.

2 Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprise the
Bank and its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

(a) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 Jammary to 31 December.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Functional currency and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Bank is Renminbi (“FME™). The functional cwrencies of
overseas subsidiaries are determined in accordance with the primary economic environment
in which they cperate, and are translated into Fenminbi for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements according to WNote 4(b)(i1). The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented in Renminbd and, unless otherwise stated, expressed
in millions of Renminbi.

Statement of compliance

These consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™), and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Goverming the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revalvation of available-for-sale financial assets, and
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the nse of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the

process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Statement of compliance (continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has adopted the following new or amendments to the International Financial
Feporting Standards (“IFR.Ss™), issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{“IASB™), that are mandatorily effective for the current year and relevant to the Group.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes
Amendments to [AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
Amendments to IFRS 12 IASE Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016 cycle

Amendments fo I45 12 ; Income Taxes

The IASE has issued amendments to IAS 12 - Income taxes. These amendments on the
recognition of deferved tax assets for unrealised losses clarify how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt imstruments measured at fair value. The adoption of the
amendments does not have a significant impact on the Group's consclidated financial
statements.

Amendments fo I45 7 ; Statement af Cash Flows

The TASE has issued an amendment to TAS 7 introducing an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities. The amendment is part of the IASB's Disclosure Initiative, which continues to
explore how financial statement disclosure can be improved. The adoption of the
amendments does not have a significant impact on the Group's conselidated financial
statements .

Amendmenis fo IFRS 12 TASE Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016 cyele

The IASB Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016 Cycle include the amendments to IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities. These amendments clarify the scope of IFRS 12 by
specifying that the disclosure requirements, expect for those summarised financial
information for subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures apply to an entity’s interests
which are classified as held for sale or discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 3.
The adoption of the amendments does not have a significant impact cn the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

The adoption of these amendments does not have a significant impact on the operating
results, comprehensive income, or financial position of the Group.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards and new
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Effactive for annual periods begmning

on or after
Amendments to IFES 2 Share - based Payvment 1 Jamumary 2018
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfer of Imvestment 1 Jammary 2018
Property
Amendments to IAS 28 IASE Anmial Improvements 1 Jammary 2018
2014 - 2016 cyele
IFES 9 Financial Instruments 1 Jammary 2018
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with 1 Jamumary 2019
Megative Compensation
IFES 15 Fevenue from Contracts with 1 Jamumary 2018
Cuostomers
International Financial Foreizn Coorency 1 Jamumary 2018
Reporting Interpretations Transactions and Advance
Compuites (“TFRICT) 22 Consideration
IFES 16 Leases 1 Jamumary 2019
IFRIC 23 Uncertamty over Income Tax 1 Tammary 2019
Treatments

Amendmenis fo IFRS 2 ; Share - based Payment

On 20 June 2016, the IASE issued an amendment to IFES 2, “Share-based Payment™,
addressing three classification and measurement issues.

The amendment addresses the accounting for cash-settled share-based payments and
equity-settled awards that include a “net settlement™ feature in respect of withholding taxes.

The amendment clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled share-based payments and
the accounting for modifications that change an award from cash-settled to equity-settled.
It also infroduces an exception to the principles in IFRS 2 that will require an award to be
treated as if it is wholly equity-settled, where an employer is obliged to withhold an amount
for the employee’s tax cbligation associated with a share-based payment and pay that
amount to the tax authority. The adeption of the amendments will not have a significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2017 (continued)

Amendmenis fo I45 40 Transfer of Invesiment Property

On 8 Decemeber 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 40 - Transfer of Investment
Property. These amendments specify that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from,
investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use of a property supported
by evidence that a change in use has occurred; They also clarify that the list of
circumstances set out in IAS 40 is non-exhavstive list of examples of evidence that a
change in use has occurred instead of an exhaustive list. The examples have been expanded
to include assets under construction and development and not only transfers of completed
properties. The adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments fo IS 28 T45E Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016 cyele

The IASB Annual Improvements 2014 - 2016 Cycle include the amendments to IAS 28 -
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. These amendments clarify that the election
to measure investees at fair value through profit or loss is available for each investment in
an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.
The adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Statement of compliance (continuned)

Standards and amendments that are not yet gffective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2017 (continued)

IFRS 8: Financial Instrumenis

In July 2014, the IASE issued the final version of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (IFRS 9),
which replaces IAS 30, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39).
This final version includes regquitements on: (1) Classification and measurement of
financial assets and labilities; (2) Impairment of financial assets; and (3) General hedge
accounting.

The Group from 1 January 2018 will apply IFES 9. According to the provisions for the
transition from IAS 39, compamies should retrospectively adjust the retained earnings or
other comprehensive income from 2018 in which the standard is adopted without restating
the comparative fipures of the prior periods for the effect of the changes to classification
and measurement and impairment of finaneial assets. IFRS 9 includes an accounting policy
choice to retain the IAS 39 requirements for hedge accounting and the Group will elect to
retain the TAS 39 requirements.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses (ECL) rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under TAS
39 It applies to financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, contract assets under IFRS 15, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain finanecial guarantee contracts. An impairment
allowanece (ot provisicn in the case of commitments and guarantees) for ECL is required at
initial recognition of such financial assets. The assessment of credit risk and the estimation
of ECL are required to be unbiased and probability weighted, and should incorporate all
available information which is relevant to the assessment including information about past
events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of economic conditions
at the reporting date. The estimation of ECL should take into account the time value of
money. Consequently, the recognition and measurement of impairment is more forward-
looking than under IAS 30, and the resulting impairment charge may tend to be more
volatile.

As at 1 January 2018, the Group estimates that the shareholders’ equity may be decreased
by EMB 6.1 billion due to the adoption of IFRS 9, attributed by a decrease in net assets

due to the implementation of ECL and an offsetting effect from the changes in
classification and measurement.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Statement of compliance (continuned)

Standards and amendments that are not yet gffective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2017 (continued)

Amendments fo IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

In October 2017, the IASB amended IFRS 9 by issuing Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation. As a result of those amendments, particular financial assets with
prepayment features that may result in reascnable negative compensation for the early
termination of the contract are eligible to be measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The adoption of this amendment will not have a
significant impact on the Grouwp’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRE 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFES 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to recognise
revenue and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step approach. The core principle
is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promized goods or
services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away from a
revenue recognition model based on an “earnings processes’ to an “asset-liability” approach
based on transfer of control. IFES 15 provides specific guidance on capitalisation of
contract cost and license arrangements. It also includes a cohesive set of disclosure
requirements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arizing from the entity’s contracts with customers. The adoption of this new standard will
not have a significant impact on the Group’s consclidated financial statements.

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee [“IFRIC") 22: Forsign
Cwvency Transactions and Advance Considerafion

The IASE issued IFRIC 22 Foreipn Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration to
clarify the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use cn
inifial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received or
paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The Group anticipates that the adoption
of this interpretation will not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Statement of compliance (continuned)

Standards and amendments that are not yet gffective and have not been adopted before
their effective dates by the Group in 2017 (continued)

IFRS 16: Leases

IFES 16 addresses the defimition of a lease, recognition and measurement of leases and
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about
the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. The standard replaces IAS 17 “Leases’,

and related interpretations.

IFES 16 now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments
and a right-of-use asset for virtually all lease contracts, unless the underlying asset is of low
value or the lease is short-term in the consclidated statement of financial position
Accordingly. a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into principal portion and an interest portion
for presentation in the consclidated statement of cash flows.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for group’s operating leases when group
as a lessee. As at 31 December 2017, the group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RME 12 314 million (Note 34 (d)). The Group has not yet determined to
what extent these commitments will result in the recognition of nght-of-use assets and
liabilities for future payments and how this will affect the Group’s profit and classification
of cash flows. Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-term
and low-value leases and some commitments may relate to arrangements that will not
qualify as leases under IFRS 16.

For the lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. The Group expects that. as a
lessor, there will be no significant impact on the financial information.

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmenis

In June 2017, the IASB issued IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments to
clarify how to apply the recognifion and measurement requitements in IAS 12 when there
is uncertainty over income tax freatments. The Group anticipates that the adoption of this
interpretation will not have a significant impact on the Group's consclidated financial
statements.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies
Consolidated financial statements
Business combinations involving enterprises under common control

A business combination involving enterprises under common confrol is a business
combination in which all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the business combination and that comtrol is not
transitory. The assets and liabilities assumed are measured based on their carrying amounts
in the financial statements of the acquiree at the combination date. The difference between
the carrying amount of the net assets acquired and the consideration paid for the
combination (or the total face value of shares issued) is adjusted against share premium in
the capital reserve with any excess adjusted against retained eamings. The issuance costs
of equity or debt securities as a part of the consideration for the acquisition are included in
the carrying amounts of these equity or debt securities upon initial recognition. Other
acquisition-related costs are expensed when incurred. The combination date is the date on
which one combining enterprise obtains control of other combining enterprises.

Business combinations not involving entities under common control

A business combination involving entities not under common control i3 a business
combination in which all of the combining entities are not ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties before the business combination. Where (i) the aggregate of the acquisition
date fair value of assets transferred (including the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree), liabilities incumred or assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer,
in exchange for control of the acquiree, exceeds (11) the acquirer’s interest in the acquisition
date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. the difference is recognised as
goodwill (Mote 4(m)). If (1) is less than (11), the difference is recognised in the consclidated
statement of profit or loss for the current period. The issuance costs of equity or debt
securities as a part of the consideration for the acquisition are included in the carrying
amounts of these equity or debt securities upon initial recognition Other acguisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Any difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount of the assets transferred as consideration is recognised in the consoclidated
statement of profit or loss. The acquiree’s identifiable asset, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, if the recognition criteria are met, are recognised by the Group at their
acquisition date fair value. The acquisition date is the date on which the acquirer obtains
control of the acquiree.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

For a business combination not involving enterprises under common control and achieved
in stages, the Group remeasures its previously-held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair
value at the acquisition date. The difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount is recognised as investment income for the curent period; the amount recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to the previously-held equity interest in the acquire
will be reclassified to profit or loss.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Consolidated financial statements {eontinued)
Business combinations not invelving entities under commeon control(continued)

in the owners® equity under equity accounting, are transferred to investment income in the
period in which the acquisition cocurs.

Consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidated financial statements is based on control and the consolidated
financial statements comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries, as well as structured entities
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Bank has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Bank and other parties) are considered. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consclidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that confrol ceases.

Non-controlling interest is presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position within owners® equity. Profit or loss and total comprehensive income attributable
to non-controlling equity holders are presented separately in the consclidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the amount of loss for the current period attributable to the non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary exceeds the non-controlling interest’s portion of the opening balance of equity
holders’ equity of the subsidiary, the execess is allocated against the non-controlling
interests.

When the accounting petiod or accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those
of the Bank the Bank makes necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the
subsidiary based on the Bank’'s own accounting period or accounting policies. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows, and any worealised profits arising from infra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consclidated financial statements. Unrealised
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated only limited to the extent that
this is no evidence of impairment.

Where a subsidiary was acquoired during the reporting period, through a business
combination involving enterprises under common confrol, the financial statements of the
subsidiary are included in the consclidated financial statements as if the combination had
occurred at the date the vltimate controlling party first obtained control. Therefore the
opening balances and the comparative figures of the consclidated financial statements are
restated.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Consolidated financial statements (continued)
Consolidated financial statements (continued)

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting period, through a business
combination not involving enterprises under common control, the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are included in the scope of consolidation from the
date that control commences, based on the fair value of those identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acguisition date.

Where the Bank acquires a non-controlling interest from a subsidiary’s non-controlling
equity holders or disposes of a portion of an interest in a subsidiary without a change in
control, the difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the amount of the consideration paid or received is adjusted to capital reserve
(share preminm) in the consolidated statement of financial position. If the credit balance of
capital reserve (share premium) is insufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained earnings.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary due to the disposal of a portion of an equity
investment, the Group derecognises assets, liabilities, non-controlling interests and other
related items in equity holders’ equity in relation to that subsidiary. The remaining equity
investment is remeasured at its fair value at the date when control is lost. Any gains or
losses therefore incurred are recognised as investment income for the current period when
the control is lost.

If there is a difference between the accounting entity of a Group and the accounting entity
of the bank or a subsidiary on mearsuring the same transaction, the transaction will be
adjusted from the perspective of the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

Foreign curvency translafions
Translation of foreign currency transactions

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from investors, the capital is
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign
currency tramsactions are, on initial recognition, translated into Renminbi by applying the
spot exchange rates at the dates of the transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign
curencies are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the reporting date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the transaction date. Non-monetary items
that are measured at fair value in a foreign cumency are translated using the foreign
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined. The differences arising from the
translation of available-for-sale equity investments is recogmised in other comprehensive
income. Changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency
classified as awvailable for sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carrying
amount. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income. The translation differences resulting from
other monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Translation of financial statements denominated in foreign currency

Financial statements denominated in foreign currency are translated into Renminbi for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements. The assets and liabilities in the financial
statements denominated in foreign cumrency are translated into Renminbi at the spot
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. The equity items, except for “retained
earnings”, are translated to Fenminbi at the spot exchange rates at the dates on which such
items arose. Income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the date of the
transactions, or a rate that approximates the exchange rates of the date of the transaction
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Upon disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the translation differences
recognised in equity holders’ equity which relates to that foreign operation is transferred to
profit or loss in the period in which the disposal occurs.

The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents held or due in a foreign
currency are reported in the statement of cash flows.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Classification

The Group classifies financial instruments into different categories at inception, depending
on the purpose for which the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred, and on
the contractual terms of the financial instruments. The categories are: financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include those classified as held for
trading, and those designated by the Group upon recognition as at fair value through profit

or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is: (1) acquired or incurred principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term: (i) part of a portfolic of
identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) a derivative (except for a
derivative that 15 a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument).

Financial assets are desipnated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
when: (1) the financial assets or are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair
value basis; (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
in the gain and loss recognition arising from the difference in measurement bases of the
financial assets; or (iii) a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, i.e. an entire
hybrid (combined) contract, umless: (i) the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the hybrid (combined) contract;
or (ii) it is clear with litfle or no analysis when a similar hybrid (combined) instrument is
first considered that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets, guoted in an active
market, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the
positive intention and abdlity to hold to maturity, other than: (i) those that the Group, upon
initial recognition, designates as financial assets at fair valoe throwgh profit or loss or as
available-for-sale financial assets; (ii) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
Financial instruments {confinued)
Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market other than: (i) those that the Group
intends to sell immediately or in the near term_ which will be classified as held for trading;
(it} those that the Group. upon initial recognition, designates as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or as available-for-zale financial assets. Loans and receivables
mainly comprise balances with central banks, deposits and placements with and loans to
banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements,
investments classified as receivables, and loans and advances to customers.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as: (1) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, (i) held-to-maturity investments or (i) loans and receivables.

Financial liabilities at fair value through prafit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include those classified as held for
trading, and those designated by the Group upon recognition as at fair value through profit
ot loss.

A financial lability is classified as held for trading if it is: (1) acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; (ii) part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) a derivative (except
for a derrvative that is a financial puarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument).
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments {confinued)
Classification (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value threugh prafit or loss (confinued )

Financial liabilities are designated at fair valpe through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when: (i) the financial liabilities or are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis; (if) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch in the gain and loss recognition arising from the difference in
measurement bases of the financial liabilities; or (iif) a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, i.e. an entire hybrid (combined) contract, unless: (i) the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows that otherwise would be required by
the hybrid (combined) contract; or (if) it 15 clear with little or no analysis when a similar
hybrid (combined) instroment is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative
1s prohibited.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are financial liabilities other than those at fair value through profit
ot loss, and mainly comprise borrowings from central banks, deposits and placements from
banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements, deposits from customers and debts securities issued.

Derrvatives and embedded derivatives

Derivatives mainly include forward and swap contracts in foreign currency market and
interest rate market. The Group enters into derivatives to hedge its exposure on foreign
exchange and interest rate risks; and for customer initiated transactions. The Group adopts
hedge accounting in accordance with Note 4 (g) for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments if the hedge is effective. Other derivatives are accounted for as trading
financial assets or financial liabilities. Derivatives are recognised at fair value upon initial
recognition. Positive fair value iz recognised as assets while the negative fair value is
recognised as liabilities. Gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

Financial instruments {confinued)
Derivatives and embedded derivatives (continued)

Certain derivative is embedded infto a non-derivative instrument (the host contract). The
embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative
when (1) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to the host contract; (i1) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and (iii) the hybrid (combined)
instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. When the embedded derivative is separated, the
host contract is accounted for in accordance with Note 4 (c)(1).

Fecognition and de-recognition

All finanecial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial
position, when and only when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset, if the part being considered for de-recognition
meets one of the following conditions: (i) the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset expire; or (i) the contractual rights to recerve the cash flows of the
financial asset have been transferred, the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or (ii) the Group retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to the eventual recipient in an agreement that meets all the conditions of de-
recognition of fransfer of cash flows (“pass through™ requirements) and transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets the criteria for de-recognition, the
difference between the two amounts below is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss:
- the carrying amount of the financial asset transferred;
- the sum of the consideration received from the transfer and any cumulative gain or loss
that has been recognised directly in equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
Financial instruments {confinued)
Fecognition and de-recognition (continued)

Financial assets {continued)

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing invelvement and recognises an associated liability.

Saecuritisation

As part of its operations, the Group securitises financial assets, generally through the sale of
these assets to structured entities which issue securities to investors. Further details on
prerequisites for de-recognition of financial assets are set out above. When the
securitisation of finaneial assets that qualify for de-recognition. the relevant financial assets
are de-recognised in their entirety and a new financial asset or liabilities is recognised
regarding the interest in the unconsolidated securitisation vehicles that the Group acquired.
When the securitisation of financial assets that do not qualify for de-recognition, the
relevant financial assets are not derecognised, and the consideration paid by third parties
are recorded as a financial liability; when the securitisation of financial assets that partially
gualify for de-recognition, where the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes these
financial assets and recognizes separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations
created or retained in the transfer Otherwise the Group continmes to recognize these
financial assets to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Sales of assets on condition of repurchase

De-recognition of financial assets sold on condition of repurchase is determined by the
economic substance of the transaction. If a financial asset is sold under an agreement to
repurchase the same or substantially the same asset at a fixed price or at the sale price plos
a reasonable return the Group will not derecognise the asset. If a financial asset is sold
together with an option to repurchase the finaneial asset at its fair value at the time of
repurchase (in case of transferor sells such financial asset), the Group will derecopnise the
financial asset.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
(e} Financial instruments {continued)
(iii) Recognition and de-recognition (continued)

Financial liability

Financial liability is derecognised only when: (1) the underlying present obligation specified
in the contracts is discharged/cancelled, or (i) an agreement between the Group and an
existing lender to exchange the original financial liability with a new financial hability with
substantially different terms, or a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability is accounted for as an extingpishment of the original financial liability
and recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(iv) DMMeasurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial instrument not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the instruments. Transaction costs for
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and
other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost under effective interest rate
method, while other categories of financial instruments are measured at far valoe
Investments in available-for-sale equity instruments that do not have a gquoted market price
in an active matrket and fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost.

Gain or loss on a financial instrument classified as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Gain or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is recognised directly as other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or losses
arising from the amortised cost portion of monetary financial assets which are recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gains or losses previcusly recognised in other
comprehensive income are removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest on available-for-sale financial assets
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the consclidated statement of
profit or loss. Dividend income from the available-for-sale equity instruments is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the investee declares the dividends.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

(e} Financial instruments {continued)

(iv) Measurement (continued)
When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains or losses on disposal include the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments which are previously recopnised in other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from other comprehensive income to the profit or loss.
For financial instrument carried at amortized cost, a gain or less is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the financial instrument is derecognised,
impaired, or through the amortisation process.

(v) Impairment
The Group assesses at the reporting date the carrying amount of a financial asset (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss). If there is objective evidence that the financial
asset 15 impaired, the Group will recognize the impairment loss in the consclidated
statement of profit or loss.
Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired incloded but 13 not limited to:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract by the borrower or issuer, such as a default or delinguency m
interest or principal payments;

- the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower™s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter banlouptey or other financial recrganisations;

- disappearance of an active market for that financial asset becanse of financial difficulties
of the 1ssuer;
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e} Financial instruments {continued)
() Impairment (continued)

- observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including: adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group, an
inerease in the unemployment rate in the geographical area of the borrowers, a decrease
in propetty prices for mortgages in the relevant area, or adverse changes in industry
conditions that affect the borrowers in the group;

- significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the borrower or issuer operates,
mndicating that the advances to borrowers or the cost of an investment in an equity
mstmment may not be recovered,;

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost; and

- other objective evidence indicating there 1s an impairment of a financial asset.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists indrvidually for
all corporate loans, investments classified as receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
and held-to-maturity investments, and collectively for the remainder of financial assets
{other than those at fair value through profit or loss). If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individvally assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not. it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Finanecial assets
that are mndividually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 15 or
continues to be recogmised are not included in collective assessment of impairment.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
(e} Financial instruments {continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)

Impairment af financial asseis carried at amortised cost

For financial assets camied at amortised cost, including loans and advances to customers,
investments classified as receivables and held-to-maturity investments, an impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the assets are impaired. The impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present valoe of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been mmcumred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. For financial assets with variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract.

The calculation of present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised
financial asset reflects the cash flows that are expected to result from foreclosure, less the
cost of obtaining and selling the collateral

Financial assets will be grouped according to the similarities of credit risk characteristics
during the portfolic assessment of impairment. These credit risk characteristics are usually
related to the future cash flow measurement of the asset being inspected, reflecting the
debtor's ability to repay all due amounts in accordance with the contractual terms of these
assets.

Impairment reversal and written-off’

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss on financial assets carried at
amortised cost including leans and advances to customers, Investments classified as
receivables and held-to-maturity investments decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event ocowring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. The reversal shall not result in a camying amount
of the financial asset that exceeds the amortised cost at the date of the reversal, had the
impairment not been recognised. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

When the Group determines that a financial asset camied at amortised cost has no
reasonable prospect of recovery after the Group has completed all the necessary legal or

other proceedings. the financial asset carried at amortised cost is written off against its
allowance for impairment losses. If in a subsequent period the financial asset carried at
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amortised cost written off is recovered, the amount recovered will be recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss through impairment losses.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned))
(e} Financial instruments (continued)
(v) Impairment (continued)

Rescheduled loans

ERescheduled loans are loans that have been rescheduled due to deterioration in the
bomrower’s financial position and where the Group has made concessions that it would not
otherwise consider. Where possible, the Group seeks to reschedule loans rather than to take
possession of collateral This may invelve the agreement of new loan conditions. The
group has analysed de-recognition of rescheduled loans in accordance with Note 4 (e){iit).
Management continnously reviews rescheduled loans to ensure that all criteria are met and
that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to individual or
collective impairment assessment, and the impairment allowance is calculated using the
loan’s original effective interest rate.

Available-for-sale financial assefs

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss arising from
decline in fair value that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss even though the finaneial asset has not been derecognised. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is removed from other comprehensive income is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
the consclidated statement of profit or loss. For equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss, measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

iz removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continned))
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assefs {continued)

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity instrument is an objective
indicator of impairment of available-for-sale equity instrument. The Group separately
checks all available-for-sale equity investments at reporting date. If a decline in the far
value of an equity instroment is below its initial cost by 50% or more, or fair value is below
cost for one year or longer at reporting date, it indicates that such an equity instrument is
impaired. If such a decline in fair valoe is below its initial cost by 20% or more but not up
to 50% at reporting date, the Group takes other factors such as price wvolatility into
consideration to judge whether the equity instrument is impaired.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be
treated in accordance with following principle:

- impairment loss on debt instroments classified as available-for-sale should be reversed,
with the amount of the reversal recognised profit or loss;

- impairment loss on equity instruments classified as available-for-zale should not be
reversed through profit or loss, and any subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recogmised directly in equity;

- impairment loss of available-for-sale equity investments carried at cost should not be
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
(e} Financial instruments (continued)
(vi) Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately in the statement of
financial position and are not offset. However, financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position only if the Group
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the transactions are
intended to be settled on a met basis, or by realising the asset and settling the liability
simultanecusly.

(vii) Financial aszets held under resale and financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are fransactions which the Group acquires
financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined price in the fiture date under resale
agreements. Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements are transactions which the
Group sells finanecial assets which will be repurchased at a predetermined price in the future
date under repurchase agreements.

Cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts held under resale and repurchase
agreements on the statement of financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are
recorded in memorandum accounts as off-balance sheet items. Assets sold under
repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in the statement of financial
position.

The difference between the resale and repurchase consideration and that between the
purchase and sale consideration, should be expired over the pericd of the respective
transaction uvsing the effective interest method and are included in interest expense and
interest income, respectively.

(viit) Equity instrument
The consideration received from the issuance of equity instruments net of transaction costs

iz recognised in equity. Consideration and transaction costs paid by the Bank for
repurchasing self-issued equity instruments are deducted from equity holders” equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and other precious metals. Precious metals that are not
related to the Grouwp's precious metals trading activities are initially measured at acquisition
cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Precious
metals acquired by the Group for trading purposes and precious metals leasing are initially
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract 15 entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting zain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item is being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities (fair value hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective i offsetting changes in fair values of hedged
items.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as fair value
hedges are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, together with any

changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged
risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the
carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to profit or loss over the period to maturity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
Interests in subsidiaries

In the Bank's statement of financial position, interests in subsidiaries are accounted for
wsing the cost less impairment losses (see Note 4 (0)). Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. Dividends declared by subsidiaries are recognised in investment
income.

Defermination of investment cost

For long-term eguity investments acguited through a business combination: for long-term
equity investments acquired through a business combination involving enterprizses under
common control, the investment cost shall be the absotbing party’s share of the carrying
amount of owners’ equity of the party being absorbed at the combination date; for long-
term equity investment acguired through a business combination involving enterprises not
under common control, the investment cost shall be the combination cost.

For long-term equity investments acguired not through a business combination: for long-
term equity investment acquired by payment in cash, the initial investment cost shall be the
purchase price actually paid; for long-term equity investments acquired by issuing equity
securities, the initial investment cost shall be the fair value of the equity securities 1ssued.

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. A joint venture is
an arrangement whereby the Group and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement A joint venture refers
to the Group or Bank collaborating with another party on a specific project but solely has
rights on its net property.

An investment in an associate ot a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method,
unless the investment is classified as held for sale.

The Group adopts the following accounting treatments when using the equity method:

- Where the initial investment cost of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition,
the investment is initially recognised at the inifial investment cost. Where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group’s interest in the fair value of the inwvestee’s
wdentifiable net assets at the date of acquisition, the investment 1s initially recognised at
the investor's share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets, and the
difference 1z charged to profit or loss.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(g Interests in associates and joint ventures(continued)

- After the acquisition of the investment, the Group recognises its share of the investee’s
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as investment income or losses and other
comprehensive income respectively, and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment
accordingly. Once the investee declares any cash dividends or profit distributions, the
catrying amount of the investment is reduced by that amount atttibutable to the Group.
Changes in the Group's share of the investee’s owners’ equity, other than those arising
from the investee’s profit or loss, other comprehensive income or profit distribution, is
recognised in the Group’s equity, and the canrying amount of the investment is adjosted
accordingly.

The Group recognises its share of investee’s profits or losses, other comprehensive
mcome and other changes in equity holders’ equity after making appropriate adjustments
to align the accounting policies or accounting periods with those of the Group based on
the fair wvalue of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates or joint ventures. When an entity in the Group transacts with the Group’s
associate, profits and losses resulting from the transaction are recognized in the Group’s
consclhidated finanecial statements only to the extent of the interest in the associate that
are not related to the Group. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The Group discontinues recognising its share of net losses of investees after the carrying
amount of investment to the associates and joint ventures and any long-term interest that
in substance forms part of the Group’s net interest in the associates and joint ventures
are reduced to zero, except to the extent that the Group has an obligation to assume
additional losses. Additional loss is recognized only to the extent that the Group has
incwtved legal or constructive cbligations or made payments on behalf of that assoeiate.
Where profits are subsequently made by the associates and joint ventures, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an investee but does not have contrel or joint control over those policies.

The Group makes provisions for impairment of interests in associates and joint ventures in
accordance with the principles described in Note 4 (o).
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is asset held by the Group for the conduct of business and is
expected to be used for more than one year. Construction-in-progress, an item of property,
represents property under construction and is transferred to property when ready for its
intended use.

Cost

Property, plant and egquipment is stated at cost upon initial recognition. Costs of a
purchased property, plant and equipment comprise purchase price, related taxes, and any
directly attributable expenditures for bringing the asset to wotking condition for its
intended use. Costs of a self-constructed property, plant and equipment comprise
construction materials, direct labor costs and those expenditures necessarily incwwed for
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and

equipment.

Subsequent costs

The Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment
the cost of replacing part of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as an expense when incurred.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

Property, plant and equipment {eonfinued)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost, less residual value if applicable, of property,
plant and equipment and is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The estimated nseful lives are as follows:

Estimated
Estimated usefil lives resicdual value Depreciation rate
Buildings 30 - 35 years 0e-3% 2.71%-3.33%
Computer equipment and others 3 - 10 years 0%e-10% 9.00%-33.33%

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress.

The residual value and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as of
each reporting date.

Impairment

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policies as set out in Note 4 (o).

Disposal and retitement
Gains or losses arising from the disposal or retirement of property. plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of

the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of
disposal or retirement.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less amortisation and included under other assets. Land
wse rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the respective periods of grant. When
the costs attributable to the land use rights cannot be reliably measured and separated from
that of the building at inception, the costs are included in the cost of buildings and recorded

in property, plant and equipment.

Impairment loss on land use rights is accounted for in accordamce with the accounting
policies as set out in Note 4 (o).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. The cost less estimated net residual values
(if any) of the intangible assets 15 amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives,
and charged to profit or loss. Impaired intangible assets are amortised net of accumulated
impairment losses.

Impairment loss on intangible assets is accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies as set out in Note 4 (o). Impaired intangible assets are amortised net of
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets which are not yet available for use should be estimated at least at each
financial year-end, even if there was no indication that the assets were impaired.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned and/or held under a
leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using the fair value model for
subsequent measurement when either of the following conditions 1s met:

- Thete is an active property market in the location in which the investment property is
sitnated;

- The Group can obtain the market price and other relevant information regarding the
same type of or similar properties from the property market, so as to reasonably estimate
the fair value of the investment property.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

(k) Investment properties {continued)

Investment properties are stated in the consclidated statement of financial position at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

(1}  Lease

A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease. A finance lease is a
lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a
leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of whether the legal title to the asset is eventually
transferred. An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

(i) Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing the sum of the
minimum lease receipts and unguaranteed residuval valwe, net of initial divect costs, all
discounted at the implicit lease rate (the “net lease investment™), is included in “loans and
advances to customers”™ on consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
receivable. At the commencement of the lease term, the Group recognises the aggrepate of
the minimum lease receipts determined at the inception of a lease and the initial direct costs
as finance lease receivable. The difference between the net lease investment and the
aggregate of their present value 1s recognised as unearned finance income which is included
in “loans and advances to customers™ as well. Unrecognised finance income wnder finance
leases is amortised using the effective interest rate method owver the lease term. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases are accounted for in the same
manner as finance leases.

Impairment losses are accounted in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Note 4 (c)(v).

When the Group is a lessee under finance leases, an amount equal to the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease, is included in “property, plant and equipment™ on
the consolidated statement of financial positicn as a leased asset. An amount equals to the
minimum lease payments is included in “other liabilities™ on the consolidated statement of
financial position recognised as a long-term payable. The difference between the recorded
amount of the leased asset and the recorded amount of the payable shall be accounted for as
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nnrecogmised finance charge. The Group recogmises financial charge for the current period
using the effective interest method.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Lease {continued)
Finance leases (continued)

Depreciation policies are accounted in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
Note 4 (h) and impairment losses are accounted in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in Note 4 (o). If there is a reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership
of the leased asset by the end of the lease term, the leased asset should be depreciated over
its useful life. Otherwise, leased asset is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
its estimated useful life.

Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position according to their nature and, where applicable,
are depreciated in accordance with the Group’s depreciation pelicies, as set out in Note 4(h)
except where the asset is classified as an investment property. Impairment losses are
accounted in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note 4{c). Revenue
arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance with the Group’s revenue
recognition policies, as set out in Note 4 (w)(iv).

When the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as an intepral patt of the aggregate
net lease payvments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incured.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Goodwill is not amortised.
Goodwill ansing from a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating umit

{(“"CGU™) or a group of CGUs, that iz expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. The Group performs impairment test on goodwill annually.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of a business combination is recogmised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

Goodwill {continued)

On disposal of the related CGU or a group of CGUs, any attributable amount of the
purchased goodwill net of allowance for impairment losses, if any, is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal

Impairment loss on goodwill is accounted in accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in Note 4 (o).

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take possession of assets
held as collateral through court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the
bomowers. Where it is intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets and

the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower, repossessed assets are
reported in “other assets™.

When the Group seizes assets to compensate for the losses of loans and advances and
interest receivables, the repossessed assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus any
taxes paid for the seizure of the assets, litigation fees and other expenses incurred for
collecting the repossessed assets are included in the camying value of repossessed assets.

When the fair value less costs to sell is lower than a repossessed asset’s carrying amount, an
impairment loss 1s recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Repossessed
assets are recognised at the carrying value, net of allowance for impairment losses.

The repossessed assets are disposed after acquisition and cannot be used without
authorisation. The repossessed assets that are transferved to own use are treated as newly

purchased property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of the repossessed assets is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which the item is disposed.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
(o) Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that
a non-financial asset other than goodwill such as investments in associates and joint
ventures, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and other
assets may be impaired. If any indication exists that an asset may be impaired, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. The Group
considers all relevant factors in estimating the present value of future cash flows, such as
the expected future cash flows, the useful life and the discount rate.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its camrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is recogmised as an
impairment loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss of the non-financial asset other
than goodwill decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through the profit or loss. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
(il) Impairment of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acguired in a business combination is
allocated to the CGU or the group of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that is largely
independent of the cash flows from other assets or groups of assets.

The CGU or the group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment by the Group annually, or whenever there is an indication that the CGU or the
group of CGUs are impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the CGU or the group
of CGUs, mncluding the goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the CGU or the group of
CGUs. The recoverable amount of the CGU or the group of CGUs are the estimated future
cash flows, which are discounted to their present value nsing a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU or
the group of CGUs with allocated goodwill.

At the time of impairment testing of a CGU or a group of the CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated, there may be an indication of an impairment of an asset within the CGU
containing the goodwill In such circumstances, the Group tests the asset for impairment
first, and recognises any impairment loss for that asset before testing for impairment on the
CGU or group of the CGUs containing the goodwill. Similarly, there may be an indication
of an impairment of a CGU within a group of the CGUs containing the goodwill. In such
circumstances, the Group tests the CGU for impairment first, and recognises any
impairment loss for that CGU, before testing for impairment the group of CGUs to which
the goodwill is allocated.

For a CGU or a group of CGUs, the amount of impairment loss firstly reduces the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU or the group of CGUs, and then reduces the
catrying amount of other assets (other than goodwill) within the CGU or the group of
CGUs, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset The carrying amount of
an asset should not be reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable); its value in use (if determinable) and zero.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

Fair value measurenent

Fair walue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using ancther valuation technigue (MNote 60).

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

During the accounting period when an emplovee has rendered service to the Group, the
Group recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits as a liability
and as an expense, unless ancther IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in
the cost of an asset. Short-term employee benefits include wages, bonuses, labor union
expenses and exployee education expenses, social insurance such as medical insurance,
wortk-related injury insurance and maternity insurance, as well as housing provident fiunds,
which are all calenlated based on the regulated benchmark and ratio.

Post-employment benefits: Defined confribution plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group participated in a
defined contribution basic pension insurance in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated by the government.
Basic pension insurance confributions are charged to profit or loss when the related services
are rendered by the employees.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Post-employment benefits: Defined confribution plans (continued)

In addition to the statutory provision plan, the Bank's employees have joined its annuity
scheme (tll.e “scheme™) which was established by the CITIC Group Cotporation (“CITIC
Group™) in accordance with policies regrardmg the state owned enterprise annuity policy.
The Bank has made anmuity contributions in proportion to its employee’s gross salaries
which are expensed in the consclidated statement of profit or loss when the contributions
are made.

The Group operates a defined contribution provident find and a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme for Hong Kong staff. Contributions are charged to profit or loss as and when the
contribution fall due.

Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans of the Group are supplementary retirement benefits provided to
the domestic employees.

The Group adopts the projected unit credit actwarial cost method, wsing unbiased and
mutually compatible actvarial assumptions to estimate the demographic and financial
variables, to measure the obligation associated in the defined benefits plan. The discounted
present value of the defined benefit obligation, is recognised as the liabilities of the defined

benefit plans.

The Group recognises the obligation of defined benefit plans in the accounting period in
which the employees render the related services. Past-zervice costs are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net interest cost is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit ul}ligatim
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in emplnjfee benefit expense in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Re-measurement ansing from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other

comprehensive income in the period in which they arize.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or non-monetary assets from the
government to the Group at no consideration except for any capital contribution from the
government as an investor in the Group. Special funds such as investment grants
allocated by the government. if clearly defined in official documents as part of “capital
reserve” are dealt with as capital contributions, and not regarded as government grants.

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to the grants.
Government grants are measured at the amount received or will be received when
recognised as monetary assets. Government grants are measured at fair value when
recognised as non-monetary assets.

The grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is that an
entity qualifying for them should purchase, construct or otherwise acguire long-term
assets. The grants related to income are government grants other than those related to
assets. A government grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred income
and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. A
grant that compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred in the subsequent periods
is recognised initially as deferred income and recognised in the consclidated statement of
profit or loss in the same perieds in which the expenses are recognised. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses incurred is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss immediately. The Group vses the same statement method for similar
government grants.

The prime based loan of the Group i1s calculated based on actual incoming loan as entry
value and preferential interest rate. The direct interest charges against the cost of loan.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised in the consclidated statement of financial position when the
Group has a present legal or constructive cbligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. A prowvision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to seftle the related present obligation. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time value of meney are taken into account
as a whole in reaching the best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the best estimate is determined by discounting the related future cash outflows.

A contingent liability is (a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence can only be confirmed by the occumrence or non-occurrence of cne or more
uncertain fiotore events not whelly within the control of the Group; or (b) a present
obligation that arises from past events and it is not probable that an ocutflow of economie
benefits is required to settle the cbligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably. Such liability is disclosed as contingent liabilities under Note 54.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
(t)  Fiduciary activities

The Group acts in a fiduciary capacity as a custodian, frustee, or an agent for customers.
Assets held by the Group and the related undertakings to retwrn such assets to customers are
excluoded from the consolidated financial statements as the risks and rewards of the assets
reside with the customers.

Entrusted lending is the business where the Group enters into entrusted loan agreements
with customers, whereby the customers provide funding (the “entrusted funds™) to the
Group, and the Group grants loans to third parties (the “entrusted loans™) at the instruction
of the customers. As the Group does not assume the risks and rewards of the entrusted
loans and the corresponding entrusted funds, entrusted loans and fiunds are recorded as off-
balance sheet items at their principal amounts and no impairment assessments are made for
these entrusted loans.

(u) Inceme recognifion

Fevenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arising in the course of the Group's
ordinary activities when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases
relating to contributions from owners. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

(1) Interest income

Interest income arising from the use of entity assets by others is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss based on the duration and the effective interest rate.
Interest income includes the amortization of any discount or premivm or other differences
between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing instrument and its amount at
maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of financial
assets and liabilities and of allocating the interest income and imterest expensze over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net cartying amount of the financial instrument. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and
interest paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
(u) Incoeme recognifion (continned)
(i) Interest income (continued)

Interest on the impaired financial assets is recopgnised using the rate of interest used to
discount future cash flows (“wowinding of discount™) for the purpose of measuring the

related impairment loss.
(if) Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the corresponding service is provided. Origination or commitment fees received by
the Group which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset are deferred and
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate. If the commitment expires
without the Group making a loan or anticipating will not. the fee is recognised as revenme
Ofl EXpiry.

(i1i1) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(iv) Rental income from operating lease
Eental income received under operating leases is recognised as other operating income in
equal instalments owver the periods covered by the lease term except where an alternative
basis iz more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.

Lease incentives granted are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(v) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments is recognised as
interest income over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant

periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting
period.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)

iv) Income tax

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to a business combination or items recognised directly
in equity (including other comprehensive income).

Current income tax is the expected tax payables on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payables in respect of previous periods. Deferred tax 1s provided for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for finaneial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Temporary differences also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax 15 not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that fisture taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures arrangements only to
the extent that it 13 probable the temporary difference will reverse in the foture and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

At the reporting date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
seftled according to the requirements of tax laws. The Group also considers the possibility
of realisation and the settlement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in the
calculation.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax labilities if the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and meet the addifional conditions that deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same authority on the same taxable
entity.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
(w) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term. highly liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
with original maturity of three months or less at acquisition.

(x) Prafit distribution

Proposed dividends for ordinary shares which are declared and approved after the end of
each reporting period are not recognized as a liability in the consoclidated statement of
financial position and are instead disclosed as a subsequent event after the end of each
reporting period in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Dividends payable
are recognised as liabilities in the period in which they are approved.

As authorised by the shareholders’ annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the
sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. Preference share
dividend distribution is recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in
the pericd in which the dividends are approved.

(v}  Related parties

If the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to control, jointly confrol or exercise
significant influence over another party, or vice versa, or where the Group and one or more
parties are subject to common control, jointly control from another party, they are
considered to be related parties. Felated parties may be individuals or enterprises.

(z) Operating segments

An operating segment 13 a component of the Group that satisfies all of the following
conditions: (1) the component is able to earn revenues and incur expenses from its ordinary
activities; (2) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess ifs
performance and (3) for which the information on financial position, operating results and
cash flows is awvailable to the Group. If two or mote operating segments have similar
economic characteristics and satisfy certain conditions, they are aggregated into one single
operating segment.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided

to the Group’s chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of allocating resources and

assessing performance. The Group considers the business from different perspectives

including products and services and geographic areas. The operating segments that meet
37
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the specified criteria have been aggregated. and the operating segments that meet
guantitative thresholds have been reported separately.
Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Operating segments(continued)

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of actuoal transaction price for such
transactions for segment reporting, and segment accounting policies are consistent with
those for the consclidated financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated key assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounfing estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in any future periods affected.

Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers and investments classified as
receivables

Loans and advances fo customers

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers to assess impairment on a periodic
basis during the year. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the Group makes estimates and judgments as to
whether there is any ocbservable data indicating that there is objective evidence of
impairment and the extent, if any, to which it will have a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows related to individually assessed loans and advances or pools of
loans and advances to customers with similar nisk charactenistics, as described in Note 4
{e)(v) impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost.

Significant judgments are made in the determination of whether objective evidence of

impairment exists in individually assessed loans and advances to customers or pools of

loans and advances to customers with similar risk characteristics. Among other things,

objective evidence of impairment incluodes deterioration in the financial condition of

specific borrowers (or specific pools of borrowers) affecting their abality to meet their loan
38
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payment obligations, overdue statns, financial position of guarantors, latest collateral
valuations, concession the Group that would not otherwise be pranted to borrowers for
economic ot legal reascns relating to their financial difficulties, as well as increasing
industry sector over-capacity or obsolescence, or deterioration in national or

Critical accounting estimates and judgements(continued)

Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers and investments classified as
receivables (continued)

Loans and advances fo cusfomers (continued)

regional economic conditions that are correlated to increasing loans and advances to
customers defaults. These judgments are made both during management’s regular
assessments of credit quality of loans and advances to customers and when other
circomstances indicate the possibility that objective evidence of impairment may exist.

Where it is determined that cbjective evidence of impairment exists. significant judgments
and estimates are made in estimating the adverse impact on fiture cash flows related to
individually assessed impaired loans and advances to customers. The methodelogy and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are
reviewed reguolarly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience. Factors affecting these estimates include the availability and granuvlarity of
information related to specific borrowers; the results of regulatory reviews and the related
portfolic analysis, and the clarity of the correlation between qualitative factors, such as
industry sector performance or changes in regional economic conditions and loans and
advances to customer’s defanlts of related borrowers.

Corporate loans and advances to customers not identified as impaired from individually
assessments, together with all personal loans and advances to customers are included in in
homogenous groups with similar credit risks characteristics for performance of impairment
assessments on a collective basis. Migration model is used for corporate loans and roll rate
models are vsed for personal loans considering the similarity of credit risks and applying
key assumptioms. Significant judgments are applied to the caleulation of assessed
impairment wsing these models. Critical factors affecting these judgments include
modelling assumptions (e.g., loss piven defanlt) and levels of cosrelation between
gualitative factors and loans and advances to customers default. The collective impairment
loss is assessed after taking into account: (i) historical loss experience in portfolios of
similar credit risk characteristics; (ii) the emergence period between a loss ocourring and
that loss being identified; (1ii) high risk products and geographic locations; and (iv) the
current economic and credit environments and whether in management’s experience these
indicate that the actual level of inherent losses is likely to be greater or less than that
suggested by historical experience. The Group considers the impact of the changes and
uncertainty in the macro-economic enviromment, in which the Group operates when
39
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assessing the methodologies and assumptions used for loss estimation, makes adjustments
where appropriate.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continned)

Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers and investments classified as
receivables (continued)

Investments classified as receivablas

In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the Group makes significant estimates and judgments as to
whether there is amy observable data indicating that there is objective ewvidence of
impatrment and the extent if any, to which it will have a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows related to investments classified as receivables by underlying
assets or groups of underlying assets with similar risk characteristics, as described in Note 4
(c)(v) Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost.

Where it is determined that cbjective evidence of impairment exists, significant judgments
and estimates are made in estimating the adverse impact on future cash flows based on the
underlying assets related to individuoally significant impaired investment classified as
receivables.

Investments classified as receivables not identified as impaired from the individual
assessment are included in proups with similar credit risk characteristics by underlying
assets with the consideration of risk factors specific to different industries and different type
of underlying assets, and assessed for impairment collectively. Significant judgments are
applied to the calculation of collectively assessed impairment.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continned)
Impairment of available-for-sale equity investments

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value
below cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been significant or prolonged. In
making this judgement, the Group considers historical data of market volatility and
historical share price of the specific equity investment as well as other factors, such as
sector performance, financial information regarding the investee and industry practice.

Fair valne of financial instruments

For financial instruments without active market, the Group determines fair values using
valvation techmiques which include discounted cash flow models, as well as other types of
valpation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free
and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and foreign currency exchange rates. Where
discounted cash flow technigques are used, estimated cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of each reporting period
applicable for an instrument with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models
are used, inputs are based on observable market data at the end of each reporting period.
However, where market data are not available, management needs to make estimates on
such uncbservable market inputs based on assumptions. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments.
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5§  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
(iv) De-tecognition of financial assets

In its normal course of business, the Group transfers financial assets through various types
of transactions including regular way sales and transfers, securitisation, financial assets sold
uvnder repurchase agreements and etc. The Group applies significant judgement in
assessing whether it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or partial
de-recognition.

Where the Group enters into stuctured fransactions by which it transferred financial asset
to structured entities, the Group analyses whether the substance of the relationship between
the Group and these structured entities indicates that it controls these structured entities to
determine whether the Group needs to consolidate these structured entifies. This will
determine whether the following de-recognition analysis should be conducted at the
consolidated level or at the entity level from which the financial assets was transferred.

The Group analyses the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such transfers
to determine whether the de-recopnition criteria are met based on the following
considerations :

- whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial
assets or the transfer qualified for the “pass through™ of those cash flows to independent

third parties;

- the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets
are transferred by using appropriate models. Significant judgment is applied in the
Group’s assessment with regard to the parameters and assumptions applied in the
models, estimated cash flows before and after the transfers, the discount rates used
based on current market interest rates, variability factors considered and the allocation
of weightings in different scenarios;

- where the Group neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and
rewards associated with their ownership the Group analyses whether the Group has

relinguished its controls over these financial assets, and if the Group has continning
involvement in these transferred financial assets.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Consolidation of stroctured entities

The Group makes significant judgment to assess whether or not to consolidate structured
entities. When performing this assessment, the Group:

- assesses its contractual rights and obligations in light of the transaction structures, and
evaluates the Group’s power over the structured entities;

- petrforms independent analyses and tests on the variable retorns from the structured
entities, including but not limited to commission income and asset management fees
earned, retention of residual income, and, if any, liquidity and other support provided to
the structured entities; and

- assesses its ability to exercise its power to influence the variable retwrns assessed
whether the Group acts as a principal or an agent through analysis of the scope of the
Group’s decision-making authority, remuneration entitled, other interests the Group
holds, and the rights held by other parties.

Income taxes

Determining mmcome tax provisions involves judgement on the foture tax treatment of
certain transactions. There are certain transactions and activities for which the nltimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group carefully
evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that foture taxable profits will be awvailable against which the uwnused tax credits
can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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6 Net interest income
Tear ended 31 Decembar
2017 2006
Interest mcome arising from (Mote (1)
Deposits with central banks 7,633 7,566
Deposits with banks and non-bank financial instimtions 3.040 1,722
Placements with and loans to banks and
non-bank financis] institotions 6,223 3,724
Fmancial assets beld under ressle agpreements. 1068 857
Invesments classified as receivables 35438 45820
Loans and advances to costomers
- corparate loans 89053 o2 655
- personal loans 48279 36,858
- discounsed bills 4,004 1,705
Investments in debt securities 25922 21,562
Orthers 102 5
Subvbotal 220,762 213 474
Interest expense arising from:
Bormrowings from central banks (6,151) (2,686)
Deposits from banks and non-bank financial instimitions (36.896) (32,6297
Placements from banks and non-bank financial instimtions (3,0046) (1,470)
Fimanrial azsets sold vmder repurchase agreements (2,691) (B61)
Deposits from customers (53,1900 (55,630)
Dbt securities issued (19,171} (14,052)
Orthers (12) ()
Subrotal (121,117 (107 336)
et interest incoms 99645 106,138
Note:

(i) Interest income from impaired financial assets is RMB 643 millions for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB 626 million).
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Net fee and commission income

Toar ended 3] December

20T 2006
Fee and commrission income :
Bank card fees 30433 19,324
Commission for wealth manapement services 5,536 7.114
Agency fees and conmmission (Mote (1)) 4534 6128
Consnltancy and advisory fees 4,261 5,717
Commission for custodian business and other fiduciary 3,201 2,566
Cuarantee fees 2,097 1384
Settlement and clesrance fees 1215 1,396
Others 320 671
Total 51,687 45 360
Fee and comnrission expense (4,829 (3,0800
et fee and commizsion income 446 858 42 280

MNote:

(i) Agency fees and commission represent fees earned for sale of bonds, investment
funds and insurance products, and provision of entrusted lending activities.

Net trading gain
Yoar endad 31 Decembar
2007 2018
Debt securities and certificates of mterbank deposit 2187 B4
Foreign currencies 1664 2311
Denvatives and related exposures 2131 7
Financial mstrument designated at fair
value through profit or loss 60l 265
Total 5,583 3,547
Net gain from investment securities
Toar ended 31 Decamber
2017 2018
et gain from sale of available-for-sale securities 1,221 818
Met gain from bills redisconnting (3] 314
et gain from securitisstion of financial assets 2622 67
Orthers (B1) 4283
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Total

Net hedging gain

et gxin of far value bedge

Operating expenses

Staff costs

- salaries and bomises

- welfare expenses

- bousing fund

- labour union expenses and employves education expenses
- housing allowance

- oither short-term benefits

- post-employment benefits - defined conmibution plans

- post-employment benefits - defined benefit plans
- other long-term benefits

Tax and surcharges
Orther peneral operating and administrative expenses (I7ate (1)
Total

67

299/478

3,757 1,682
Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
1 -
Yoar ended 31 December

2007 2016
20,280 17,071
1,121 1470
1,324 1,189
1,201 1,250
378 613
407 484
48 106
2,377 2,180
11 ]
20 30
27,416 24 418
4 8200 4,670
1,818 1,683
q03 1,020
524 B04
408 GES
372 363
9104 9725
1,660 4,487
10,733 9142
48,913 47,272
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Operating expenses (continued)
Note :

@

Included in other general operating and administrative expenses were audit fees

of EMBE 18 millicn for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: EMB 16 mallion)
and non-andit fees of for the year ended 31 December 2017 EMB 12 million for the

year (2016: RMB 14 million).

Individuals with highest emoluments

For the year ended 31 December 2017, of the 5 individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, there was no director (2016: Nil) and no supervisor (2016: Nil) The aggregate of
the emoluments before individual income tax in respect of the five highest paid individuals

of the Group were as follows:

Basic salaries, bousing allowances, other sllowances
and benefits in kind

Discretionary bonusas

Contribution to pension scheme

Total

Year ended 31 December
2017 2016
RMEB 000 RME 000
21,235 23403
10,789 24179
1418 1,684
42 442 43 166

The emoluments before individual income tax of the five individuals of the Group with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

RME 5,000,001 - BEME 10,000,000
BME 10,000,001 - BME 15,000,000

Year ended 31 Decemnber
2017

2016

4
1 3

No inducement fee and compensation for loss of office was paid to the five highest paid
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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12 Impairment losses on assets

Toar ended 3] December

2017 g
Loans and advances to costomers 50,170 45,715
Deposits with banks and non-bank

financial mstintions (32) 34

Interest receivables 4212 5,033
Anvailable-for-sale financial assets (69 43
Held-to-mamrity mwestments ] 2
Investments classified as receivables 1,018 &7
Fepossessed assefs a7 64
Off-balance shest ftems mm [y]
Ochers 295 608
Subrtotal 5617 6,573
Total 55,787 52,288

T0
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Income tax

Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

iHcome

Current tax
- Mainland China
- Hoog Kong

Deferred tae

Toral

Yoar ended 31 December
Note 2017 2016
15,249 14,920
487 407
104 4
32(h) (6442) (2,529)
9308 12872

Mainland China and Hong Kong income tax have been provided at the rate of 25% and
16.5% respectively. Owerseas tax has been provided at the rates of taxation prevailing in
the regions in which the Group operates respectively.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

Profit before tax

Incomme tax caloulated at PRC stabntory fax rate

Effect of different tax rates in other regions

Tax effect of non-deducnible expensas

Tam effect of non-taxable income
- interest ncome ansing from PRC government bonds
- oihers

Total

!
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2017 2016
522786 54 608
13,069 13,652
(325) (245)
259 306
(3.,097) (BE2)
(508) ()]
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14 Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Yoar ended 3] December
P 2018
Ttems that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met
Other comprehensive income of available-for-zale financial assets
- met champes in fair valne recognised during the year (10,877 (6,889
- met amount ransferred to profit or loss 149 (1.924)
Income tax relating to other comprehensive income of
available-for-sale financial assets 2686 2188
Other comprebensive income for available-for-sale
financial assets, net of tax (B,042) (6,627)
Exchange differences on ranslatgon (2,583) 1,807
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint
Venfures [L)] -
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Acmarial (loss)'zain on defined benefit plans {11) 7
Income tax relating to changes on the mesgsurement of
defined benefit plans 3 )]
Chanpes on the messurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax (B 5
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (10,642) [4,725)
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Earnings per share

Earnings per share information for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is computed
by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

The Bank issued non-comulative preference shares during the vear ended 31 December
2016, under the terms and conditions as detailed in Note 46. The Bank declared and paid
cash dividends of EMB 1,330 million of non-cumulative preference shares for the year of
2017 (2016: Nil).

The conversion feature of preference shares is considered to fall within contingently
issuable ordinary shares. The triggering events of conversion did not occur as at 31
December 2017, therefore the conversion feature of preference shares has no effect on the
basic and diluted earnings per share calculation.

Yaar ended 31 Decembar

2017 2018

Profit for the year armributable to equity holders of the Bank 42 566 41,620
Less: dividend atributable to preference sharebolders

of the Bank 1,330 -

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank 41,238 41,620

Weighted average mumber of shares (in million shares) 48,935 48035

Biasic and dihated eamings per share (in BMB) 0.84 .85
Cash and balances with central banks

31 Decambar 31 Decambaer

Notes 207 2018

Cash 6,740 7407

Balances with central hanks

- stafutory deposit reserve funds i} 462,743 464,633

- srphas deposit Teserve fimds {id) 89 288 58,855

- fiscal deposits (iif) 4,083 3,568

- foreign exchange reserve {iv) 5446 18,865

Total 568,300 553328
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16 Cash and balances with central banks (continued)
Notes:

1 es statuto osit reserve e 5 o

i) The Group plac ry i funds with the P s Bank of China
({"PBOC™) and overseas central banks where it has operations. The statuwtory deposit
reserve funds are not available for use in the Group’s daily business.

As at 31 December 2017, the statutory deposit reserve funds placed with the PBOC
was calculated at 15% (as at 31 December 2016: 15%) of eligible Renminbi deposits
for domestic branches of the Bank and at 15% (as at 31 December 2016: 15%) of
eligible Renminbi deposits from overseas financial institutions. The Bank was also
reguired to deposit an amount equivalent to 3% (as at 31 December 2016: 3%) of its
foreign currency deposits from domestic branch customers as statutory deposit
reserve funds.

As at 31 December 2017, the statutory EMB deposit reserve rates applicable to
Zhejiang Lin'an CITIC Rural Bank Corporation Limited in mamnland China a
subsidiary of the Group, was at 9% (as at 31 December 2016: 9%%).

The amounts of statutory deposit reserve funds placed with the central banks of
overseas countries are determined by respective jurisdictions. The statutory deposit
reserve funds are interest bearing except for the foreign currency reserve funds
deposits placed with the PBOC.

i) The s osit reserve funds are mamntained with the PBOC for the oses of
(11) surp purp
clearing.

(i1} Fiscal deposits placed with the PBOC are not available for use in the Group’s daily
operations, and are non-interest bearing.

(iv) The foreign exchange reserve is maintained with the PBOC in accordance with the
related notice issued by the PBOC on 31 August 2015. The reserve is payable ona
monthly basis at 20% of the total contract amount of customers driven forward
transactions in the previcous month Such foreign exchange reserve is non-interest
bearing and will be repayable in 12 months Aeccording to the notice issued by the
PEOC on & September 2017, the rate of the foreign exchange reserve for forward
transactions has been reduced to 0% from 11 September 2017 onwards. The foreign
exchange reserve remained in the account would be released on maturity.
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17  Deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions

{a) _Analysed by types and lacations of counterparties

31 Decambar 31 Decemiber
Note 2007 2016
In Mainland China
- hanks 73,832 123,913
- non-bank financisl mstinrtbons 17,557 42 383
Subtotal 01,389 166,296
- hanks 16,187 31,623
- non-bank financisl mstinmbons 6,774 10,758
Subiotal 32861 42379
Gross balance 124,350 208,675
Less: Allowances for nopairment losses 34 - (34)
et balance 124350 208,641
(b)  Analysed by remaining maturity
31 Decambar 31 Decemiber
Note 2007 2016
Demand deposits (Mote (1)) 67,370 100,394
- within one month 435,620 84018
- between one month and one yesr 11,351 24 265
Subiotal 56,980 108,281
Gross balance 124,350 208,675
Less: Allowances for mmpairment losses 34 - (34)
et balance 124350 208,641
Note:

(i) Asat3] December 2017, the carrying amount of pledged deposits with banks and other
financial institutions was EMB 1,676 million (as at 31 December 2016: EMB
606 millicn).
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18 Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial institutions

(a) Analysed by types and locafions af connterparties

31 Decemnber 31 December
Noze 2017 2018
In Mainland China
- banks 15,320 3,003
- non-bank financial instinstions 119,065 138,293
Suhbtotal 134 385 141,296
- banks 37685 25071
Gross balance 172,070 167,217
Less: Allowances for impairment losses. 34 (1) ()]
et balance 172,069 167,208
(b)  Analysed by remaining maturity
31 December 31 Decamber
Nore 2017 2018
Within one maonth 66,564 57,802
Berween one month and one year 105,506 109 382
Crer one year - 33
Gross balance 172,070 167,217
Less: Allowances for mmpairment losses 34 {1} [
Het balance 172,060 167,208
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 31 December
Notes 7 2016
Held for rading fimancial assets
- debt seuritias () 3B T28 0630
- certificates of interbank deposit ) 19,400 50,609
- inwestment fimds 2,001 1
Subtotal 60,129 60,330
Financial assets designated at famr
value through profit or loss
- debt securities (4] 5775 4.581
Total G5 904 54,911
Held for trading - debt securities
31 December 31 Decemier
2007 2016
Issued by
In Mainland China
- EDVEIMmEents T05 51
- policy banks 4,038 1,579
- banks and non-bank financial instinatdons 2,722 3,138
- CoTporates 30,098 2838
Subtotal 37564 3605
- banks and non-bank finamcial instimtons 1,063 BoR
- Corporates 101 126
Subtotal 1,164 1,024
Total 38,728 0630
Listed in Honz Kong 668 orT
Listed outside Hong Konz 36,728 6,773
Unlisted 1,272 1.878
Total 38,728 0630

78

310/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

9

311/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

19 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {(continued)

{b)

Tssued by
Banks in Mainland China

Listed ontside Hong Kong

Held for trading - certificates of interbank deposit

I December 31 December
2007 2018

19,400 50,599
12,400 50,599

(e} Financial assefs designated at fair value through prafit or loss - debt securities

Tasned by
In Mzinland China

- policy banks
- COTpoTates

Total

Listed outside Hong Fong
Total

Debt securities traded on the China Domestic
“Listed cutside Hong Kong™.
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20 Derivatives

Detivatives include forward, swap and option transactions undertaken by the Group in
foreign exchange, interest rate and precious metals markets related to trading, asset and
liability management and customer initiated transactions. The Group, through the
operations of its branch network, acts as an intermediary for a wide range of costomers for
structuring deals to offer risk management solutions to match individual customer needs.
These positions are actively managed through hedging transactions with external parties to
ensure the Group’s net exposures are within acceptable risk levels. The Group also uses
these derivatives for proprietary trading purposes and to manage its own asset and liability
and structural positions. Derivatives, except for those which are designated as hedging
instruments (MNote 20(c)), are held for trading. Derivatives classified as held for trading are
for trading and customer initiated transactions purpose, and those for risk management
purposes but do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

The contractual/notional amounts of derivatives provide a basis for comparison with fair
walues of derivatives recognised on the consolidated statement of finaneial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair values
of the derivatives and. therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market

risks.
31 Docembar 2017 31 Decembar 2015
Nominal Nominal
amatnt Assets  Liahilities amonnt Assets  Lialulities
Hedging instruments (Mote 200c))
- interest rase derivatives 9.799 123 18 14,068 201 23
Hon-Hedging instmuments
- interest rate derivatives 1,632,189 2,430 2294 542387 3,164 2,780
- ouTency derivatives 3347855 62,030 62368 2612557 42232 40,045
- precious metsl derivatives 51,586 BER 257 TT 385 1,769 2301
Total 5,041,429 65,451 64937 3546397 47 366 45 059

(a) Neminal amount analysed by remaining maturity

31 Decamber 31 Decemibar

2017 2016

‘Within three months 1868273 S62420
Batween three months and one year 2,751,469 2298 022
Batween one yvear and five years 418881 283 656
Crver five years 2 806 2109
Total 5,041 429 3,546,397
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20 Derivatives (continued)
{b) Credit risk weighted amounts

The credit risk weighted amount has been computed in accordance with the Regulation
Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional) promulgated by the CBRC in the
year of 2012, and depends on the status of the counterparties and the maturity
characteristics of the instruments, inchiding those customer-driven back-to-back
transactions. As at 31 December 2017, the total amount of credit risk weighted amount for
counterparty was RMB 70,217 million (as at 31 December 2016: EMB 37,134 million).

{c)  Fair value hedge
A subsidiary of the Group utilises fair value hedge to eliminate the effect of fair value
changes of financial assets and financial liabilities caused by market interest rate

fluctuations. Interest rate swap contracts are used for hedzing interest risks arising from
available-for-sale debt securities, certificates of deposit and subordinated bonds issued.

21 Financial assets held under resale agreements

(a) Analysed by types and locafions af connterparties

31 Decamber 11 Decambar
2017 2016

In Mainland China
- banks 28417 145370
- non-bank financial institutions 26,209 24434
Toital 54,626 170,804
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Financial assets held under resale agreements (continued)

Analysed by types of collateral
31 Decamber 31 December
2oi7 2008
Debt Securities 54,626 170,770
Others - 34
Total 54 626 170,804
Analysed by remaining maturity
31 Decemibar 31 Decamber
2017 2016
Within one month 54,626 170,770
Between one month and one yesr - H
Total 54.626 170,804

Collateral received in respect of financial assets held under resale agreements are disclosed
in Note 55.

Interest receivables

31 Decamber 31 Decambar

Nove 2017 20la

Loans and advances to costomers 13 543 14, 482
Debt securities 11,138 9,608
Investments classified as receivables .508 10,951
Orhers 2.400 1,787
Gross balance 36,589 36,828
Less: Allowance for impairment losses 34 (3.948) (3.906)
Wet halance 32643 31072
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23 Loans and advances to customers

(a) Analysed by nature

31 Drecembar 31 Dacembar
Noze a7 2006
Corporate loams
- loans 1,812,589 1,811,765
- discommted bills 107 456 75,047
- finance lesse receivables 23(e) 45158 34 500
Subtotal 1,945 303 1,921 321
Personal loans
- residential mortEages 505,305 433,210
- credit cards 333,719 237,712
- personal consunrtion 228,545 173,735
- business loans 166,015 111,040
Subtotal 1,231,584 056,606
Gross balance 3,196,887 2,877,927
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 34
- individually assessed (289300 (25.448)
- oollectively assessed (61.973) (50,005
Subtotal (20.903) (75,543)
et balance 3,105 984 2,802 384

(b} Analysed by assessment methed of allewance for impairment losses

31 December 2017
and advances (Note (i} Gross impaired
Loz and Tovms amd
advances for Jfor wiich Jor which advances as
which allowance allowanca is allowamca i a % gf gross
ir collectnaaly collectively  mdhvidually amessed fotal loans
asressad assessed (Note (il Total anid achancas
Gross loans and
advances 3,143 239 11,383 42255 3196287 1.68%
Less: Allowance for
impainuent losses (52,997) (E.576) (28.930)  (90.003)
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Met balance 3.000.242 2,417 13.325 3,105,084

23 Loans and advances to customers (continued)

(b) . Analysed by assessment method of allowance for impairment losses (continued)

31 December 201§
e adfvances (Note (1)) Gross impaimed
Lowns and Toans and
adhances for Jfor which Jor which advances as
which allowance allowance is allgwance is a % of grosz
iz collectively collectively individually arsersed total loeas
aszErred arzesed (Note (1)) Total and advarices
Gross loans and
advances 2,820 347 10579 38,001 2871827 1.80%
Less: Allowance for impairment
loszes (41,088) (8,107} (35,448) {75.543)
et balance 2 78T 350 2,472 12,553 2 802 384
Notes:

(i) Identified impaired loans and advances to customers include loans and advances for
which objective evidence of impairment exists and which bhave been assessed as
bearing significant impairment losses which are assessed individually or collectively
(portfolios of homogeneous loans and advances).

(i) Individually assessed identified impaired loans.

31 December 31 Decambaer

2007 2018

Secured portion 24 360 19,060
Unsecured portion 17,895 18,041
Tozl 42255 38,001

Individual allowance for impairment losses (28.930) (25.448)
Mat Balance 13,325 12,553

Maxinmm exposure covered by pledze and

collateral held 22.199 18,643

The fair value of collateral was estimated by management based on the latest
83
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revaluation including available external valuation, if any, adjusted by taking into
account the curvent realisation experience as well as market situation

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Movements of allowance for impairment losses

Toar ended 31 December 2017
Loans and
advances Tmpaired foans and advances
Jor which Jor which for which
allowance is aliowance is allewance is
coilectiely collectively mdividually
assassed assessad assessed Tozal
As at 1 JTamnary 2017 41 988 B.10°7 25,448 75,543
Allowsnce for impairment losses
on loans charged 11,032 G406 37,310 54,748
Feversal of impaimment for the year - (1,063) (3,515 {4,578y
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (35%) (555)
Transfer out (Mote (1)) 23) - (398 421y
Write-offs (MWote(53)) - (5. 5400 (29,761) (35,301)
Recovery of loans and advances written
off in previous year - 1066 401 1.467
As at 31 December 2017 52907 BOT6 28,930 00,903
Yoar ended 31 December 2016
Loans and
advances JTmpaired loans and advances
Jor which Jor which Jor which
allowance is aillowance s allowance is
collectively collecthaly imdnidually
assessed azzersed assassed Total
As at 1 Tannary 2016 39,306 5,846 15,345 60,407
Allowsance for impairment losses
on loans charzed 2,662 6,018 38845 48 425
Reversal of impamment for the year - (405) (2,305) (2,710
Unwinding of discount on allowance - - (560 (564)
Transfer in (Mote (1) 20 - 255 275
Wiite-offs (Mote(637) - (4,657) (26.295) (30.952)
Recovery of loans and advances wiitten
off in previous year - 405 167 572
As at 31 December 2016 41088 2107 25448 75,543
Note:
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(1) Transfer in or out includes the effect of exchange rate.
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23  Loans and advances to customers (continued)

(d) Overdue loans analysed by overdue perviod

31 Docember 2017
Cherdue COverdie
Bemwaen Batwean
Overdue  three months oHg Year Cherdue
within three and ong i threa ovar thres
miomihs yaar Jears WRETS Total
Unsecured leans 6,739 7.624 67 424 15,554
Guaranteed loans 8,543 0741 8,214 1,446 28564
Loans with pledged assets
- loans secured by collateral 14,168 13,614 11,286 383 40,031
- pledzed loans 3382 2,201 1,620 142 7375
Total 32,342 33,180 23,087 2,415 21,524
31 Dacamber 2016
Ohardue Overdue
Datween batwean
Cherdue  three months ong Jear Cherdue
within free e ovig amd three over fhnee
months Jar JAEIFS Jaars Toral
TUnsecured loans 3,985 5576 2,750 300 12,611
Guaranteed Inans T.I76 11,5649 7,136 115 26,676
Loans with pledged assets
- loans secured by collateral 12,689 17,191 8,560 561 49.001
- pledged loans 1,592 2,765 1,046 52 5,465
Total 36,042 37,181 19,402 1,038 93,753

Overdue loans represent loans of which the principal or interest are overdue one day or
more.
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23 Loans and advances to customers (continued)
(2} Finance lease receivables

Finance lease receivables transactions are attributable to the Group’s subsidiaries, CITIC
Financial Leasing Limited (“"CFLL™) and CITIC Imternational Finance Holdings Limited
(“CIFH™), include net investment in machines and equipment leased to customers under
finance lease and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance leases.
These contracts usually ron for an imitial period from 1 to 25 years. The total minimum
finance lease receivables under finance lease and hire purchase contracts and their present
values are as follows:

31 December 2017 31 Decamber 2016
Prasant Present
value qf value gf
THIRERL Mimimum iR Mivamm
Jinamce leases Sfinance leazer  finamce leases Jinance leases
receTvaiies recenabiles receivables recelvabias
Within one year (including one year) 5,020 0952 T6TT 8459
COme year o two years (nchyding two years) 10,233 11371 6514 7,761
Two years to three vears (incloding thres
years) 8365 005G §279 5,766
Orver thres years 19,740 22501 14038 16,762
Gross balance 45258 52 890 34509 39,748
- individuslly assessed (1) (5]
- collectively assessed (1.003) {6433
et halance 44254 33,864
24 Available-for-zale financial assets
31 Decamber 31 Decambar
Notes 2017 2016
Dbt securities (a) 460,843 308,545
Certificates of deposit ) 40,047 116,050
Equity investments 1,356 1,178
- measured at fair valne (<) T4 TGE
- messured at cost () 612 411
Tvestment fimds (d) 118,518 0,737
Wealth manzzement products 26 2
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631,600 534,533

322/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

14  Awailable-for-sale financial assets (continued)

(a) Debt securities analysed by location of counterparties

31 December 31 December
2017 2008

In Mamland China
- BOVEININEnts 245,368 166,151
- policy banks T2171 91,905
- banks and non-benk financial instimtons 31,985 34008
- CoTporates TH 024 TO.004
Subrtotal 427 608 363,058
- BOVEINMEents 13,635 15,023
- banks and non-benk financial instimtons 18,535 11,787
- public enfities 1,151 -
- COTporates 8014 G679
Subrtotal 42235 33489
Total 469 843 39645
Listed in Hoog Eong 23,500 10,935
Listed ontside Hong Kong 429 768 356,827
Unlisted 16,484 28783
Total 458 843 396545

(b) Certificates of deposit analysed by location of counterparties

11 December I December
2017 2016

In Miaimland China
-banks 38,301 112,127
- policy banks 1436 -
-hanks 1,130 3923
Total 40,947 116,050

o
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Listed outside Hong Kong 40,047 116,050

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Equity investments analysed by locafion of counterparties

31 December 11 Decembar
2017 2006
In Mainland China
- CoTporates 9«7 391
- banks and non-bank financial instimtions 145 13§
- COTporates 284 6§52
Tortal 1,356 1,179
Listed m Honz Kong 284 305
Listed outside Hong Kong T 11§
Unlisted 1,002 758
Total 1.356 1,179
Investment funds analysed by location of counterparties
31 Decembar 31 December
2017 2008
In Mainland China
- banks and non-bank financial nstinrtions 118825 10585
- banks and non-bank financial nstinrtions 263 457
- CoTporates 330 G5
Total 119 518 20,737
Listed outside Hong Eong 118025 10585
Unlisted 583 1,152
Total 119 518 20,737
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Debt securities traded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are inclnded in
“Listed cutside Hong Kong™.
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Held-to-maturity investments

Debt securities analysed by location af counterparties

31 December 31 Decenber
Note 217 2ole
In Mainland China

- EOVEIMIEnts 55105 40 2885

- policy banks 54245 &9 B61

- banks and non-bank financial instimtons 88,774 TEH5T2

- COTporates 18133 21,430
Subtotal 216258 217148
- banks and non-bank financial instimtions 325 348

- public entities 3 3
Subtotal 328 351
Gross balance 214,586 217, 500
Less: Allowance for impaimment losses 34 - 3]
Total 214,586 217 498
Listed m Honz Kong 273 291
Listed outside Hong Kong 209985 213,008
Unlisted 6328 4199
Total 216,586 217498
Fair value 212,530 219,014
Of which: listed securities 25,202 214 813

Debt securities traded on the China Domestic Inter-bank Bond Market are included in
“Listed outside Hong Kong™.
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26 Invesiments classified as receivables

31 Decambar 31 Decomibar
Note T 2016
Investment mansgement products managed by

SECUTTHES COMPANes 268,247 452 066
Wealth management products 138,020 458,390
Trust investment plans 1246, 704 126,128
Gross balance 534,061 1,037 484
Less: Allowance for impamment losses 4 (2.943) (1,756
Net balance 531,118 1,035,728

As at 31 December 2017, EMBE 21,976 million of investments classified as receivables listed
above were managed by related companies of CITIC Corporation Limited (CITIC Ltd.), the
Bank’s immediate parent company (as at 31 December 2016: EMB 145,635 mallion).

The underlying assets of investments classified as receivables primarily include interbank
assets and wealth management products issued by other banks, credit assets and rediscounted
bills (Note 58 a(viit)).

27 Investments in associates and joint ventures

31 December 31 Decamber

Nota 2017 2008

Investments in joint ventures (2 1,196 -
Investments in associates [L:)] 1,145 1111
Total 2341 1,111
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Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

Investment in joint ventures

The details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2017 was as follows:

Nowmimal

Form af Effective valig

Busingss Place qf parcentage Primcipal aff izsned

Name gf compary SIFHCTure incorporation g shares aciivifies shares

CITIC ziBank (Note) EMBE

("Baixin") Corporatica  Mainland China T4 SErvices 2.0 billion
Note:

Baixin opened on 18 November 2017. According to the Articles of Association, Fujian
BoRui Network Technology Co. Ltd. shall approve main critical events before further

development.

Financial statements of the joint venture are as follow:

Az af or for the year ended 2017
Total Total Total Ooerating
Name gf Enterprize fradring liabilities nat @rsets income Nt loss
Baixin 9970 8262 1,708 30 (291}

Movement of the Group's interests in the joint venture:

Tiotal
Initial investment cost 14040
As at 1 Tanmary 2017 -
Additions 1,400
Share of net loss of the joint venture for the period (20e)
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As at 31 December 2017 1,196

27 Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
(b) Investment in associates

The Group holds ifs fnvestment in associates through subsidaries and details of the
asseciates as at 31 December 2017 was as follows:

Effective
perceniage
qf sheares Nominal
Form af i VOring value
business Place af right hald Principal af izsuad
Name qf company SruciLTe incorporation by the Group activities sharas
Imvestment
CITIC International Assets holding
Manazement Limited 46% and assets
(“CLAM™) Corporation Hongz Kong (note) management HED 2 218 million
Binhai (Tianjin) Financial
Assets Exrhange Company Services and
Limited (“BFAE™) Corporation  Mainland China 20% imvestment BMEB 500 million
Note:

As at 31 December 2016, The Group held 40 percent of shares and voting right of CIAM.

Financial statemenis of the associates are as follow:

As at or for the year ended 2017
Total Total Total Operating
CIAM 2412 236 2,176 181 [251)
EFAE 581 0B 483 1 (14
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Az at or for the year ended 2016
Total Total Total Operating
Name gf Enterprize ASSgts Tighilities el assars Income Profftiloss)
CIAM 3,102 579 2523 4y 3
EFAE 400 2 497 - (1]
98
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Investments in associates and joint ventures {continned)
Investment in associates {continued)

Movement of the Group's inferests in associates:

Total
Initial mvestment cost 1,183
As at 1 Tanuary 2017 1,111
Additions 180
Share of net loss of associates for the period (B}
Share of other comprehensive mcome of associates for the period g
Dividend received (11}
As at 31 December 2017 1,145
Total
Initial investment cost 993
As ar 1 Fammary 2016 978
Addition 100
Share of zain from associates for the year 1
Diividend ved ©
Exchange difference 43
As at 31 December 2016 1,111
Investment in subsidiaries
31 Decamber 31 Decamber
Notes 2017 2018
I in subsidiar
- CIFH (] 16,570 16,570
- CHCB (Hong Kong) Investment Limited
(“CHCE Invesmment™) (id) 1577 1,577
- Lin"sn Fural Bank (if]) 102 102
- CFLL (iv) 4.000 4.000
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Total 12249 22249
Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Major subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Particulars % qf %5 qf The
qf the issued ownership ownership held Group's
Place af and paid up Principal  directly held By subsidiaries  qffective
Name of entity _ incarparation capital activities By the Bank af the Bank interast
Commercial
banking and
HED other financial
CTIFH (Mote (1)) Hong Kooz 7,503 million Services 10020 - 100%
CHCB Investment HED Lending
(Mote (i) Hong Kong 1,839 million SETVices 00.05% 0.95% 100%
Lin"an Fural Bank EME Commercial
(Mote (i) Mainland China 200 million ‘banking 51% - 51%
EME Financial
CFLL (Mote (iv))  Mainland China 4000 million  lease operations 100%% - 100%

Motes:

(1) CIFH is an investment holding company registered and headguartered in Hong Kong.
Its business scope through its subsidiaries covers commercial banking and other
financial services. The Bank holds 100% shareholding and effective interest in CIFH.
CIFH holds 75% shareholding in CITIC Bank International Limited (“CBI™).

(ii) CNCE Investment, formerly named as China Investment and Finance Limted. was
founded in Hong Kong in 1984, Holding a money lending licence issued by the Hong
Kong Company Registrary, CNCB Investment’s business scope inclodes capital
market investment, lending and other related services. The Bank holds 99.05%
shareholding in CNCB Investment, and CIFH holds the remaining 0.95%
shareholding in CNCB Investment. As at 31 December 2017, the Bank effectively
holds 100% shareholding in CNCB Investment.

(iii) Lin’an Rural Bank was founded in Zhejiang Province of Mainland China in 2011 with
a registered capital of EMB 200 million. Its principal activities are commercial
banking related businesses. The Bank holds 51% of Lin’an Rural Bank's shares and
effective interest.

(iv) The Bank established CFLL in 2015 with a registered capital of EMB 4 billion. Its
principal business activities are financial leasing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment

Computer
Construction @guipmEt
Buildings It prograss. and otfars Tl
Cost or deemed cost:
As at 1| Tamuary 2017 17 458 470 10,350 28 .17
Additions 3933 605 877 5418
Disposals 47 - (130} (A7
Exchamge difference (41) - (BE) (129%
As at 31 December 2017 21,313 1,078 11,018 33,409
As at 1| Tamuary 2017 (3,940 - (6,514) (10,483)
Depreciztion charges (568) - (1,250} (1,818)
Disposals - - 115 115
Exchange difference 20 - a7 BT
As at 31 December 2017 4,497y - {7,587) (12,079
Net carrying valie:
As at | Tanuary 2017 13,519 470 3845 17,834
As at 31 December 2017 (Mote (1)) 16,818 1,078 3,436 21,330
Computer
Comstruction equipmant

Buildings in prograss and athers Total
Cost or deemed cost:
As at 1 Jammary 2016 14,372 1,121 D468 24,061
Additions 1394 it 1,073 3498
Transfers Ga0 (6B - -
Dizposals (63} - (253) (318)
Exchange difference 85 - Tl 156
As at 31 December 2016 17,468 470 10,359 28287
Arcunlated depreciation:
As at 1 Janmary 20146 (3,451) - (5,526) (8,978)
Depreciation charges [506) - {1L,177) (1,683)
Disposals. 7 - 243 70
Exchange difference (18) - (34) {72y
As at 31 December 2016 (3,940 - (6,514) (10.4463)
et camrying walue:
As at 1 Jamnary 2016 10,920 1,121 3942 15083
As at 31 December 3016 (Mot (1)) 13,519 470 3 845 17834
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19 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

30

MNotes:

As at 31 December 2017, the registration transfer process of certain buildings acquired has
not been completed, and the net book wvalue of such buildings was approximately EMB
2,860 million (as at 31 December 2016: RMB 3.620 million). The Group believes the
incomplete registration procedure does not affect the rights of the Group as the legal

successor to these buildings.

Investment properties
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Fair value as at 1 Tanuary 05 325
Change in fair value 30 8
Transfers (1=) 51
Exchange difference 2 3
Fair value as at 31 Diecember 105 305

Investment propetties of the Group are buildings held by subsidiaries and mainly located in
Hong Kong and leased to third parties throngh operating leases. There are active real estate
markets where the investment properties are located and the Group is able to obtain market
price and related information of similar properties, and therefore makes estimation about
the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2017.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31 December 2017 by an
independent firm of surveyors, Pmdential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited. on an open
market value basis. The fair value is in line with the definition of “IFRS1F - Fair value
measurement”. The revaluation surplus has been recognised in the profit or loss for the
current year. Pmdential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited has among their staff Fellows of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of
properties being valued.

The investment properties of the Gourp are categorised into Level 3.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Goodwill
31 Decembar 31 December
207 2016
As at 1 Tanuary 214 54
\ddit B _
Exchange difference (65) &0
As at 31 December B49 014

Based on the result of impairment test, no impairment losses on goodwill were
recognised as at 31 December 2017 (as at December 2016: Nil).

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
31 December 31 Decamber
2017 200a
Deferred tax assets 21,825 12,607
Deferred tax lishilities (=) {113
et 11817 12,686
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) {continued)

Analysed by nature and jurisdiction

31 Decemnber 2017 31 Decamber 2006
Deductible’ Deductibia’
(temcabia) Digferred (teeabie) Digferred
fEmporary tar @zt Temporary ey e’
differances (Tighalitias) differences (Hiabilities)
Deferred tax assets
- allowance for impairment losses 68,400 17,080 52,757 13,165
- fair valee adjustments 12,357 3,078 (968 (2500
- employee retirement benefits and
salaries paysble 6,248 1,562 2,382 721
- others 402 125 (3,544) (939
Subiotal 87,416 21,825 50,827 12607
- fair valee adjustments (48) () (65) {11}
Wat 87,3468 21817 50,762 12 686
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Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continned)

Movement of deferred tax
Employes
Allowance etirament
Jor bamgfits Total
imparrmant Fair value and accried dgflerrad
lasses adiusimeants staffcost Othars e
A= at 1 Janmary 2017 13,145 (261) 721 (939 12,686
Becognised in profit or loss 3,800 645 838 1,060 6,442
Recognised in other
comprebensive moome - 2,686 3 - 2,680
Exchange difference (&3] - - 4 -
4z at 31 December 2017 17,0460 3,070 1,562 125 21,817
Az at 1 Janmary 2016 0604 (2,027 T4 (4007 7071
Pecognised in profit or loss 3468 422) 12 (536) 2520
Recognised in other
comprebensive moome - 2,188 (2) - 2 1E6
Exchange difference 3 - - (3) -
Az at 31 December 2016 13,145 (261) 721 (939 12 686
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Other assets

31 Decembar 31 Decamber

Notes 2017 2018

Precious metal leasing 26313 23927
Prepayments for properties and equiproent () 10,521 12,335
Fee and commission receivables 4,740 3,684
Pepossessed assets () 240 1,814
Advanced payments and seftlement accounts 2,030 805
Prepayments for assets acgquired for finance leases 1546 4448
Leasehold improvements 1315 1677
Land nse rights 1,024 1,054
Prepaid rent 1,023 1,085
Others (<) 7,282 7,845
Total 57843 58,4654

Prepayments for properties and equipment

Prepayments for properties and equipment are mainly payments the Group made for office

premises being constructed.
Repossessed assets

Premises

Orthers

Gross balance

Less: Allowance for impairment bosses

et balance

31 Decamber I Decamber
2017 2006
1,931 1,836
518 104
2 449 2,032
(200) (218)
2049 1,814

As at 31 December 2017, the Group intended to dispose all of the repossessed assets, and
had no plan to transfer the repossessed assets for own use(as at December 2016: Nil).
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33 Other assets (continued)

{e) Others

Others includes assets with continuous involvement, temporary payments for lawsuit, other
long-term unamortised expense and other receivables.

34 Movements of allowance for impairment losses

Tor ended 31 December 2017
Asat] Charge for Reversal for Az ar 3l
Notes Jamuary fhe year the yaqr  Write-offt Orhars  December
Nove (1)

Dreposits with bank and

non-bank fimancial

instittions 17 34 - [(32) - 2 -
Placements with snd loans

to banks and non-bank

financial imstiftions 18 9 - - - (B) 1
Insterest receivables 22 3,908 5,388 (1,178) (3,97 (185) 3,044
Loans and advances

10 CUSHOmers 23 75,543 54,748 (4,578) (35301) 431 90,003
Available-for-sale financial

&EIETS. 162 27 () - (15) 78
Hald-to-matarity

imvestments 25 2 - 2y - - -
Investments clzssified as

receivables 24 1,756 1,018 - - 169 2,043
Orther azsets. 2,380 T25 (158) (364) 38 2,601
Total 83,772 51,008 (6,042 (39,542} 478 100,472
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34 Movements of allowance for impairment losses (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016
Ararl  Charge for Reversal for Asat 31
Note (1}

Dieposits with bank and

non-bank finamcial

mstirtions 17 - 34 - - - 34
Placements with and loans

‘o banks and non-bank

finamcizl instriutions 18 B - - - 1 9
Interest receivables 2 2,134 5452 419 (3,206) 35 3,904
Loans and advances

o Customers 23 &0 40T 48 425 (2,710 (30,952) 283 75,543
Available-for-sale financial

as5els 160 45 2 - (41} 1462
Held-to-maturity

mvesments 15 41 2 - - (41} 2
Invesmments classified as

receivables 26 B85 &7 - - - 1,758
Orther assets 1,009 T42 ()] (3BT T6 2360
Total 65,724 55,571 (3,201) (34,635) 313 83,772
Note:

(i) Others inclnde unwinding of interest on impaired financial assets, recovery of loans
written off, and effect of exchange differences during the vear. In addition to the
allowance for impairment losses above, the Group also charged impairment losses
against off-balance sheet items (Note 12).
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35 Deposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions

Analysed by types and locations of counterparties

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

In Mainlsnd China
- banks 170,801 446 824
- non-bank financial instittions 611,011 531,949
Subtotal TE1 E12 078,773
-banks 16,142 2,566
- non-bank financial instimtions 53 107
Subtotal 16,195 2673
Total TR 00T 081,446

36 Placements from banks and non-bank financial institutions

Analysed by types and lecations af counterparties

31 Decembar 31 Decamber
2017 2018

In Mainland China
- hanks 43,172 465,580
- non-hank financisl vstinntions 28733 20,000
Subtotal T1.805 66,589
- hanks 5600 17,034
Total 77,585 83,723
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

Analysed by type and location of counterparties

In Mainland China

Analysed by type of collateral

Disconmted bills
Debt securities

oOoOooodn

I December 31 December
2017 2016
B8.063 85,415
45321 33,100
134.384 118.515
118 1,758
- -2
118 1,827
134 500 120,342
I December 31 December
2017 2016
52415 20,055
82085 91,287
134 300 120,342

The Group did not derecognise financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with
financial assets sold under repurchase agreements. As at 31 December 2017, of these
collateral pledged disclosed in Note 35, no legal title has been transferred to counterparties.
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(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Deposits from customers

Analysed by nature

Demand deposits
- COTpOTAlE CUSHMMErs
- personal customers

Time and czll deposits
- COTPCTAtE CHSIOMmErs
- personal costomers

Craiward remittance and remittance payables

Analysed by type of collateral

Bank acceptances

Letters of credit

31 Decemnber 31 December
2007 2016
1,645,002 1,683 827
234,061 232960

1 878 063 1.916.TET
1,213,018 1,390,212

0B 477 325,053

1.521 495 1,715,265
6,178 7,238

3 407 636 3,530 200

31 December 31 Decamber
2007 2016
195,308 213,624
24,041 25,822

o280 D824

108 230 145,798
338,368 397868
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Accrued staff costs

Yaur ended 31 December 2017
Asar during during Asat
Notes 1 January tha year the Jar 31 Decamber
Short-term emploves benefits {a) B4673 23,253 (23,281} B.635
Post-employment benafits
- defimed contribution plans b 32 237 (2375 34
Post-employment benefits
- defined benefit plans [(a] 35 11 {2 44
(Oher long-term benefits 79 g9 (43) 125
Total 53819 23,730 (25,711) 5,838
Yoar ended 31 December 2018
Az ar U during Asar
Notas I January the year the year 31 Decembar
Short-term employes benefits [:1] B,158 20,554 (20,0307 B.673
Post-employment benafits
- defined conmribution plans L] 3z 2,190 (2,190 32
Post-employment benefits
- defined benefit plans [(a] 40 1] 2m 35
(Orther long-term benefits 63 39 23) TR
Total B,302 22,789 (22,27 8,819
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Accrued staff costs (continued)

Short-term employee benefits
Yoar ended 31 December 2007
Asat during dring Asat
1 Jaruary tha year the year 31 Decembar
Salaries and bomises 7483 18,504 (18,524 7,553
Social insurance 40 1,324 (1,345) 28
Welfare expenses - 1,121 (1,121) -
Housing fimd 19 1,281 (1,300 10
Labour vmion expenses znd
employes education expenses 1,060 378 (483) 935
Housing allowance 48 47 470 75
Oithers 14 48 (48) 14
Total B673 23,253 (23,201} B 635
Year ended 3] December 2016
it Reducti
Asat during dhiring Asar
1 Jaruary tha year tha year 31 December
Salaries and bomises 7,134 15442 (15,083) 7483
Social insurance 35 1,189 (L175) 49
Welfare expensas - 1470 (L4700 -
Housing fiund 26 1,250 (L,25T) 19
Lahour union expenses and
employes education expenses 015 613 (468) 1,060
Housing allowsnce 4 484 (4700 48
Onthers 14 106 (104) 14

Total 8158 20,554 20,039 £.673
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39  Accrued staff costs (continued)
(b) Post-employment benefits - defined contribution plans

Post-employment benefits defined contribution plans include confributions to statutory
refirement plan. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regolations in the PRC govemning labor
and social security, the Group joins statutory retirement plan for the employees as set out
by city and provincial governments. The Group is required to make contributicns based on
defined ratios of the salanes, bonuses and certain allowance of the employees to the
statutory retirement plan under the administration of the government.

In addition to the above statutory retirement plan, the Bank's qualified employees have
joined a defined contribution retirement scheme (the “Scheme™) which was established by
the Group and managed by the CITIC Group. The Bank has made annuity contributions at
5% (year ended 31 December 2016: 5%) of its employee’s gross wages. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Bank made anmuity contribution amounting to EMB 662 million
(year ended 31 December 2016: EMB 629 million).

The Group’s employees based in Hong Kong join the Occupational REetirement Scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme with certain contribution ratios pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

{c) Post-employment benefits - defined benefit plans

The Group offers supplementary retirement benefits for certain of its qualified employees in
Mainland China Retired employees are eligible to join this supplementary retirement
benefit plan. The amount that is recognised as at reporting date presents the discounted
value of benefit abligation in the fintare.

The Group’s obligations in respect of the supplementary retirement benefit plan as at the
reporting date are based on the projected unit credit actuarial cost method and computed by
a qualified professional actuary firm (a member of Society of Actuaries in the United States
of America).

Save for the disclosed above, the Group has no other material obligation for payment of
retirement benefits.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Taxes payable

Income tax
VAT =nd surcharzes

Interest payable

Deposits from customers.
Debt securities issned

Provisions

Litisati .

Movement af provisions:

Asg at 1 Japuary
Accuals
Reversals

Payments

As at 31 December

31 December 31 Decamber
2007 2016

4 668 3442

4175 24911

15 11

8,858 6,364

31 Decemnber 31 December
2007 2016

26,212 27,887

3,351 2,045

9 560 7.243

39,323 37,155

31 December 31 Decamber
20017 2016

304 244

31 Decamber 31 December
2017 2016

144 2

152 243

[ -
- (LN}

394 244
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The Bank recorded litigation provisions for cases occurred in 2017 which amounted to
EMB 132 million.
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(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Debi securities issned

31 December i1 Dacambar
Notes 2017 2006
Long-term debt securities issued {a) 04571 31,288
Subordinated bonds issaed:
-by the Bank ) 68,448 68 441
- by CBI {c) 5230 7,801
Certificates of deposit issued ) 1,849 0403
Certificates of interbank deposit issued (e} 270,096 260,023
Total 441744 386,046
As at 31 December 2017, long-term debt securities issued by the Bank:
31 December 31 December
Anmual 2iF 2018
Interest Nominal Nl
Bomd Type Issue Date Maturity Dete Rate Falue Falue
RME RMEB
Fized rate bond 17 Apeil 2017 17 April 2020 420% 50,000 -
Fied rate bond & Movember 2013 12 Movembser 2018 520% 15,000 15,000
Fized rate bond 17 Mowvember 2015 17 Movemnber 2020 361% 8,000 2,000
Fixed rate boad 21 May 2015 S May 2020 398% 7,000 7,000
Fized rate bond 14 December 2017 14 Decembser 2020 24T 4555 -
Fied rate bond 14 December 2017 15 December 2022 25T isme -
Fized rate bond 24 May 2017 24 hay 2020 4.40% 2003 -
Fied rate bond 14 December 2017 14 Decembser 2020 288% 1952 -
Fized rate bond 14 December 2017 15 December 2022 313% 14627 -
Fied rate bond 27 February 2014 27 Febrmuary 2017 413% - 1,500
Total nominal value 04,706 31,500
Less:
Unamortized
issnance cost and
discount (20 (33)
Elimnination of
positions held by
2 subsidiary (43) {am
Carrying valus 04,571 31288
117
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43 Debt securities issued (continued)

(B} The carrying value of the Bank’s subordinated bonds issued as at 31 December:

31 December 31 Decamber
Notas 2017 2016

- in May 2025 @ 11,500 11,500
- in Jume 2027 (i) 19,081 19.979
- in Anznst 2024 (i) 36.967 36,962
Totl 62448 68,441

MNotes:

(1) The interest rate on the subordinated fixed rate bonds issued on 28 May 2010 is
4.30% per annum. The Bank has an option to redeem the bonds on
28 May 2020. If they are not redeemed, the interest rate of the bonds will remain at
4.30% per annum for the next five years.

(ii)  The interest rate on the subordinated fixed rate bonds issued on 21 June 2012 is
5.13% per annpum. The Bank has an option to redeem the bonds on
21 June 2022 If they are not redeemed, the interest rate of the bonds will remain at
5.15% per annum for the next five years.

(i) The interest rate on the subordinated fixed rate bonds issued on 26 Apgost 2014 is
6.13% per annum. The Bank has an option to redeem the bonds on
26 August 2019. If they are not redeemed, the interest rate of the bonds will remain
6.13% per annum for the next five years.

(e} The carrying value of CBI's subordinated bonds issued as af 31 December:

31 Decembear 31 Decamber
Notas 2017 2016

Subordinated fized rate notes maturing:
- in Tume 2020 @ 3341 3641
- in September 2022 (id) - 2077
- in May 2024 (it 1938 2.083
Total 5280 7.801
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43 Debt securities issued (continued)

(e} The carrying value of CBI's subordinated bonds issued as at 31 December: {continued)

MNotes:

(i) Subordinated notes with nominal value of USD 500 million bear an interest rate of
6.875% per annum were issued cn 24 Jupe 2010 by CBEIL payable semi-annually.
The notes are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

(if)  Subordinated notes with nominal value of TUSD 300 million bear interest at a fixed
rate of 3.875% per annum wete issued on 27 September 2012 by CBIL The Bank
has an option to redeem the bonds on 28 September 2017 or any interest payment
date thereafter The notes are redeemed on 28 September 2017 by CBL

(iii)  Subordinated notes with nominal value of USD 300 million bear interest at a fixed
rate of 6.00% per annuem were issued on 7 November 2013 by CEL payable semi-
annually until 7 May 2019, and thereafter fixed at the interest rate of the prevailing
five-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 4.718% per annum if the notes are not
redeemed on the call date or any interest payment date thereafter. The notes are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and will mature on 7 May 2024.

(d) These certificates of deposit were issued by CBI with interest rate ranging from 0.70% to
3.62% per annum.

{e) Asat31 December 2017, the Bank had issued certain certificates of interbank deposits,
totaling BMB 270,096 million (as at 31 December 2016: EMB 269,923 million), with yield
ranging from 4.00% to 5.35% (as at 31 December 2016: 2.68% to 3.75%) per annum. The
otiginal expiry terms are between three months to one year.
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Other hiabilities
31 Decamibar 31 Decembar
Note 2017 2016
Payment and collection accounts 13 545 3414
Settlement and clearing accounts 5,667 30,033
Deferred emohiments payable (1] 5,306 3,756
Precious mefal comracts 4,572 448
Advances and deferred expenses 4278 3,740
Leasing deposits 1616 1,166
Arcued expenses 636 655
Oithers 3398 9803
Tortal 45318 53,105
Note:

(1) This represents deferred emoluments payable to employees in respect of services
provided to the Group. Such amount will be distributed according to plans. As at
31 December 2017, the deferred emolument payable amounted to EMB 6,306
million (31 December 2016: EMB 3,756 million).
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45 Share capital

31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016

Number gf shares Nominal Falue
fimiilions)
Ondinary shares

Registered. issued and fully paid :
A-Share 34,053 34053
H-Share 14 BE2 14 882
Total 48035 48035
31 Decemnber 31 December
2007 2018
As at 1 January 48935 48935
Additions - -
As at 31 December 48015 48035
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46 Preference shares

Financial Issued  Issued oumber Issued
mstruments price of shares  nominal value Riamrity
in issue Dividend rate (FME) (RMEB millions) (EMB millions) Date (Comversions
Mo
3.80% per anmum for the frst Mo cooversion
Preference five years after issuamce, and matarity during
shares re-priced every five years 100 350 35,000 date the year

350 million preference shares of EMB 100 each were issued in October 2016, with a
dividend rate of 3.80% per annum for the first five years from issuance, to no more than
200 gualified investors, pursuant to the approval by its ordinary shareholders’ meeting and
relevant regulatory authorities.

The carrying amount of preference shares, net of direct issuance expenses, was
EME 34955 millions as at 31 December 2017. All the proceeds received is used to
replenish Other Tier-One capital in order to increase the Bank's Tier-One capital adequacy
ratio (Note 39). Dividends are non-cumulative and where payable are paid annually. The
dividend rate will be re-priced every five vears thereafter with reference to the five-year
PEC treasury bonds yield plus a fixed preminm of 1.30%.

As authorised by the ordinary shareholders” Anoual General Meeting, the Board of
Directors has the sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares.
The Bank shall not distribute any dividends to its ordinary shareholders before it declares
such dividends to preference shareholders for the relevant period. The distribution of
preference shares dividend is at the Bank’s discretion and is non-cumnlative. Preference
shareholders are not entitled to patticipate i the distribution of retained profits except for
the dividends stated above.

The Bank has redemption option when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering

documents of preference shares are met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference
shareholders have no right to require the Bank to redeem the preference shares.

Upon oceurrence of the triggering events as stipulated in paragraph 2(3) of the Guidance of
the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Commercial Banks™ Innovation on Capital
Instroments (CBRC No.56 [2012]) and subject to regulatory approval, preference shares
shall be mandatorily converted into ordinary A shares of the Bank: at the conversion price of
BEMB 7.07 per share, partially or entirely. The conversion price of the preference shares
will be adjusted where cerfain events occur including bonums issues, rights issue,
capitalisation of reserves and new issuances of ordinary shares, subject to terms and
formulae provided for in the offering documents, to maintain the relative interests between
preference shareholders and ordinary shareholders.
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46  Preference shares (continued)
These preference shares are classified as equity instruments, and presented as equity in the

consolidated statement of financial position; and are qualified as Additional Tier-One Capital
Instruments in accordance with the CBRC requirements.

Interests attributable to equity instruments' holder:

31 Decamber 31 Decembar
2017 2016
Total equity attmbute to equity holders of the parent compamy 388,002 368,702
Equity attribuate to ordinary equity holders of the parent company 35047 333,747
Equity attribmte to other equity holders of the parent company 34055 34055
- Diwidend paid 1,330 -
47  Capital reserves
31 Decembar 31 December
207 2014
Share premium 58,806 58,555
(Orther reserves 21 81
Total 58,977 58,634
31 Decembear 31 December
2017 2016
As at | January Motes 58,636 58,636
Confribution by non-contrelling shareholders 52 341
As at 31 December 58,877 58,636

48  Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income comprises items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. mainly include fair value changes or
available-for-sale financial assets, exchange differences on translating foreipn operations,
etc; and items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss, such as net changes on the
measurement of defined benefit plan (Note 39).
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Surplus reserve
31 December 31 December
2017 2018
As at 1 Tanuary 27,263 23382
Appropristions 3920 3,901
As at 31 December 31,183 27,263

Under the relevant PRC Laws, the Bank and the Bank’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to appropriate 10% of its profit for the year, as determined under regulations issued
by the regulatory bodies of the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the repistered capital After making the appropriation to the statutory
surplus reserve, the Bank may also appropriate its profit for the year to the discretiomary
surplus reserve upon approval by ordinary shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The
Bank makes its appropriation on an anmual basis.

Subject to the approval of crdinary shareholders, statutory surplus reserves may be used for
replenishing accumulated losses, if any, and may be converted into share capital, provided
that the balance of statutory surplus reserve after such capitalisation is not less than 23% of
the registered capital before the process.

General reserve

31 December 31 Decamber

2017 2ola

As at 1 Japuary 73011 64,555
Appropriations 340 0,356
Ag at 31 December 74251 73,911

Pursuant to relevant Ministry of Finance ("MOF™) notices, the Bank and the Group’s
banking subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to set aside a general reserve to cover
potential losses against their assets. The Bank and the Group malke its appropriation on an
annual basis. As at 31 Decmenber 2017, the general reserve balance of the Bank has reached
1.5% of the ending balance of pross risk-bearing assets. No appropriations i the general
reserve have been made in year ended 2017.
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Profit appropriations and retained earnings

Profit appropriations and distributions other than dividends declared during the year

31 Decamber 31 December
Notes M7 2018

Appropriations fo
- surphas reserve 40 3,920 3901
- general reserve 30 340 0358
As gt 31 December 4. 260 13257

In accordance with the approval from the Board of Directors dated 26 March 2018, the
Bank appropriated BMB 3,920 million to statotory surplus reserve fund for the year of
2017, General reserve reached regulatory requirements so accuring has stoppped The
Group’s subsidiaries. Lin"an mural bank and CFLL, made appropriaticns to general reserve
in accordance with relevant regulatory requirements.

In accordance with the resolution approved in the Anmal General Meeting of the Bank on
26 May 2017, a total amount of approximately EME 10,521 millicn (RMB 2.15 per 10
shares) were distributed in the form of cash dividend to the ordinary shareholders on 24
July 2017.

In accordance with the resclution approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Bank on
24 Aupgust 2017, a total amount of approximately RMB 1,330 million (350 million shares
with RMBE 3.80 per share caleulated by 3.8% of the agreed coupon rate) were distributed in
the form of cash dividend to the preference shareholders on 26 October 2017,

On 26 March 2018, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend of EMB 2.61 per 10
shares in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017. Subject to the approval of the
ordinary shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, approximately EMB 12,772 million
will be payable to those on the register of ordinary shareholders as at the relevant record
date. This proposal is a non-adjusting event after the reporting period and has not been
recognised as liability as at 31 December 2017,

As at 31 December 2017, the retained earnings included the statutory surplus reserves of
certain subsidiaries of RMB 141 million (as at 31 December 2016: FME 87 mullion), of
which EMB 53 million (as at 31 December 2016: EMB 38 million) was the appropriation
made by the subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017, Such statutory surplus
reserves in the retained earnings cannot be distributed.
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51 Non-controlling interests
MNoo-controlling interests inchuded ordimary shareholders held by non-comrolling imfersst m subsidaries and other squity imstromemt
bolders’ imferests. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2014, other equity mstrument holders” interest amounted to BMB 5,140
million representing other equify instnaments issued by CBL an entity ultimately contralled by the Group. Such mstuments are perpetual
non-cummiative subordinated additional Tier- Ome capital secunities (the “Capital Secunties ™).

Finanicial ingryrmmi Fuownent
i b P Das Mamiimal Falue Firs Ol Dt Cngrovn Raste Fringismicy
T.25% per arsum For the N ive yean afler dosancs,
UED 30 ind fe-priead ewery five years 1o mile equivlent 55 e
Cupitsd Becusity 2 April 7014 millicns 2T Ageil 20019 e year 1S Tressiiry it frlo S50 T% por isruim Serni-aninlly
£25% per wrvsen for the first five years afler s,
D 500 ind fe-priead ewery five years 1004 mile equivabent 15 e
Cigetsd Secirity 11 Deteber 216 milliena 11 Coctshesy 3021 e peir U Trmoiey o plus 31075 pot sriie. Semicansinlly

CBI may, at its sole discretion, elect to cancel any payment of coupon, in whole or in part, or redeem Capital Securities in whole on the first
call date and any subsequent coupon distibuton date, where the holders of these Capital Securities have no right to require CBI to redeem
These Capital Securities listed above are classified as other eguity mstruments.

A distnibution payment of BMEB 290 million was paid to the holders of the Capital Security during the year ended 31 December 2017 (year
ended 31 December 2016 BMB 144 million).
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Om 29 September 2017, the Dfth meeting of the fourth session of the board of directors of the Bank reviewed and approved the Proposal on
the Capital Injection and Issuance of New Shares of China CITIC Bank Imternational Limited {"CINCEI'), the 100%: owned subsidiary of
CIFH which is a subsidiary of the Bank. The Bank agreed that CMCET would fssue 3,027,780,302 new shares to be subscribed by five
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51 Non-controlling interests {continued)
investors. The total investment amount of the five investors is approximately HED
9,053 million. CNCEI is the second tier wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank before
the Capital Injection with clear ownership relations of the subject matter of the
transaction. After the Capital Injection, CIFH holds 75% equity interests of CNCBL

53 Notes to consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December
207 2ola
Cash 6,740 7,407
Cash equivalents
- Surphes deposit reserve fimds 80288 58,855
- Dieposits with banks and non-bank financial
instittions due within three months when acquired 110,898 204,665
- Placements with and loans fo banks and non-bank
when acquired 70078 63,158
- Investment securities due within three months
when acouired 51,911 51,271
Subeotal 331,175 377,940
“Toital 337,915 385,356
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Commitments and contingent liabilities
Credit commitments

The Group’s credit commitments take the form of lean commitments, credit card
commitments, financial guarantees, letters of credit and bank acceptances.

Loan commitments and credit card commitments represent the undrawn amount of
approved loans with signed contracts and credit card limits. Financial guarantees and
letters of credit represent guarantees provided by the Group to guarantee the performance
of customers to third parties. Bank acceptances comprise undertakings by the Group to
pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group expects the majority acceptances to
be settled simultanecusly with the reimbursement from the customers.

The contractual amounts of credit commitments by categories are set out below. The
amounts disclosed in respect of loan commitments and credit card commitments assume
that amounts are fully drawn down. The amounts of guarantees, letters of credit and
acceptances represent the maximum potential loss that would be recogmised at the
reporting date if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.

31 December I Decamber
o017 2018

Contractual amonnt

Loan comnuitments

- with an original mamrity within one year 14,926 5246
- with an original mamrity of one year or sbove 3743 66,490
Subtotal 72360 74936
(Guarantess 195,746 163,157
Letters of credit 88,772 26,490
Bank acceptances 427 561 535,313
Credit card commitments 310,315 215 845
Total 1,084 754 1,075,750
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Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

Credit commitments analysed by credit risk weighted amount

31 December 31 December
2007 2016
Credit risk weighted amount of credit conmitments 351475 337216

The credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in accordance with the
rules set out by the CBREC and depends on the statos of counterparties and the maturity
characteristics. The risk weighting used range from 0% to 130%.

Capital commitments

(1) The Group had the following authorised capital commitments in respect of property,
plant and equipment at the reporting date:

31 Decamber 31 Decembear
007 2016
Contracted for 7,385 7297

(it} On 7 June 2017, the Bank together with Chuna Shuangwei Investment Co. Ltd., a
subsidiary of China National Tobacco Corporation (“CNTCT), entered into a Sale and
Purchase Agreement with JSC “Halyk Bank™ to acquire 60% of the shaves of JSC
“Altyn Bank™, a subsidiary of JSC “Halyk Bank™. The execution of this transaction has
been approved by relevant regulatory authorities. As of 31 December 2017, the
consideration remains to be determined and the expected transaction will be completed
in 2018.

(111) As announced by the Bank dated 17 November 2015, the Board of Directors
approved the establishment of an asset management company (China CITIC Bank
Asset Management Corporation Limited) by the Bank subject to the approval of
televant regulatory authorities. The proposed registered capital of this asset
management company was EMB 2 billion.
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54 Commitments and contingent liabilities {continued)
{d) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment vnder operating leases, which
typically run for an initial period from one to five years and may include an option to
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated. As at 31 December | the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 Decembar 31 Decamber

27 20ia

Within one year 2876 2,917
After one year bt within two years 2802 2454
After two years but within three years 2306 2,137
Afer three years but within five years 3418 3,354
After five years 2122 2,486
Total 13,614 13,348

{e) Ouistanding contingencies including litigation and disputes

The Group has assessed and has made provisions for any probable cutflow of economic
benefits in relation to commitments and contingent liabilities at the reporting date in
accordance with ifs accounting policies including litigation and disputes. Such
contingencies, inchuding litigation and disputes, will not have material impact on financial
position and operations of the Banl:

As at 31 December 2017, the Group was involved in certain potential and pending
litigaticn as defendant with gross claims of EMB 748 million (as at 31 December 2016:
EME 517 million). Based on the opinion of internal and external legal counsels, the
Group had made a provision of EMB 394 million (as at 31 December 2016: EMBE

244 million) against these litigation (Note 42).
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Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)
Bonds redemption obligations

As an underwriting agent of PRC treasury bonds, the Group has the responsibility to buy
back those bonds sold by it should the holders decide to early redeem the bonds held. The
redemption price for the bonds at any time before their maturity dates is based on the
nominal value plus any interest unpaid and accrued up to the redemption date. Accmed
interest payables to the bond holders are caleulated in accordance with relevant mles of the
MOF and the PBOC. The redemption price may be different from the fair value of similar
instruments traded at the redemption date.

The redemption obligations below represent the nominal value of treaswry bonds
underwritten and sold by the Group, but not yet matured at the reporting date:

31 Decambar 31 Decamber
27 2008
Fedemption commitment for PRC trezsury bonds 11 492 12723

The original matorities of these bonds vary from one to five years. Management of the
Group expects the amount of redemption before maturity dates of these bonds will not be
material The MOF will not provide funding for the early redemption of these bonds on a
back-to-back basis, but will settle the principal and interest upon maturity.

Underwriting obligations

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group did not have unfulfilled
commitment in respect of securities nnderwriting business.
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55 Collateral

(a) Assets pledged

(i) The carrying amount of financial assets pledged as collateral in the Group’s ordinary
course of businesses, including repurchase agreements and borrowings from central
banks, are disclosed as below:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Debt securities 407,755 324303
Discounted bills 52,780 29188
Orhers 111 T8
Total 460,546 353,567

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group’s liabilities related to the
above collateral were due within 12 months from the effective dates of these
agreements and title of these collateral was not transferred to counterparties.

(i) In addition, as at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged debt securities and deposits
with banks and other financial institutions with carrying amount totalling RMB
1,668 million (as at 31 December 2016: EMB 1,153 million) as collateral for
derivative transactions and guarantee funds to exchanges. Title of these pledzed assets
was not transferred to counterparties.

(b) Collateral accepted

The Group received debt securities as collateral for financial assets held uoder resale
agreements as set out in Note 21. Under the terms of theses agreements, the Group could
not resell or re-pledge certain parts of these collateral unless n the event of default by the
counterparties. As at 31 December 2017, there was no collateral that can be resold or re-
pledged by the Group (as at 31 December 2016: Nil). During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group did not resell or re-pledge any of these collateral (year ended 31
December 2016: Nil).
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Transactions on behalf of customers

Entrusted lending business

The Group provides entrusted lending business services to corporations and individuals, as
well as entrusted provident housing fund mortgage business services. All entrusted loans
are made under the instruction or at the direction of these corporations, individuvals or
provident housing fund cenire and are funded by entrusted funds from them.

For entrusted assets and ligbilities and entrusted provident houwsing fund mortgage
business, the Group does not expose to credit risk in relation to these fransactions. but acts
as an agent to hold and manage these assets and liabilities at the instruction of the
entrusting parties and receives fee income for the services provided.

Trust assets are not assets of the Group and are not recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position. Income received and receivable for providing these
services is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as fee income.

At the reporting date, the entmisted assets and hiabilities were as follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2ola

Entrusted loans T91.555 703,259
Entrusted fiunds 791,558 703,260

Wealth management services

The Group’s wealth management services to customers mainly represent sale of wealth
management products, including principal guaranteed (Note 62(c)) and non-principal or
interest guaranteed wealth management products (Note 62(b)), to corporate and personal
banking customers.

The fonds raised by non-principal guaranteed wealth management produocts from investors
are invested in warious imvestments, including debt securities and money market
instruments_ credit assets and other debt instroments. equity instruments ete. Credit risk,
liguidity risk and interest rate risk associated with these products are borne by the
customers. The Group only earns commission which represents the charges on customers
in relation to the provision of custodian, sale and management services. Income is
recognised in the consclidated statement of profit or loss as comunission income. The
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Group has entered into placements tramsactions at market interest rates with the wealth
management products vehicles (Note 62(b)).
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Transactions on behalf of customers (continned)
Wealth management services (continued)

The assets and liabilities of these wealth management products are not assets and liabilities
of the Group and are not recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2017, the amount of total assets invested by these non-principal
guaranteed wealth management products issued by the Group was disclosed in Note 62(b).

Segment reporting

Measurement of segment assets and liabilities, and segment income and expenses are
based on the Group’s accounting policies.

Internal charges and transfer pricing of transactions between segments are determined for
management purpose and have been reflected in the performance of each segment. Net
interest income and expenses arising from internal charges and transfer pricing adjustments
are referred to as “Internal net interest income/expenses”. Interest income and expenses
earned from third parties are referred to as “External net interest income/expenses™.

Segment income, expense, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment assets and
liabilities do not include deferved tax assets and liabilities. Segment income, expenses,
assets, and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances, and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process. Segment capital
expenditure is the total costs ineurred during the year to acguire assets (including both
tangible assets and intangible assets) whose estimated usefuol lives are over one year.
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Segment reporting (continned)

Business segments

The Group has the following main business segments for management purpose:
Corporate banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to
corporations, government agencies and non-finanecial institutions. as well as conduets
investment banking businesses and international businesses. The products and services
include corporate loans, deposit taking activities, agency services, remittance and
settlement services and guarantee services.

Personal banking

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial products and services to
individual customers and small enterprises. The products and services comprise loans,
deposit services, securities agency services, remittance and settlement services and
guarantes services.

Treasury operations

This segment conduocts capital markets operations, inter-bank operations, which,
specifically, includes inter-bank money market transactions. repurchase transactions, and
mvestments and trading in debt imstruments. Furthermore, treasury operations segment
also carries out derivatives and forex trading both for the group and for customers.

Others and unallocated

Others comprise components of the Group that are not attributable to any of the above
segments, along with certain assets, liabilities, income or expenses of the Head Office that
could not be allocated on a reasomable basis. This segment also manages the Group's
liguidity position.

In 2017, the Group adjusted and improved the allocation method of business segment
reporting, adjusted patt of treasury business that belongs to corporate banking and personal

banking from others and unallocated business segment to the corresponding business
segments The related comparative figures have been restated accordingly.
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57 Segment reporting (continued)

{a) Business segments (continued)

) Tear ended 31 Decamber 2017 )
Corporate Parsonal Treasury Othars and
Extemal net inferest ncome{expense) 56,534 43,899 20,671 (21,458 99,645
Internal net interest income/{expense) 16442 {23,724 (17.572) 24854 -
Wet mterest income T2978 20,175 3009 3385 99,645
Wet fize and conumission mcome/{expense) 13285 32,8566 T 5 45,858
Orther net income (Mot (1)) 519 1,312 7318 1318 10,728
Operating income 87,080 54,353 11,080 4,718 157,231
Operating expenses
- depreciation and amortisstion (995) (432) (354) (8300 (2,811)
- others (20.621) (23,747) (1.352) (112) (46,102)
Impairment losses (44.651) (9,801) (2109 (1,035) (55,787
Fevalnation gain on imyestment properties - - - 30 30
Share of loss from associates and joint ventures - - - (ZB5) (2B5)
Profit before tax 20,743 20,283 B.764 2486 52,276
Income tax (9.398)
Net profit 42 878
Capital expendinire 3,309 1,981 1.953 1,157 8,400
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Segment reporting (continned)

Business segments (confinued)

31 Docamber 2007
Corparata Parsonal Treasury Othars and

Banking Banking Operanons  Unallocated Total

Sepment assets 1,392 685 1,324,514 1416578 519,638 5,653,525

Interest in associates and jodnt ventures - - 131 2210 2,341

Defermed fx assets 21825

Total asset 3,677,691

Segment liabilides 3057267 BT5,2B5 §50,713 681,985 5,263,250

Deferrad tax liahilities 8

Total Habilities 3,165 258
Off-balance sheet credit

commitments T84.439 310,315 - - 1,004,754
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Segment reporting (continned)

Business segments (confinued)

External net inferest income/(expense)
Internal net mterest income/{expensa)

et interest income
HMet fee and commission income|(expense)
Orther net income (Mote (1))

Operating income
Operating expenses
- depreciation and amortsation
- others
Impairment losses
Fevalnation gxin on mvestment properties
Share of gain from associates and jomt
ventures
FProfit before fax
Income tax

Net profit

Capiral expenditore

Tear ended 31 December 201 6(restated)

Corporate Parsomal Treaswry  Others and Tanterl
Banking Bankimg  Operations  Uhallocated

50,858 30447 26,573 (10,7400 104,138
14,885 (12.125) (16,670 14110 -
74543 18322 0903 3,370 106,138
12,843 23,136 6,296 5 42,280
3,780 1,347 1,053 (4397 3,41
01,185 42 805 17,252 2,036 154,150
(1,000) 70 (750} (3 (2,703)
(Q1603)  QLE25) (117D (679) (44,560
(#H,340) (7.312) (217} (408) (51,188)
- - - B g

- - - 1 1
24033 13 DEE 15103 1,484 34 608
(12,820

41,786

2811 1,182 1,955 840 6,7EE
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Segment reporting (continned)

Business segments (confinued)

31 Decambar 201 6restated)

Parsonal Treazury
Banking  Operations

1034645 1775788
- 100

809.320 1261472

215.845 -

Orhers and Togai
Unallocated

535,989 5817242
1,011 1,111
12,607

5,831,050

252,669 5,546,543
11

5 554

- L075.750

Banking
Segment assets 2,566,820
Interest in associate and joint venhres -
Deferred max assets
Total asset
Segment liabilities 3,223 082
Deferred tax lisbilides
Total liabilities
Oif-balance sheet credit
Commitments 850 905
Note:

(i)  Other net income consists of net trading gain net gain from investment securities,
net hedging gain and other operating income.
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Segment reporting (continued)
Geographical segments

The Grouwp operates principally in Mainland China with branches located in 31 provinces,
autcnomous regions and municipalities. The Bank’s principal subsidiaries, CNCB
Investment and CIFH are registered and operating in Hong Kong. The other subsidiaries,
Lin’an Rural Bank and CFLL are registered in Mainland China.

In presenting information by geographical segments, operating income is allocated based
on the location of the branches that generated the revenue. Segment assets and capital
expenditure are allocated based on the geographical location of the underlying assets.

Geographical segments, as defined for management reporting purposes, are as follows:

- “Yangtze River Delta™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group
are located: Shanghai Nanjing, Suzhou, Hangzhou and Ningbo, as well as Lin"an Rural
Bank:

- “Pearl River Delta and West Strait™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches
of the Group are located: Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Dongguan, Fuzhow, Xiamen, and
Haikou;

- “Bohai Rim™ refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are
located: Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian. Qingdao, Shijiazhuang, Jinan and CFLL;

- “Central” region refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are
located: Hefei, Zhengzhou, Wuhan, Changsha, Taiyuan and Nanchang;

- “Western” region refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group are
located: Chengdu, Chongging, Xi'an, Kunming, Nanning, Hohhot, Unimei, Guiyang,
Lanzhou, Xining, Yinchuan and Lhasa;

- “Northeastern™ region refers to the following areas where tier-1 branches of the Group
iz located: Shenyang. Changchun and Harbin;

- “Head Office™ refers to the headguarter of the Bank and the Credit Card Center; and
- “Overseas” includes all the operations of CNCB Investment, CIFH and its subsidiaries.
The Group reclassified the investments classified as recervables from the assets of the
Headguarters to the corresponding geographical segments The related comparative figures
have been restated accordingly.
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57 Segment reporting (continmed)
(B  Geographical segments {continned)

T il 31 Dhiiimbnir 2077
Fasgiee  Pasrd River Duilta

Fiver Dhilta  aviel Wiiat Bvair _ Foleal Rim Castral Weitirn _Novtheastern  Raad Offce  Owersnas _ Flisisation Tkl
Extlermal pel islenesl mose 16385 143 a2 14652 14385 LIATS 24,542 5173 - R
[miernil nel sleres
4 E NG N T 1 B 121 57 (s@mn [ - -
Hel indersat oo 515 IESED 413 14,504 12384 1,70 3555 4085 - DE4E
Het fee and eomeisecn insoms 4150 3 650 57 1.4 1.5 300 27,554 1,544 - &5 E5E
Oithes gl ifaniie [Pte () 17 mn 2 20 o el T108 1,5M - 10,728
g g v e b M5 WA Ihca 1438 L1 43,727 E101 - 157,231
Ubgeralisgg expeine
- deprecitlion il armstisalion A7) [ B T - N s s 0 - EEn
- el (.55 B3 (LT E0ET e 0233 (L3E L8 - eI
Impairmer ses {13.367) (0si @36 OB) (S0 I e 02 - T
Revmlualion gain = Eyedmend
pperte: - El - »
Fhuee of livis from aseociiles and
ol vestEes - - - - - - (M) (81} - (I85)
Fralit befare i 31 A0 BIE4 3456 1365 4 I 3G - 51O
re— (3,398
Pralil Fer the year 42578
Cigetad espendites 103 113 17 1,161 30 kL 1997 175 - 2400
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57 Segment reporting (continmed)
(B  Geographical segments {continned)

31 Dvimbar 2017
Ttz Parl River Dvlta

River Dalis vl West Svraiy _ Bobusi Riwe Cunral Western _ Worthensirn _Fasd fffce Overnas _ Fhmisation Ttal
Seunenl wssty 1,786,981 15,081 LEEIN 25,57 578042 AR 2298 505 IEES]  (16ELISH) SESRI2E
[mierel i aracetale
U ; . . . - - LI LLes - =
Drefisren] Mt seisiets 21,835
Total aseris SATT8H
Segmert lislribizes 1,135,639 E20,301 1,079,757 565,019 £23,560 BE04T 2456513 66293 (1,638,589) 525,250
Cefisrend s Tabilitien E
Tl liahilities 5,165,258
[ali X ———y
it 196,104 156,719 154,940 161,686 25618 13,277 304,000 13381 - Lie4, 7548

144

376/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

China CITIC Bank Cerporation Limited
Motes to the Consohidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions gf Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

57 Segment reporting (continmed)
(B  Geographical segments {continned)

Fiar indded 3] Decombir 307 ffrertated)
Fangrse  Puarl River Dira
Rbvir Dt and West Stesit Bhal Rim Critral Fisterni Marth Head (fics  Owirsiad  Elivviati Toksd
Extermal nel lerel ioiee 12616 13,893 2,343 15,400 15,132 3,084 25,884 E% il - W13
Irernal net islerst i i :) 130 2,844 11,224 {587} L1} (E52) [12,355) =3 -
el inbersit insarme 11413 15,337 20,567 143n 13518 31 13,518 175 - W13
Het T iand ecanmizenn insoes 5308 317 5644 LG ERLS ] 20,319 1437 - 42280
Cother et irwssee (Mot (1) 157 0 BE2 EVE] 71 45 1085 n7 - 5741
o s— 11563 20,87 T8 17,381 16,942 1682 35,002 5570 B LR
Opratisg expris:
- depreciation ad emeisalion 415 am (454 @33 {405} (104) (57 31 - 2
- oilber (BOSETY (5A5E) (EOLT) 5451} [EN] (1143) (E671) (2501 - (44565
It e I [LE70) (2.431) a5y s (1355 (5,851) [4E3) - (SRIED
Revmlinlion giin oo Evetment
- - - - - - E] ]
Shie of lives e asecies md
foinl veslises - - - - - - 1 1
Prafli befare fa o7 (] 2,181 2143 42 30 19,800 2773 - 54,608
Inziene it [AFE i)
Prafit Far the year 41,786
Ciagetsd esgpendiles 2159 35 204 8 472 106 7,308 175 - .7E
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57 Segment reporting (continmed)
(B  Geographical segments {continned)

31 Diocomibir T fresrated)
Tamgise Paari Rivtr Didea

Bisar D anid West Srair Bohar Ris Canitral Wariven Morthessirn Haad Offcr Chermar Flmusution Tetal
Sepnend wansty 1,306,595 1,133,438 1,580,553 2,040 T2IN 116,536 113,508 P42 (Ll AT
[miefal o aahieiae
el jaint vesiEes - - - - - - - LU0 - L
Diefirred mit icets 1257
Tl asierls 5,931,050
Sepmert lindribiae L3443 2W3,235 1,256,132 656,216 568,835 25,161 2337755 BEIM  (LL14ER 5545543
Doefiesrend man Teabilitien 1
Tl liahilities 5,546,554
O buabetre akeet
=l vemrdmand 11,506 117938 138,178 193,363 114,711 17171 2 SET sl - 1,075,750

Tote:

() Orther pet income consists of net trading gam. net Fain from myvestment securities, net hedging Fain and other operating income.
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Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to and its management and

control of risks, in particular the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arize from the
failuore of a costomer or counterparty to meet ifs confractual
obligations or commitments to the Group.

Market risk Market nisk anses from unfavourable changes in market prices
(interest rate, exchange rate, stock price or commodity price) that
lead to a loss of on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet business in
the Group.

- Liguidity risk Liguidity risk arises when the Group, in meeting the demand of
liabilities due and other payment obligations as well as the needs of
business expansion, is unable to sufficiently, timely or cost-
effectively acquire funds.

Operational risk  Operational risk arises from inappropriate or problematic internal
procedures, personnel. IT systems, or external events, such risk
includes legal risk, but excluding strategy risk and reputational risk.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to constantly monitor the risks and limits by means
of reliable and up-to-date management information systems. The Group regularly modifies
and enhances its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and best practice risk management processes. Internal anditors also perform regular
aundits to ensure compliance with relevant policies and procedures.

Credif risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from a customer or counterparty's
failure to meet its obligations when due. The Group identifies and manages this risk through
its target market definitions, credit approval process, post-disbursement monitoring and
remedial management procedures. Credit risk arises primarily from credit business. In
respect of treasury businesses  credit risk mainly represents impairment losses on different
types of investments due to default by issuers or counterparties, and inability of derivative
counterparties in fulfilling their obligations.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk {continued)
Credit business

In addition to underwriting standards, the principal means of managing credit risk are credit
limit management, credit approval process, post-disbursement monitoring procedures such as
eatly warning and examination etc. The Group has policies and procedures to evaluate the
potential credit risk of a particular counterparty or transaction and to approve the transaction.

The Group undertalkes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring at several levels. The policies
are designed to promote early detection of counterparty, industty or product exposures that
require special monitoring. The Risk and Internal Control Committee monitors overall
portfolio risk as well as individual problematic credit business, both actual and potential. on a
regular basis.

The Group adopts a credit risk classification approach to manage the portfolio risk. Credit
businesses are classified as non-impaired and impaired based on the differemt nisk lewel
When one or more event demonstrates there 15 an objective evidence of impairment and
losses, corresponding credit businesses classified as impaired. The allowanee for impairment
losses on impaired credit businesses is collectively or individually assessed as appropriate.

The Group applies a series of criteria in determining the classification of credit business.
The credit classification criteria focuses on a number of factors, including (1) the obligor’s
ability to repay the credit business, (ii) the obligor’s repayment history, (iii) the obligor’s
willingness to repay, (iv) the net realisable value of collateral if any, and (v) the prospect for
the support from any financially responsible guarantor. The Group also takes into account
the length of time for which payments of principal andior interests on credit business are
overdue, high risk products and geographical locations together with deterioration in national
or regional economic conditions.

The Group’s credit policies and approval processes for personal loans are designed with
reference to the fact that there are high volumes of relatively homogeneous, small value
transaction in each getail loan category. Because of the nature of retail banking, the credit
policies are based primarily on the Group’s strategy and statistical analyses of risks with
respect to different products and types of customers. The Group monitors its own and
industry experience to determine and periodically revise product terms and desired customer
profiles.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Credif risk {continued)
Credit business {continued)

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and contingencies are essentially the same
as the credit risk mvolved in extending credit business facilities to customers. These
transactions are, therefore subject to the same credit application, portfolio maintenance and
collateral requirements as for customers’ application for credit businesses.

Concenfration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic, economic or industrial
factors similarly affect the Group’s counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
material in relation to the Group’s total exposures. The Group’s portfolio of credit business
iz diversified along industry, geographic and product sectors.

Treasury business

The Group sets credit limits for treasury operations based on the credit risk inherent in the
products, counterparties and geopraphical area. The Group’s system closely monitors the
credit exposure on a real-time basis, regolarly reviews its credit limit policies and adjusts the
credit limits, taken into account various factors including market condition at the time.
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58 [Financial risk management (continued)
fa) Credif risk {continued)
(i) Maximum credit risk exposure

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date without taking into
consideration of any collateral held or other credit enhancement is represented by
the net balance of each type of financial assets in the statement of financial position
after deducting any allowance for impairment losses. A summary of the maximum
exposure is as follows:

31 Docamber 31 Decemniber
2007 2016
Balances with central hanks 561,560 545921
Deposits with bank and non-bank financial institafions 124,350 208,641
Placements with and loans to banks and non-bank
financial institutions 172,069 167 308
Financial assefs st fair valie through profit or loss §1.380 4910
Dervative financial assets 65,451 47,366
Financial assets beld ymder resale agreements 54,626 170,804
Interest receivables 32643 32012
Loans snd advances to customers 3,105 984 2 802 384
Anailable-for-sale financisl assets 510,790 512,585
Held-to-maturity investments 216,586 217458
Invesmments classified as receivables 531,118 1,035,728
Other financis] assets 47972 49,669
Subtotal 5,484.529 5855 648
Credit comumitments 1,094,754 1075750
Dlaximmm credit risk exposure 6579283 6,931 305
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58 TFinancial risk management (continued)

fa) Credif risk {continued)

(i)

Distribution by credit exposure of loans and advances to customers, due from central
banks, other banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets held under resale
agreements. investment securities, and investments classified as receivable are as follows:

31 December 2017
D from Fimamcial
Lognzs and  central anks, other  assets held Trmvestmanis

aohamces fo banks and non-bank  wnder resale  Imvestment  classifed as

Impaired
Individually assessed
Gross balance 42155 1 - 137 -
Allowance for impairment

lomses (28.930) M - (50) -
et halance 13325 - - g7 -
Collectively assessed
Gross balance 11,3493 - - - -
Allowance for impairment

o (8.978) - - - -
et halance 1417 - - - -
Owverdue but not impaired {1

- less than three months 30,812 - - - -

- three momnths to one year 0514 - - - -

- more than one year 148 - - - -
Gross balance 40,474 - - - -
Allowance for impai

Impairment (9315) _ _ _ _
et halance 31,159 - - - -
Neither overdue
nor impaired

Gross balance 3,102,765 B57.979 54,626  TEE G660 534,061
Allowance for impairment

losses. 2 (43.682) - - - (2,043)
et halance 3,059,083 B57.979 3626  TEE G660 531,118
Toital net balance 3,105 984 B57.979 34626  TEETS6 531,118
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58 Financial risk management (continued)

fa) Credif risk (continued)

(11)

oOoOooodn

Distribution by credit exposure of loans and advances to customers, due from central
banks, other banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets held under
resale agreements, investment securities. and investments classified as receivables
are as follows: (continued)

Novaz

Impaired

Individually assessed

(Gross balance

Allovwance for inTpaimment
losses

Neither overdue nor impaired

(Gross balance

Allowance for inTpaimment
Insses @

Total net balance

31 Decembar 2016
Dhg from Fingmcial
Loans and  central banks, other azsets held Trrvestmants
adhvemces to  Bamks and pon-bank  under resals Tvestment  claszified as
customers fimancial instiutions JETEEME LT securiiies  recenables
33,001 33 - 61 -
(23,448) @ - (31) -
12 553 24 - 30 -
10,579 - - - -
@.107) - - - -
2472 - - - -
34,667 - - - -
14,183 - - - -
48 260 - - - B
(8.393) - - - -
40 465 - - - -
2,780 48T 921,780 170,804 TR5077 1037484
(33.503) 34 - (104 (1,756)
2,746 804 921,746 170,804 784073 1035728
2,802 384 921,770 170,804 795,003 1,035,728
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58 Financial risk management (continued)
fa) Credif risk (continued)
(if) Distribution by credit exposure of loans and advances to customers, due from central
banks, other banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets held under

resale agreements, investment securities, and investments classified as receivables
are as follows: (continued)

MNotes:

{1} Collateral and other credit enhancements for overdue but not impaired corporate
loans and advances to customers

31 Decambaer 31 Decamber

2007 2016

Secured portion 13,877 33488

Unsecured portion 16,597 15374

loans and advances which

‘were overdue but not impaired 40,474 48,880
Of which - maxitnm expasure covered by pledze and

collateral held 33484 41,139

The fair wvalue of collateral was estimated by management based om the latest
revaluations including available external valuations, if any, adjusted by taking into
account the current realisation experience as well as market conditions.

(2) Such allowance for impairment losses represented collective assessed allowance as at
the respective date.
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58 TFinancial risk management (continued)
fa) Credif risk {continued)

(i1} Loans and advances to customers analyzed by industry sector:

31 December 20017 31 Decembar 2016
Loans and Loans and
advancas advancas
Gross secured By Gross securad by
Balance % collateral Dbalance % collataral
Corporate loans
- real estate 333055 104 171488 293 429 102 246,107
- mamifaciuring 324029 101 141,571 385822 134 203,543
- rental and business services 221,786 69 134,207 180,124 6.3 115,905
- wholesale and retail 193,818 6.1 103,102 238,545 B3 146,674
- Water, environment and
public wtility mansgement 178441 56 87,783 148,478 52 77,814
- ransportation, storage and
postal services 152,851 4.8 79,120 161,976 5.8 B4,728
- comstrction TIB78 24 31442 90,568 32 39,612
- production and supply of
elecioric power, gas and water 70,523 22 32,688 G004 21 25,187
- public manazement and
socizl organisations 18,566 0.6 5,399 19 844 o7 4437
- others 285900 B9 120,153 267344 02 108,503
Subtotal LB57. 847 580 1,007,931 1,846274 64.2 1,052,580
Personal loans 1231, 584 386 850,513 Q56,608 i3z 605,631
Discounted bills 107456 34 - 75,47 2.8 -
Gross loans and advances o
CUSIOIETS 3196887 1000 1,867,444 2877927 100.0 1,748,221
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58 TFinancial risk management (continued)
fa) Credif risk {continued)
(i1} Loans and advances to customers analyzed by industry sector: (continued)

Impaired loans and individual and collective allowance for impairment losses in
respect of economic sectors which constitute 10% or more of total loans and
advances to customers are as follows:

31 December 2017
Tnafivieheally Collectively
Tmpaived assersed assessed Impafrment  Impaired loan
loans and patirmeni impairmant charged written-aff
advances allowance aliowance _during the yvear _during the year

Memfectuing 16,843 11449 11,344 15722 {14,200)
Rieal estate 55 639 4136 §25 (62)
31 December 2016

Indivihaliy Collecrively
Impaived assezsed assessed Impairment  Impaired loan
loans and pairmeni impairmant charged writtan-gff
advances allowancs aliowance _during the year _during the year

Mam facturing 14,506 10,053 9,063 15,573 (10979
Real estate 147 21 3285 15 (45)

(iv) Loans and advances to customers analysed by geographical sector:

31 Dacember 2017 31 December 2016
Loans and Loans and
advamcas advancer
Gross secured By ross sacured By
Dbaiance % coilateral balance % colloteral

Bohsi Rim (including Head Office) 067,864 03 428764 TTLAIS 268 377892

Yenerze River Delta 651,183 214 443,504 634919 221 413445
Pearl River Delta and West Strait 403,118 154 390,304 477603 166 376,115
Ceniral 421,810 13.2 265888 374358 13.0 230,806
Westemn 380,152 12.2 23120 37182 132 238126
Hartheastern 67,609 2.1 44 403 70867 25 47,749
Outside Mainland China 166,151 5.0 63,361 169383 5.3 64,128
Total 3196887  100.0 1867444 2877927 1000 1748221
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58 TFinancial risk management (continued)
fa) Credif risk {continued)
(iv) Loans and advances to customers analysed by geographical sector: (continued)

Impaired loans and individval and collective impairment allowance in respect of
geographic sectors which constitute 10% or more of total advances to customers are

as follows:
31 December 20017
Tndivideaily Collectively
Tmipaired assessed assessed
Toneras amned impanrmant imperirEt
advance allowance allowance
Bohai Rim (incnding Head Office) 15,225 6,731 19251
‘Central 10,705 6,418 B.005
Yangztze River Dela DAT2 6,430 13 685
Western 7.500 3,831 £.190
Paarl River Delta snd West Strait 6,020 3,438 10,140
31 Decemibar 2016
Tndividuaily Collectively
[Tmpaired assessed assassed
Toans and tmpairment impairment
mhamce aligwance aligwance
Bohai Rim (inclodmg Head Office) 13321 6,781 14720
Central 10,312 5307 T.786
Yangtze River Dela 2,002 5117 QB3
Westem 7.121 33214 T.001
Pearl Fiver Delta and West Strait 6,564 3273 8.747

156

388/478



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise siated)

58 TFinancial risk management (continued)
fa) Credif risk {continued)

(v) Loans and advances to customers analyzed by type of security

31 Dacamber 2017 31 December 2016
Unsecured loans 708,164 548,123
Guarantesd loans 513,823 508,538
Secured loans
- loams secured by collateral 1,510,366 1417738
- pledged loans. 357.078 330485
Subtotal 3,080,431 2 802 BBOD
Discounted bills 107,458 75,047
Gross loans and advances to oustomers 3,196 887 2877927
(vi) Rescheduled loans and advances to customers
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
%4 qf total %6 gy total
Gross Toams and Gross loans and
Dalance aahaamcas balance advamces
Fescheduled loans and advances: 23245 0.73% 17234 0.50%
- rescheduled loans and
advances overdne more
than 3 momths 19859 0.52% 14,680 0.51%

Eescheduled loans and advances are those loans and advances to customers which have
been rescheduled or renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the
bomrowers, or of the inability of the borrowers to meet their original repayment schedule
and for which the revised repayment terms are a concessionthat the Group would not
otherwise consider. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, with borrowers’
financial difficulty, the concession the Group considered resulted from economic or
legal reasons is not significant.
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58 TFinancial risk management (continued)
fa)  Credif risk {continued)
(vii) Debt securities analysed by credit rating
The Group adopts a credit rating approach to manage credit risk of its debt
instruments portfolio. The ratings are obtained from major rating agencies where the

debt instruments are issued. The carrying amounts of debt instruments investments
analysed by rating as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2007
Unrared Add A4 A Bolow A Total
(Nore (T}
Diebt securtties issned by:
- EOVEIMments 157,551 48,365 2,440 375 - 314,931
- policy banks 127,848 - - 609 - 128,457
- public enfities 3 - 1,151 - - 1,154
- hanks and non-bank
financial institutions 8,506 180311 3,984 15953 6,734 195,490
- COrparates 0014 96367 23018 15,138 5,187 148,724
Total 402922 305243 36595 32073 11921 788,754
31 December 2016
Lnrated Add Ad A Below 4 Total
(Nore (T}
Debt securities issued by
- ZOVEIMIMENtS 112855 14,050 2 208 1,182 128007
- policy banks 162917 721 oTh - - 164,608
- public entities 3 - - - - 3
- banks and non-bank
financial institwtions. 21,735 228082 23873 18,604 7,58 300,744
- COIpOTAtes 2513 71,512 20484 5,608 1424 101,551
Total I00E23 315275 45319 14422 10,154 795,003
Note:

(i) Unrated debt securities held by the Group are bonds issued primarily by the
Chinese government, policy banks, banks and non-bank financial institutions.
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58 TFinancial risk management (continued)
fa)  Credif risk {continued)

(viil) Investments classified as receivables analysed by type of undetlying assets

31 December 31 December
2017 2018
Interbank assets and wealth mana perment
products izsued by other banks 153510 480,630
Cradit assets 3033848 310,361
ERediscounted bills 77.165 246,403
Total 534,061 1,037 484

The Group includes investments classified as receivables into integrated credit approval
and management system, so that management manages its credit risk exposure in holistic
manner. The type of collateral of credit assets of Investments classified as receivables
inclodes guarantee, security by collateral, and pledge.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk

Market risk refers to risks that may cause a loss of on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet
businesses for the Group due to the adverse movement of market prices, including interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, stock prices and commodity prices. The Group has established
a martket risk management system that formulates procedures to identify, measure, supervise
and control market risks. This system aims to limit market risk to an acceptable level
through examining and approving new products and limit management.

Risk and Internal Control Committee of the Group is responsible for approving market risk
management policies, establishing appropriate organisational structure and information
systems to effectively identify, measure, monitor and control market risks, and ensuring
adequate resources to reinforce the market risk management. The Risk Management
Department is responsible for independently managing and controlling market risks of the
Group, including developing market risk management policies and awthorisation limits,
providing independent report of market risk to identify, measure and monitor the Group’s
market risk. Business departments are responsible for the day-to-day management of market
risks, including effectively identifying. measuring, controlling market risk factors associated
with the relevant operations, so as to ensure the dynamic balance between business
development and risk undertaking.

The Group uses sensitivity analysis, foreign exchange exposure and interest rate re-pricing
gap analysis as the primary instruments to monitor market risk.

Interest rate risk and currency risk are the major market risks that the Group 1s exposed to.
Intevest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate exposures mainly arise from the mismatching of assets and
liabilities” re-pricing dates, as well as the effect of interest rate volatility on trading positicns.

The Group primarily vses gap analysis to assess and monitor its re-pricing risk and adjust the
ratio of floating and fixed rate exposures, the loan re-pricing cycle, as well as optimise the
term structure of its deposits accordingly.

The Group implements varions methods, such as duration analysis, sensitivity analysis, stress

testing and scenario simulation, to measure, manage and report the interest rate risk on a
regular basis.
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58 Financial risk management (continned)
(&) Market risk (comiimued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The following tables summarise the average interest rates, and the pext re-pricing dates or coniractual matmrity date whichewver is earlier for
the assets and Liabilites as at the end of each reporting date.

31 Duvimmbar 2077
Avirage Befween Eitwiin
dmfiTial vk Now-drifiresl L thiawi ik ot o il vt dhat
LT
Cash knd badenses with cssinad sk 1.55% 568,300 pakale] 44,4590 - -
Dhegreciils. with ks i
sim-bank fimnciil selitdiong 211% 124350 - 120,240 41510 -
Fligoements Witk asd boir o bk and
sars-bank Nifsncial sslivadion 30T 17500 - 27,318 4T -
Funisezal aaests hebd ander rowds aggecrmesia LB 54515 - 54,655 - - -
Esweatrnans ¢ b el iy recai ehilen A28 1108 ‘0T 196,546 #6330 181,352 E1RE
Loar end advanses io custosers (Moie (HY) 460 3,105,084 3 1,381,142 AL So0054 14156
Emwaitrnents (Mo (IR} 328% 5,521 [ e 138,710 1723 IBEFEE 150,377
Cahira W4T 173,407 2,383 16,933 - -

Teodal dwicts ST 65 3, T80 L3204 1 loaasm L 423,352 416
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Financial risk management (continned)

Markes risk (coninmued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
31 Duumber 2007
Averagi Hifwean Bifwaem
Prifirienl ol M- betiriat Lars oo Mk it it il Sl tham
ot @I Toval Bataring et vt ariel oot e fivr prars i prars
Liskilitie
Bimnrwisy fom cestnd ks 213 17600 - 41,500 105,10 -
Dieprecsln friem et i
mumbank firsncial salizationn 3T TIE007 LE12 RI3,409 17,781 5
Fliaenents fros bk asl
cimbark firsnzial Salitiznn 185 7585 - 304480 311 - ]
F d I ey seprarrass iy 250% 134,500 - 121677 1351 - -
Dpuils. from ceslomen 150 3,807,636 14505 AT 503,511 241,939 7
Dol sevarities deued 407 £41,244 - 159,063 BEEE0 115,353 3694
Cahers 16E,6TE 153,760 2390 2514 - -
Totsl abdities 5,265,258 181,156 AETSISE 1,013,732 358,297 I6IET
Cetersid rude 12,433 183,554 (1,131,337 05,277 1,000,055 155,429
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58 Financial risk management (continned)
(B  Market risk (comtimued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
31 Dwrcavabar J006
Avirai Batwiim Batwinin
riberes Fafd - it Laeis i vt it i dmd Mara B
Wote @) Tows  beseing  hrermoeths  amlomsvese  fewpesss  fiwe g
LT
Cieth e balaness with central banks 1.51% 55333 37483 Si5340
Ciepeaits with ks und
moi-lnesk Francil Pl 1.40% PR - 206641 2,00
Flacerserts with s ko i buvks
non-biesk Breineil sl 15 157,48 H EN450 BETIY
Firmnztal amels beld isder resale agresmenta 308 1 70,504 - 1T, TE r- | - -
Ir clsaaified 1 A0 103573 I8 1 asroas 441532 [£-=A ] 42088
Lonaten ifod idvoisices b2 cuslienens (Hots (i) ABIN 2302384 L 1158351 DOESER TH5T 12513
Inesilrerta (Mate (1)) 34N 23053 14339 156,398 TEIH 39 150,555
Othea 174,904 146,546 21533 6725 - -
Tostal snety 5,931,060 236,910 2GS 1,630,721 1,150,360 206,004
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58 Financial risk management (continned)

{B)  Market risk {continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
A Dwvimbar 2016
Awirage Bitwoan Eitwian
intirinl rade Wom-intrisd Lais thami i itk o ariad Mdare than
W A1 Toal bwariiy  thres mcai amizl o et e wars Sk i
Liabililies
Bersowing livi ol banls 300 134050 - 39,000 L5 oss
Diepreaits form barka und
nimeloek fnancnl mak s TEI% 201,446 1,E81 TIOAZT 36, 581 - 55
Flacerents Bom banis i
nof-lek Francil mabliitism At 3373 - 53543 TRl
Firmneial amels wchd under sepurchies igrecmissls 247 120,342 - N7349 29 - -
Ciepoaits ots cusioe e 1.58% 3,430,290 14558 2,731 30 SEEDE 3052 13mM
el seriwilien siied 3554 386,046 - EESEI i, hisd 115 56,947
Cihas 150,757 150,300 145 m - -
Total Esbilities 5,545,554 IGSE4E 3,800,349 1,851,704 357,782 58371
[migfeal sale Ry A4 456 s 1L LFT 8040 471,07 2573 14664
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58 Financial risk management (continned)
(b}  Market risk {continued)

Inferest rafe risk (continued)

Notes:

(1} Awverage interest rate represented the ratio of interest income/expense to average
interest bearing assets/liabilities during the year.

(i) For loans and advances to customers, the "Less than three menths™ category
included overduwe amounts (net of allowance for impairment losses) of RMB
43 660 million as at 31 December 2017 (as at 31 December 2016: RMB
54,540 million).

(ii1) Investments included the financial assets at fair walue through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets. held-to-maturity investments and investments
in associates and joint ventures.
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Inferest rafe risk (continued)

The Group uses sensitivity analysis to measure the potential effect of changes in interest
rates on the Group’s net interest income. The following table sets forth the

results of the Group’s interest rate sensitivity amalysis as at 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016.

31 December 2017 31 Decembar 2016
Cthiar Crhar
Nt interest comprehensivg Net interast comprefenive
+100 basis points (6,328) (1.229) (7.845) (1.447)
- 100 basis points 6,328 1,229 7845 1,442

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static interest rate risk profile of the Group’s non-
derivative assets and liabilities and certain assumptions as discussed below. The
analysis measures only the impact of changes in interest rates within one year, showing
how anmalised interest income would have been affected by repricing of the Group’s
non-derivative assets and liabilities within the one-year period. The analysis is based on
the following assumptions: (i) all assets and liabilities that reprice or mature within the
three months bracket, and the after three months but within one vyear bracket are both
reprice or mature at the beginning of the respective periods, (i) 1t does not reflect the
potential impact of uwoparalleled yield curve movements, and (iil) there are no other
changes to the portfolio, all positions will be retained and rolled over upon maturity.
The analysis does not take into account the effect of risk management measures taken
by management. Due to the assumptions adopted, actual changes in the Group’s net
interest income and other comprehensive mcome resulting from increases or decreases
in interest rates may differ from the results of this sensitivity analysis.

Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the potential change of exchange rates that canse a loss to the
on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet business of the Group. The Group measures its
currency risk with foreign cwrency exposures, and manages its currency risk by spot
and forward foreign exchange transactions and matching its foreign cuwrrency
denominated assets with corresponding liabilities in the same currency, as well as using
derivative financial instruments, mainly foreign exchange swaps, to manage its
EXpOSIre.
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Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (confinued)

The exposures at the reporting date were as follows:

31 Decamber 2007
RMEB 5D HED Others Total
equivalent]  equivalent) equivalent)

Assets
Cash and balances with central hanks 551,528 150956 650 166 568,300
Dieposits with banks and

nown-bank financisl institations 23,703 25,650 8411 6,586 124,350
Placements with and loans to banks

and non-bank financial instittions 133,686 28,356 6,703 3324 172,068
Fmanrial assets held nnder resale

AETEEmMENtS 54,8245 - - - 54,626
Investments classified as receivahbles 531,118 - - - 531,118
Loans and advances to customers 2,880,887 106,687 103,638 14,772 3,105,984
Twestments 246,759 46,738 18,687 4336 016,521
Orthers 100 761 1004 1,618 1440 204,723
Total assets 5282048 2215202 139,707 30,624 5677601
Bomowings from central banks 237,600 - - - 237,600
Dieposits from banks and

nown-bank financisl instimntions 769,590 15,103 349 12,865 TRE007
Placements from banks and

nown-bank financisl institations 66,913 10411 253 18 77,505
Fmanrial assets sold umder

repurchase agTeements 134,384 116 - - 134,500
Dieposits from cnstomers 3,053,751 201,668 128314 23003 3407636
Dbt securities issued 421,420 19,122 702 - 441,244
Orthers 150458 1 066 3381 3873 168,676
Total liabilities 4843214 248 386 132,999 40,650 5,265,258
Net on-balance sheet position 438,854 (23,084) 6,708 (10,035) 412433
Credit commitments 038,064 117,615 20,124 18,251 1,004 754
Deerivatives (Mote (i) (20,790) 2158 21,489 7.532 17,380
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (confinued)
31 Decemnbrar 2016
RME UsD HED Oithers Total
(RME (RMB (RME
agunaient) aguiaient) aquiaiant)

Aszets
Cash and balances with central banks 524 B85 27,676 &01 166 553328
Deposits with banks and

noo-tank financisl institutions 158,350 10 861 12451 7970 208,641
Placements with and loans to banks

and non-bank financial instinations 139,008 17,243 B302 1,065 167,208
Fmanrial assets held nnder rezale

AETEEmEnts 170,804 - - - 170804
Invesments classified as receivables 1,035,728 - - - 1,035,728
Loans and advances to customers 2534542 168,570 83,657 14,615 28072384
Investments 751,958 33,050 25808 6,238 318,053
Orthers 125,301 41,200 4,163 3,550 174 904
Total assets 5,440,576 320,700 135,162 34513 5,931,050
Bomowings from central banks 184,050 - - - 184,050
Deeposits from banks and

noo-tank financisl institutions 232,435 41,923 B15 6,273 981 446
Placements from banks and

noo-tank financial institutions 57,671 215,688 197 167 83723
Fmanrial assets sold imder

repurchase agresments 118,515 1,827 - - 120342
Deposits from customers 3,304,504 181,508 119,014 34,264 3,639.290
Dbt securities issued 360,652 16,817 477 - 386048
Orthers 126,706 14,603 3,711 5,647 150,757
Total liabilities 5093 623 282 366 124214 46,351 5,546,554
Net on-balance sheet posifion 346,053 38433 10,048 (11,838) 384496
Credit commitments 258,523 20,017 12151 15,058 1,075,750
Derivatives (Mote (1)) 31,003 (16,931) 12341 (16,57%) 2838
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Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (confinued)

Note:

(1} Derivatives represent the net notional amount of currency derivatives, inchiding
undelivered foreign exchange spot. foreign exchange forward, foreign exchange
swap and currency option.

The Group uses sensitivity analysis to measure the potential effect of changes in foreign

currency exchange rates on the Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The following table sets forth, as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the
results of the Group’s foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis.

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Cthar Other
Prgfft comprehensive Prgffi compraiensig
Bgfbore tax income bafbre fax meome
5% appreciation 582 [ g04 15
5% depreciation (582) () (304) (15)

This sensitivity analysis is based on a static foreign exchange exposure profile of assets
and liabilities and certain assumptions as follows: (1) the foreign exchange sensitivity is
the gain and loss recognised as a result of 500 basis point fluctuation in the foreign
currency exchange rates against EMB at the reporting date, (ii) the exchange rates
against RME for all foreign currencies change in the same direction simultaneously and
does not take into account the correlation effect of changes in different foreign
currencies, and (11} the foreign exchange exposures calculated include both spot foreign
exchange exposures, foreign exchange derivative instruments, and; all positions will be
retained and rolled over upon maturity. The analysis does not take into account the
effect of risk management measures taken by management. Due to the assumptions
adopted, actual changes in the Group’s profit and other comprehensive income resulting
from increases or decreases in foreign exchange rates may differ from the results of this
sensitivity analysis. Precious metal is included in foreign currency for the purpose of
this sensitivity analysis.

169

401/478

oOoOooodn



)

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk arises when the Group, in meefing the demand of liabilities due and other
payment obligations as well as the needs of business expansion, is unable to sufficiently,
timely or cost-effectively acquire funds. The Group's liguidity risk arises mainly from
the mismatch of assets to liabilities and customers may concentrate their withdrawals.

The Group has implemented overall ligquidity risk management on the entity level. The
headguarters has the responsibility for developing the entire Group’s ligquidity risk
policies, strategies, and implements centralised management of liquidity risk on the
entity level. The domestic and foreign affiliates develop their own liquidity policies and
procedures within the Group’s liquidity strategy management framework, based on the
requirements of relevant regulatory bodies.

The Group manages liquidity nisk by setting various indicators and operational limits
according to the overall position of the Group’s assets and liabilities, with referencing to
market condition. The Group holds assets with high liquidity to meet unexpected and
material demand for payments in the ordinary course of business.

The tools that the Group uses to measure and monitor liquidity risk mainly include:

- Liguidity gap analysis;

- Liquidity indicators (including but not limited to regulated and internal managed
mdicators, such as liquidity coverage ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio, louidity ratio,
liguidity gap rate, excess reserves rate) monitoring;

- Scenario analysis;

- Stress testing.

On this basis, the Group establishes regular reporting mechanisms for ligmidity risk to
report the latest situation of liquidity risk to the senior management on a timely basis.
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58 Financial risk management (contimned)
(e} Liguidicy risk feontinued)
Anaiysis qf the remaiming contraciun maneiy qf assers and Fabiiter

3] Dcemiber 2007
B e Batwiini
Rapapshie Futkin Lreemeontks aneomd  More hen
omlmand  Imonth ondenswesr  feepesrs  fiwean Diedaed Tata!
ik {1}
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Ir sasified ikl 04 196, 142 91,384 174,645 7136 - S3LIIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(dmounts in millions gff Revoninkd unless otherwize stated)

Financial risk management (continned)
Liguidity risk (continned)
Anaiysis qf the remaiming contracium maney g arsers and Fabiitier (contmued)

BT Decimidnie 20086
Bateriin Betwiin
R payabis Fithari thrid ncniths et LE= o B
o slermand Iomcmths andond pedr (e pedrs  fiwe jaan Dimdasind Tusal
(Mot @&l

A
oy il Blasoss with cenizal banls E6.247 =] 18,865 - - 4813 55333
Depeaits with bk and son-bank lirsccsl i 10,482 105,158 2000 - - - 08548
Fi with s | sartis sl non-bank
franzial maziiiona - B2 BET4] - - 4 167,308
Firsncial sweets Beld usder resale agresment - TS - - - - 1T304
[ clinsified | - kLR 441531 197,312 41048 - 10573
Levietsi el advisees be omiomnen (Mot (i) 15520 SI2EH) 2444 SAEMD T, 530 30990 LBOZIR4
Irwesireerria (Bate (1)) 3005 132817 187363 26083 155507 11278 IR
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Coeproaith Fore binnks and seon-benk Neciel sl 133,673 SER6I5 5,588 - 550 - 0] 485
Flazereenla oo baien sl neneloek fnuecol sl - 53043 2,730 - f ol
Firemzial worts skl unde repunchives mzecire=ts - 117,349 2593 - - - 120,382
Dieproaits o cusemers 2202231 554 576 5305 311,39 1LET® - 3,630,390
Dielsl securilies nneed - 35346 197315 47,340 55,941 - IWEIEE
ey 32706 17313 34T 7,247 4056 4530 150,757
Tatal Eahilitis PRt 1,486,171 1,157,753 J65, 086 63,426 4,590 5,545,554
i TR T (2,256,418} (33,300 551206 THEEE  B4T,I06 556,417 SEAANE
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HNotes to the Conzolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2017
(dmounts in millions gff Revoninkd unless otherwize stated)
58 Financial risk management (contimned)
fe}  Ligridity risk {continned)

The tebles below present the cazh flows o the Growp of finmncial aorets and financial ebilites. The amounts dizclosed n the tabie are the comtracial
whdiscouried cash fow

JT D JOF 7
Eitwiin Barwnim
Repanyabile Withis [LTerp— o Msre than
e chirmand 3 eumither amidne s five peses five e Dt Tl
(et T
Man-derfrative cash Now
EET
Cigth snd babesees with centeal banks FHAE] 5345 T.820 - - 455373 w002
Depaaits with bisks and son-bank lisescial
At 0.3 SLI2E 353 IM4EN
Plesements with &nd losna b banka and non-beslk
Ervieraa] irodenitisem 400 ETIS 2E 0 - - - 131
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
(dmounts in millions gff Revoninkd unless otherwize stated)
58 Financial risk management (contimned)
fe}  Ligridity risk {continned)

3] Dvciraber 3017
Bt Batwinint
Regvairle Within  thres b nid and Mere than
o ahirnand Feorithi amdanewner (e geee fweisans | Dnded Tatal

Liabriities st
Eomwings Fom et ks - 41,083 208,230 - - - 245,313
Dispeetets: o bk arad moes-buk irsmncial
Ealitcdion 240,617 391,400 175,750 3 - - 0,773
Fheazmrnt o lorks ad non-benk G
Ealitadion - E 3,156 - EE] - T
Fimaneil inacts sobd urder repurdiine agreesenty . 122362 13,000 . . - 135371
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For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk {confinued)
Credit Commitments include bank acceptances, credit card commitments, guarantees,

loan commitment and letters of credit. The tables below summarise the amounts of credit
commitments by remaining contractual maturity.

31 December 2017
Lass than 1 year 1-5 yearz Char 3 vears Totai
Bank acceptancess 427 400 71 - 427,561
Credit card commitments 310,315 - - 310,315
Guarantees 113,575 81,171 1,000 195,748
Loan commitments 18,718 24,784 28,858 72360
Letter of credit B6,600 2172 - 88,772
Total 056,608 108,198 20,858 1,004,754
31 Dacamber 2016
Lazs than 1 year 1-J years Over J yaars Total
Bank acceptancess 535,313 - - 535313
Credit card conumitments 215 845 - - 215,845
Guarantess 87,364 74,772 1,021 163,157
Loan commitments 15,172 27835 31,920 74,934
Letter of credit 54,990 1,500 - 86,499
Total 038,803 104,107 32,950 1,075,750
Notes:

(1) For cash and balances with central banks, the undated period amount represented
statutory deposit reserve funds and fiscal deposits maintained with the PBOC.
For placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial institutions. loans
and advances to customers and investments, the undated period amount
represented the balances being impaired or overdue for more than one month
Equity investments were also reported under undated period.

(id) The btalances of loans and advances to customers which were overdue within one
menth but not impaired are included in repayable on demand.

(1) Investments included the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets, and held-to-maturity investments. For

investments, the remaining term to matority did not represent the Group's
intended holding period.
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58 Financial risk management (continned)
(d) Operational risk

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss arising from inappropriate or problematic
internal procedures, persconel, IT systems, or external events, including legal risk, but
excluding strategy risk and reputational risk

The Group manages operational risk through a control-based environment by establishing
a sound mechanizm of operational risk management in order to identify, assess, monitor,
control, mitigate and report operational risks. The framework covers all business
functions ranging from finance, credit, accounting, settlement, savings, treasury,
intermediary business, computer applications and management, special assets resolution
and legal affairs. Key controls include:

- establishing a proup-wide matrix awthorisation mechanism; conducting annual
centralised authorisation; restricting the control of avthorisation limits, for each level
of institution and individoal, to conduct business; further clanfying the requirements
on prohibition to conduct unavthorised business;

- through consistent legal responsibility frameworl:, taking strict disciplinary actions
against non-compliance in order to ensure accountability;

- promoting operational risk management culture throughout the organisation; building
a team of operational risk management professionals. Through formal training and
performance appraisal system in raising risk management awareness;

- strengthening cash and account management in accordance with the relevant policies
and procedures, intensifying the monitoring of suspicious transactions. Ensure the
staff are well-equipped with the necessary knowledge and basic skills on anti-money

-  backup systems and disaster recovery plans covering all the major activities,
especially backoffice operations in order to minimise any unforeseen intermuption.
Insurance cover is arranged to mitigate potential losses associated with certain
dismuptive events.

In addition to the above, the Group improves its operational risk management information
systems on an ongoing basis to efficiently identify, evaluate, monitor, control and report
its level of cperational risk. The Group’s management information system has the
functionalities of recording and capturing lost data and events of operational risk to
further support operational risk control and self-assessment, as well as monitoring of key
risk indicators.
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{Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Capital adegquacy ratio reflects the Group’s operational and risk management capability
and it is the core of capital management. The Group’s capital management objectives are
to meet the legal and regulatory requirements, and to prudently determine the capital
adequacy ratio under realistic exposures with reference to the capital adequacy ratio
levels of leading global banks and the Group’s operating sifuations.

The Group considers its strategic development plans, business expansion plans and risk
variables in conducting its scenario analysis, stress testings and other measures to forecast,
plan and manage capital adequacy ratio.

The Group’s management monitors the Group’s and the Bank's capital adequacy
regularly based on regulations issued by the CBEC. The required information is filed
with the CBRC by the Group and the Bank semi-annually and quarterly, respectively.

From 1 Jamuary 2013, the Group commenced the computation of its capital adequacy
ratios in accordance with the Repulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks
(Provisional) and other relevant regulations promulgated by the CBEC in the year of
2012, The requirements pursuant to these regulations may have certain differences
comparing to those applicable in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions.

Under the Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional), the Bank is
required to meet the mimimum core Tier-One capital adequacy ratio, Tier-One capital
adequacy ratic and capital adequacy ratio of 7.50%, 8.50% and 10.50%, respectively, by
the end of 2018. In addition overseas subsidiaries and branches are directly regulated by
the respective local banking regulators and the requirements of capital adequacy ratios
differ by country. During the year. the Group has complied in full with all its externally
imposed capital requirements.

The capital adeguacy ratios calculated in accordance with Regulation Governing Capital
of Commercial Banks (Provisional). According to the requirements, for credit risk, the
capital requirement was measured using the weighting method. The market risk was
measured by adopting the standardised approach and the operational nisk was measured
by using the basic indicator approach.

177

409/478



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)
oOoOooodn

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

50  Capital Adequacy Ratio {continued)

Relevant requirements promulgated by the CBRC are listed as below.

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Core Tier-One capital adequacy ratio BAbt B.64%
Tier-Ome capital adequacy ratio 9.34% 9.85%
Capital adequacy ratio 11.65% 11 98%
Components of capital basa
Share capital 48,935 48,935
Chalified portion of capital reserve 58977 58,636
Crther comprehensive income (11,785 {1,142}
Sarplns resenve 31,183 17,263
(General reserve 74,251 73911
Fetamed eamings 163,121 136,566
Chalified portion of non-conirolling interests R 48
Total core Tier-Ome capital 368,555 344317
Core Tier-Cme capital deductions:
Goodwill (849 (914)
Crther intangible assets other than land nse right
(met of related deferred tax Hability) (1,130 (B40y
et core Tier-One capital 366,567 342 563
Orther Tier-Ome capital (Mot (1)) 36,811 40,107
Trer-Ome capital 403,378 382,670
Tier-Two capital:
Cualified portion of Tier-Two capital instmuments
issned and share prenyimm 60,842 65368
Surplus allowance for loan impaiment 37,255 26,963
Cmahified portion of non-confrolling interests 1346 7
et capital base 502,821 475,008
Total misk-weighted assets 4,317,502 3,064,448
Note:

(1) As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s other Tier-One capital included preference
shares issued by the Bank (Note 46) and non-controlling interests (Note 52).
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Fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are made as of a specific point
in time based on the characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant market
information. The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the
fair value of financial instroments:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicl assets or liabilities that
the Group can access at the measurement date. This level includes listed equity
securities and debt instruments on exchanges and exchange-traded derivatives.

Level 2: inputs other than gquoted prices included within Level 1 are observable for
assets or liabilities, either divectly or indirectly. A majority of the debt securities
classified as level 2 are Benminbi bonds. The fair values of these bonds are
determined based on the evalvation results provided by China Central
Depository & Clearing Corporate Limited. This level also inclodes a majority
of over-the-counter derivative comtracts, the evalnation method of which
includes Forward Pricing Model, Swap Model and Option Pricing Model. Input
parameters are sourced from the Open market such as Bloomberg wind,
Beuters etc.

Level 3: inputs for assets or liabilities are based on unobservable parameters. This level
includes equity investments and debt instruments with one or more than one
significant uncbservable parameters. Management determine the fair wvaloe
through inquiring from counterparties or using the valuation technigques. The
model incorporate unobservable parameters such as discount rate and market
price volatilities.

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

- If traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions are determined with reference to guoted market bad
prices and ask prices, respectively;

- If mot traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models or discounted
cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions for similar
mnstruments. If there were no available cbservable cumrent market fransactions prices
for similar instruments, quoted prices from counterparty is used for the valuation, and
management performs analysis on these prices. Discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments is used for dervatives
other than options, and option pricing models are used for option derivatives.
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For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Fair value (continued)

The Group has established an independent valuation process for financial assets and
financial labilities. The Financial Market Department, the Financial Institution
Department, and the Investment Bank Department are responsible for the fair valuation of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The Risk Management Department performs an
independent review of the valuation methodologies, inputs, assumptions and valuation
results. The Operations Department records the accounting for these items according to
the result generated from the valuation process and accounting policies. The Finance and
Accounting Department prepares the disclosure of the financial assets and financial
liabilities, based on the independently reviewed valuation.

The Group’s valuation policies and procedures for different types of financial instruments
are approved by the Risk Management Committee. Any change to the valvation policies,
or the related procedures, must be reported to the Risk Management Committee for
approval before they are implemented.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no significant change in the valuation
technigques or inputs used to determine fair value measurements.

Financial assets and financial Habilities net measured at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value of the Group include cash and
balances with central banks deposits with banks and non-bank financial institutions,
placements with and loans to banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial assets
held under resale agreements, loans and advances to customers, held-to-maturity
investments, investments classified as receivables, borrowings from central banks,
deposits from banks and non-bank financial institutions, placements from banks and non-
bank financial institutions, financial assets sold under repurchasze agreements, deposits
from customers and debt securities issued.

Except for the items shown in the tables below, the maturity dates of aforesaid finaneial
assets and liabilities are within a year or are mainly floating interest rates, as a result,
their carrying amounts are approximately equal to their fair value.

Carrying valuas Fair vaiues
31 Decembear 31 Docambar 3] Dogcamber 3] December
2017 2014 2007 2016
Financial assets:
Held-to-matnrity invesiments 216,586 217 408 212,530 219,014
Invesmments classified as receivables 531118 1,035,728 533,668 1,040,380
Financial labilities:
- certificates of deposit
(not for rading purpose) izsned 2849 9403 2,840 0443
- debe securities issued 94,571 31,288 84,131 31,683
- subordinated bonds issued 73,728 76,242 T6,246 78,920
- certificates of mterbank deposit 1ssued 270,096 260,023 265,071 268,664
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60 Fair value (continued)
{a) Financial assets and financial Habilities not measured at fair value {continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities above at fair value hierarchy is as follows:

31 Decembar 2007
Leval 1 Level 2 Laval 3 Total
Financial assefs:
Heald-to-matarity imvestoments BT 211,633 - 212,530
Investments classified as receivables - 92 087 440,702 533,669
Financial liabilities:
Dbt securities issued
- certificates of deposit
(not for rading purpose) issued - 2,849 - 2,840
- debit securities issned - 94131 - 04131
- subordinated bonds issned 5,331 70,715 - 76,246
- certificates of mterbank deposic _ _
" i 265,071 265,071
31 Decamber 2016
Lavel 1 Level 2 Ll 3 Toval
Financial assets:
Held-to-manumity investments 2a1 218,053 - 219,014
Tmvestments classified as receivables - 264,700 775,680 1,040,380
Fimancial labilities:
- certificates of deposit
(oot for trading purpose) issned - 9443 - 0443
- debt serurities issued - 31,683 - 31,683
- subordinated bonds issued B124 70,706 - 78820
- certificates of interbank deposit
issued - 268,664 - 258,664
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60 Fair value (continued)

(b}  Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value

Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Taotal
iVate (Il (NVote (i) {MVare ()
As ar 31 December 2017
Reooming fair value measurements
Aszefs
Fmanrial assets at fir value through
profit or loss
Held for trading financial assets
- debit securities 3,480 35,248 - 38,728
- investment fonds - 2,000 1 2,001
- certificates of interbank deposit 177 19,223 - 19,400
Finanrial assets designed at fair value
throngh profit or loss
- debit securities 198 5,571 - 5,775
- interest rate derivatives - 2,552 1 2,553
- orency derrvatives - 62,030 - 52,030
- precions metals denvatves - 58 - 848
Available-for-sale financial assets
- debit securities 48,906 420,925 12 460 843
- investment fonds 189 119,259 T 110,518
- certificates of deposit 104 40,843 - 40,947
- wealth management products - 24 - 28
- equity investments T44 - - 744
Total financial assets measored
at fair valae 53,798 T08.551 B4 762433
Derivative f il Tighilics
- interest rate derivatives - 1311 1 2,312
- Oumency derivatives - 62,368 - 62,368
- precions meals denvatves - 257 - 257
Total financial liabilities measured
at fair valae - 54,934 1 54,937
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60 Fair value (continued)

(b}  Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value {eontinned)

Lavel 1 Lovel 2 Lovel 3 Tosal
{(Note (h) (Nare (1)) (None )
As at 31 December 2016
Feoummg fair vahie measurements
Assets
Financial assets at f2ir valne through
profit or loss
Held for rading fnancial assets
- debt securities 2047 45,683 - 0.630
- investment finds - - 1 1
- certificates of interbank deposit - 50,600 - 50,600
Financial assets designed at fair value
through profit or loss
- debt securities - 4,581 - 4581
- interast rate derivatives - 3363 2 3365
- currency derivatives - 42232 - 42,232
- precions metals derivatives - 1,768 - 1,760
Available-for-sale fnancial assets
- debt securities 42,080 354452 13 306,545
- investment finds 375 0,270 23 20,737
- certificates of deposit 25 116,025 - 116,050
- wealth management products - Iz - .y
- equity investments 768 - - 768
Total financial assets measared
at fair valoe 46,195 600,105 99 646,300
Liabiliti
Derivative & il lishiliti
- interest rate derivatives - 2811 2 2813
- ourrency derivatves - 40,045 - 40,045
- precious metals derivatives - 2,201 - 2201
Total financial Eabilities measored
at fair valoe - 45 057 2 45 059

Notes:

(f} During the current year, there were no significant transfers amengst Level 1, Level
2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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60 Fair value (continned)
{8) Finamcial assers and financial Hebilities measnred af fair valne (contmued)

Motes: (contimed)
(i} The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value measurements in the
Level 3 fair value hierarchy:
Assets Liaklitics
Trading Fiwancial asnits Derivativ Drtwative
Firamebsd  deatgriad i fie verdud [ Fririctal
ainetr  duoigh peo o o sivets AvanidahToffr-safe fienerel asen Totsl  Babifes Tl
It Dby Irfiresd rai Dabr  [riviatment Eguily Tritéresi rafi
S ety J Mk inatumests dersiaives
As it | Tusvasey 307 1 1 13 el " [ ]
Tootal gaises o hawass
- i pralil or hos - - - -
Fuechear - - - -
Setilementy - i - fi:1] = 1 1
Exechunge edfecl - - m (1] [} -
At 31 Dieeember 2017 1 1 12 T B4 n 1}
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(Amouniz in million: gf Revmrinkr unlezs otherwize stated)
60  Fair value (confinmed)

{8) Finamcial assers and financial Hebilities measnred af fair valne (contmued)

Toies (contimed) :
(i} The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value measurements in the
Level 3 fair value hierarchy (contimied):
Asniis Liabdliies
Trending Firameiad arses Derivative Duerivative
Jmamcial  desigenid af i wafue Sranzial Simcial
i o L dily iy Tawsd Habdlitiiz Tttal
Eveitomint Dby Prifevesd rate Dbt riviatmant Egaity it ki
fands & dertinath L fumls i
Aait | sy 106 1 - 3 n ] z w7 k1] [E3]
Tistal it oo boaess
- i pilil of o - 1 - - 1 4] [y}
Fuschis: - - 1 7 8 - -
Seitlersents - ] - - 23 ) z I
Exxchacge effect - - 1 [3 7 - -
As w31 December 2016 1 2 13 B il il frd]
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Related parties
Relationship of related parties

The Group is controlled by CITIC Corporation Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong), which
owns 65.37% of the Bank's shares. The ultimate parent of the Group is CITIC Group
(incorporated in mainland China).

Related parties of the Group include subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of CITIC
Corporation Limited and CITIC Group. The Bank entered into banking transactions with its
subsidiaries at arm’s length in the ordinary course of business. These transactions age
eliminated on consolidation.

The Bank issued 2,147 469,539 shares to CNTC through private placement on 31 December
2015, representing 4.39% shares of the Bank A non-executive director designated by
CNTC was appointed on 17 March 2016, and the appointment was approved by the CBRC
on 24 June 2016. CNTC is thereafter regarded as the Group’s related party as it has
significant influence upon the Bank.

In February 2015, Xinhm Zhongbao Co., Ltd. acquired 2.292 579,000 H shares of the Bank
through its wholly owned subsidiary, representing 4 68% shares of the Bank A non-
executive director designated by Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd. was appointed on 17 March
2016, and the appointment was approved by the CBRC on 16 November 2016. Xinhu
Zhongbaco Co., Ltd. is thereafter regarded as the Group’s related party, as it has significant
influence upon the Bank. On 29 November 2016, Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd., increased its
shareholding to 2.320,177.000 H shares of the Bank through its wholly owned subsidiary,
representing 4.74% shares of the Bank In October 2017, Xinhn Zhongbao Co., Ltd.
increased its shareholding to 2,446 265,000 H shares of the Bank through its wholly owned
subsidiary, representing 4 999% shares of the Bank.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Related parties {continued)

Related party transactions

oOoOooodn

During the relevant years, the Group entered into fransactions with related parties in the
ordinary course of its banking businesses including lending, assets transfer (ie. issuance of
asset-backed securities in the form of private placement), wealth management, investment,
deposit, settlement and clearing, off-balance sheet transactions, and purchase, sale and leases
of property. These banking transactions were conducted under normal commercial terms
and conditions and priced at the relevant market rates prevailing at the time of each

transaction.
In addition, transactions during the relevant year and the corresponding balances outstanding
at the reporting dates are as follows:
Faar ended 31 Decembar 2017
LTtimate holding compargy Other mgior Arzociates
and qffiliates equity holders  and joint verturess
Norari)
FProfit and loss
Inferest incoms 337 45 -
Fee and commizsion income and
other operating income 1,573 - ]
Interest expense (387) {407y 2n
et trading gain 9 - 1
Fear ended 31 Decembar 2016
LTtimate holding compargy Other mgior Aszociates
and qffiliates aquity holders  and joint verturess
Norari)
Profit and lazs
Interest imcoms 367 13 -
Fee and commission income and
other operating income 1,704 - -
Interest expense (588) (333) -
et rading gain/(loss) &4 (3} a7y
Ohes service fees (B04) - -
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

61 Related parties (continuned)

(b}  Related party transactions {continued)

31 Decemnber 2017
Linmate holding company Cthar maior Aszociates
and qiffitares equily holders el foimT Venires
Nowaji)
Assefs
Gross loans and advances to mustomers. 16,556 B7S -
Less: collectively assessed allowance
for impairment losses {172) (12) -
Loans and advances fo customers (neg) 16,384 563 -
Interest receivables 123 1 -
Deposits with banks and non-bank
finznrial institations - - 7,000
Placements with and loans to banks
and non-bank financial instimtons 418 - -
Dervative financial assets 14 - -
Imvestments 380 - 1,341
Orther assets 10,104 - -
Deposits from banks and non-bank
finznrial institations 16,205 178 266
Placements from banks and non-bank
. ial institati 2,500 _ .
Derivasive f sal Lishiliti 6 _ B
Deposits from costomers 69,004 17,362 75
Interest payahle 107 21 1
Orther liabilities T2 - -
Off-balance sheet items
Guarantees and betters of credit 1970 13 -
Bank acceptances 618 120 -
Entmusted finds TE05 1,500 -
Entmusted loan 2130 G446 -
Funds raised from investors of non-
principle guaranteed wealth.
management products 406 - 450
(Guarantees received T.783 B6T -
INominal amount of derivatives 1.710 - -
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Related parties {continued)

Related party transactions {continued)

31 December 2016
Litimate holding company Cither mgjor Azzociates
e qifiiiates equity holders  and joint ventures
Assets
Gross loans and advances to cnstomers 194346 3,490 -
Less: collectively assessed allowance
for impairment losses (182) (64) -
Loans and advances to customers (net) 19254 5,426 -
Interest receivables 170 5 -
Deposits with banks and non-bank
5 R —— 1 } )
Placements with and loans to banks
and non-bank financisl metntons 543 - -
Derivative financial assets 28 - 19
[ovesmments 63 - 1,111
Dher assets 10,743 - -
Dreposits from banks and noo-bamk
financisl institutions 17038 159 -
Derivative financial lisbilities 40 - 3
Deposits from customers. 74011 12715 G4
Interest payahle 128 395 -
Oriher Liabilites 206 - -
Off-balance sheet items
Guarsntees and letters of credit 257 - -
Bank acceptances EL - -
Entrusted fands B.181 - -
Entrusted loans 150 1,938 -
Funds raised from investors of non-
principle guaranteed wealth
mEnazeEment products 15846 - -
Guarantees received 7,787 200 -
MNiominal amoumt of derrvatives 1,664 - -
Note:

(1) Other major equity holders include BEVA, CNTC and Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd. The
amounts disclosed represented those transactions or balances when they were
considered as related parties of the Group during the relevant periods.

The Group entered into fransactions with CNTC and its subsidiaries at arm’s length in
the ordinary course of business. These bank transactions were conducted under normal
commercial terms. The transactions between the Group and CNTC including its direct
subsidiaries are not significant. The transactions with CNTC’s indirect subsidiaries are
described in Note 61 (e).
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Related parties {continued)

Key management personnel and their close family members and related companies

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors, supervisors and executive officers.

The Group entered into banking transactions with key management personnel and their close
family members and those companies controlled or jointly controlled by them in the normal
course of business. Other than those disclosed below, there was no material transactions and
balances between the Group and these individuals, their close family members or those
companies controlled or jointly controlled by them.

The aggtegate amount of relevant loans outstanding as at 31 December 2017 to directors,
supervisors and executive officers amounted to RME 3. 37 million (as at 31 December 2016:
EMB 8.27 mallion).

The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is shown
below:

oOoOooodn

Teurr ended 31 Tear ended 31

December 2017 December 2016

RME 000 RME 000

Salaries and other emoluments 13485 11475
Discretonaty bomises 20,134 8.120
Fetirement schemes contributions 2 B60 1.981
Teal 36480 21576

Supplementary defined contribution plan

The Group has established a supplementary defined contribution plan for its gualified
employees which is administered by CITIC Group (Note 30(b)).
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

Related parties {continued)

Transactions with state-owned enfities in the PRC

The Group cperates in an economic regime cumrently predominated by entities directly or
indirectly owned by the PRC government through its government authorities, agencies,
affiliations and other organisations (collectively referred to as “state-owned entities™).

Transactions with state-owned entities, including CNTC's indirect subsidiaries and joint
ventures, include but are not limited to the following:

- lending and deposit taking;

- taking and placing of inter-bank balances;

- derivative tramsactions;

- entrusted lending and other custody services;

- insurance and securities agency, and other intermediary services;

- sale, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by state-owned entities;

- purchase, sale and leases of property and other assets; and

- rendering and receiving of utilities and other services.
These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s banking business on
terms similar to those that would have been entered into with non-state-owned entities. The
Group has also established its pricing strategy and approval processes for major products
and services, such as loans, deposits and commission income. The pricing strategy and
approval processes do not depend on whether the customers are state-owned entities or not.

The Directors are of opinion that none of these transactions are material related party
transactions that require separate disclosure.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 December 2017

(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)
62 Structured entities

()} Unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group invests in unconsolidated structored entities which are sponsored and managed by
other entities for investment return and records trading gains or losses and interest income
therefrom.  These unconsolidated structured entities primarily inchide wealth management
products, frust investment plans, investment management products, investment funds and
asset-backed securities.

The following table sets out an analysis of the carrying amounts of interests held by the Group
as at 31 December 2017 in the structured entities sponsored by third party instifutions, as well
as an analysis of the line items in the consclidated statement of financial position wnder which
relevant assets are recognised :

31 Decambar 2017
Miimum
Carrying amount loss exposure
Financial assets Hald-to- Available for Fnestments
it fair value mururity sale ffnancal classiffed as
through profitor loss  meestments assats  recenables Total
Wealth management products
issued by hanks - - 26 139,020 139,044 138,046
Imwestment manazement
products managed by
sequrities conmpanies - - - 168,247 268247 268,247
Trust investment plans - - - 126,704 124,794 126,704
Azzet-backed securities - 34,234 16,877 - 51111 51,111
Inwestment fimds 2001 - 119.518 - 121,519 121,519
Total 2001 34234 136421 534,061 T06,717 T06,717
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(Amounts in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise stated)

61 Structured entities (continued)

fa) Unconsolidated structured entifies held by the Group (confinuead)

31 December 2016
Mo loss
Carrying amount EXPOSNTE
Held-to-  dvailable for Investmenis
mghurity  sale finamcial classified as
INWEsTTEE assets recenabies Total
Wealth management products
issued by banks - 22 458,300 458,412 458 412
Inwestment management
products managed by
seCurities companies - - 452 066 452 966 452 066
Trust investment plans - - 126,128 124,128 126,128
Aszset-backed securities 1,527 0747 - 11,274 11,274
Investment fimds - 20,737 - 20,737 20,737
Total 1,527 30,508 1,037 484 1,060.517 1,068 517

The maximum exposures to risk in the above wealth management products, trust investment
plans, investment management products, investment funds and asset-backed securities
managed by securities companies and trust investment funds are the canying value of the
assets held by the Group at the reporting date. The maximum exposures to risk in the asset-
backed securities are the amortised cost or fair value of the assets held by the Group at the
reporting date in accordance with the line items under which these assets are presented in
the consclidated statement of financial position Analysis of investments classified as
receivables by type of underlying assets 13 set out in Note 38(a)(viii).

193

424/478



62

(b)

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000bDO000DOoOdnoo(es9d)

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

Structured entities (continued)

Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group

Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly include
non-principal guaranteed wealth management products. The wealth management
products invest in a range of primarily fized-rate assets, most typically money market
instruments, debt securities and loan assets. As the manager of these wealth
management products, the Group invests, on behalf of its customers, in assets as
described in the investment plan related to each wealth management product and
receives fee and commission income.

As at 31 December 2017, the total assets invested by these outstanding non-principal
guaranteed wealth management products issued by the Group amounted to
EMBEB 1,132,676 mullion (31 December 2016: EMB 956,504 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s interest in these wealth
management products included fee and commission income of EMB 5,536 million
{2016: EME 7,032 million); interest income of EMB 2,258 million 2016: RMB 1,813
milliocn) and interest expense of RMB 1,613 millicn (2016: RME 1,013 million).
As at 31 December 2017, the camying amounts of the Group’s fee and commission
receivables and interest receivables being recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position was EMB 963 million (31 December 2016: EMB 949 million).
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

Structured entities (continued)
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored by the Group {confinued)

As at 31 December 2017, the placements and financial assets held under resale
agreements from the Grouwp with these wealth management products sponscred by the
Group amounted to RMB 70,488 million (31 December 2016: RMB 62,000 million),
while the placements from these wealth management products to the Group amounted
to RMB 235,901 million (31 December 2016: EMB 20,000 million). During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the amount of maximum exposure of the placements and
financial assets held under resale agreements from the Group with these wealth
management products sponsored by the Group was EME 72,372 million (31 December
2016: EMB 57,401 million), and the amount of maximum exposure of the placements
from these wealth management products to the Group was REMB 44233 million (31
December 2016: RMB 20,000 million). These transactions were conducted under
normal business terms and conditions.

As at 31 December 2017, assets of these wealth management products amounting to
EMB 202,167 million (31 December 2016: FMB 205,416 million) were invested in
investments in which certain subsidiaries and associates of the CITIC Group acted as
trustees.

Principal guaranteed wealth management products sponsored and managed by the
Group

Principal guaranteed wealth management products sponsored and managed by the
Group represent products to which the Group has guaranteed the investot’s prinecipal
investment, regardless of their actoal performance. Investments made by these products
and the comresponding liabilities to the investors of these products are presented in the
respective financial assets and financial hiabilities items in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies based on the nature of the assets and hiabilities.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

Transfers of financial assets

The Group entered into transactions which invelved transfers of financial assets
including securitisation transactions, transfers of loans including non-performing loans,
and financial assets sold under repurchase agreements.

These transactions were entered into in the normal course of business by which
recopnised financial assets were transferred to third parties or structured entities
Transfers of assets may give rise to full or partial de-recognition of the financial assets
concerned. On the other hand where transferred assets do not qualify for de-
recognition as the Group has retained substamtially all the risks and rewards of these
assets, the Group confinues to recognise the transferred assets.

Details of the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements are set forth in Note 37.
Details of securitisation and loan transfer transactions conducted by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 totally RMB 175 601 million (year ended 31 December
2016: RMB 146 446 million) are set forth below.

Securitization fransactions

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered into securitisation
transactions backed by financial assets transferred with book value before impairment
of EMB 127,271 million (yeared ended 31 December 2016: BMB 76,475 million). of
which EMB 126,406 millicn (yeared ended 31 December 2016: EMB 71,976 million)
were qualified for full de-recognition. The balance of RMB 865 million (as at 31
December 2016: EMB 4499 mullion) was in respect of non-performing loans
transferred and the Group concluded that it had continming involvement in these assets
as at 31 December 2017 based on the related criteria set forth in Note 4(c) and Note
5(iv). As at 31 December 2017, the Group continued to recognise assets of RMB 769
million (as at 31 December 2016: BEMB 690 million) under loans and advances to
customers together with assets and liabilities of the same amount under other assets and
other liabilities, respectively, arising from such continuing involvement (Note 23(c)).

Loan fransfers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group also through other types of
transactions transferred loans of book value before impairment of EMB 48330 millicn
(veared ended 31 December 2016: RMB 69,971 million), of which EME 38,733 million
represented non-performing loans (veared ended 31 December 2016: RMB 54,023
million). The Group camried out assessment based on the criteria as detailed in Note 4(c)
and MNote 5(iv) and concluded that these transferred assets qualified for full de-
recognition (Note 23(c)).
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and finaneial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consclidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

As at 31 December 2017, the amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities

subject to enforceable master metting arranpements or similar apreements are not
material to the Group.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank

Statement of financial pesition

31 Decambar 2017 3 Decambar 2014
Aszets
Cash and balances with ceniral banks 564,105 550,987
Deeposits with banks and non-bank financial institations 102,139 187,080
Precious metals. 3348 33m
Placements with smd lnans to banks and non-bank financial instimtions 148,511 182,708
Finsmrial assets at fair vahoe through profit or loss 599756 3,590
Drerivative Bnancisl assess 61,795 43,546
Finanrial assets held under resale agreements 54626 170,804
Interest receivables 3674 32,081
Loans and advances to customers 2 BR4G 585 2,592 552
Available-for-sale financial assets 579,623 479,591
Helid-to-matarity imvestments 216,586 217,498
Investments classified as receivables 531118 1,030,058
Invesmients in subsidiaries and joint ventores 23445 22249
Property, plant snd equipment 20594 17,166
Intangible assets 1,135 838
Dieferred tax assets 21605 12 589
Oither assets 51249 52,703
Total assets 5359114 5639 413
Liahiliti
Borrowings from central banks 237500 184,000
Dreposits from banks and non-bank financisl mstinrtions 799,259 981324
Placements from banks and non-bank financial instimtions 34,088 50,042
Dierivative financial lisbilities 1,236 41478
Finamcial assets sold under repurchase sgreements 134,384 120,342
Dreposits from customers 3,181,070 3,429,060
Awccraed staff costs 8.024 8042
Taxes payahile 8,153 6,050
Interest payable 38395 36447
Provisions 304 244
Drebit securities issued 430,175 369,829
Orther liabilities 38,533 43,831
Total linbilities 4871212 5.270,711
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

Statements of financial position and changes in equity of the Bank (continued)

Statement of financial posifion (continned)

31 Decembar 2017 31 December 2016
Equity
Share capital 48935 48,035
Preference shares 34955 34,955
Capital reserve §1.359 61,350
Crther comprehensive mcome (D, 782) (1,737
Surplus reserve 31183 17,263
General reserve 73370 73,370
Femined eamings 147982 124,557
Total equity 388,002 368, 02
Total liabilities and equity 5359214 5639413
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65  Statements of financial pesition and changes in equity of the Bank (continmed)

Sratement af changes i equity
Othir
Share Frofram Copiral  camprihariivg Swrplis  eneral Rassined
capita] ahries TV ol L i | duesngr Tl aguity
Aaal 1 Jasuary 2017 42935 M55 51,35 (1,737) 6 T30 124,557 358,702
i Met et - - - - 106 33106
TH) O coppprehefmive
BoGEe - - - ﬂ - - - EEE
Tedid cienpeeh [ - - - (£,045) - - 3105 31,151
i) Pratlit spqeopriations
- Apprape ks 1o
aLEp e - - - 3,90 - 3520 -
Dhwilend
By sy
akarchaiden of the
brark - - - - - - (Im520 (10,521
- Dowidend deatilration
I piefeenes
abarchalders of the
sk - - - . - - {1330 (1330

Ad el 3] Dezember 117 43935 555 1355 (5, 722 31,153 AN LTS8 36300
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Statements of financial pesifion and changes in equity of the Bank (contimued)

Sratement of changes in equity (contimued)

Ovhar
Share  Proferinsd Capial ok Surplis Temiral Retsiviad
capial share e iriconns e ] e g Tk ity
Al | iy 2016 45035 - 1,350 4,790 T3363 64,350 HIE 4T 311,633
) Poafit By e yeu - - £ 30000
(il Dter copprchssive insome - (6.52T) - 6,527}
Total canprebemeve mome - (52T ke ) 32483
i) Procsed e boasios of preferance dhins - 355 - - - 34955
(w7 Profil appropr o
- Appitpiiaioes i supls reasve - - - - 3sol - (3500
- Appropristioes i generel feserve - - - - - om0 (9,000
- Diiwidbesd distribution o equity
Teriklers of the bani - - - - (10,374) [H0L3T4)
Al 3] Desmber 2006 48,935 34,955 1,350 (LT3Ti 27353 I 124,557 3B W
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Motes to the Consohdated Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(dmounts in millions gff Revoninkd unless otherwise stated)

Benefits and interests of directors and smpervisors
Direcéors and supervisors” emoluments
The remuneration of the Bapk's director and superviser is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

Fmckamants peid or receivabie i raguct of rericar o divacior o siparsivor of S Sroug. Emofumeair pald o
& L B ot
T JRS U R S——
T — [ —— [FON— ke servicas in
md ke conribmiion o e ar commRntion wis e
(Mreredonary Foanieg v il rT— dArecror ond | monageeen of te gfeL
Mams Fawr  Selery  boowss  alowancs  potewill it achems J—— o — Tosed
000 R D RO U Sl UK Hokall el AR N o O Jabdy wan
B
o 0 112 - 31l 733 - - 1996
Hen-smcuiive dreciers
o1 Clacaring - - - - - -
lears bos - - - - - -
Wan Liniag. - - - - - -
LN T - - - - - -
Indrpanctmi o en sxeomee
diracinry
Wo Maoging i - - - - - -
Worg Lem Chany Aadiw 30 - - - - - -
e Can 0 - - - - - -
e Lina 0 - - - - - -
Gim ko w0 . . . .
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Motes to the Consohdated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(dmounts in millions gff Revoninkd unless otherwise stated)

66  Benefits and interests of directors and supervisers (continwed)
(@) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (contmued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: (contimaed)

Bmcdvmeny poid o recaivabds marviver ar divecior o e
i podd ar

paid or recaivaly  diveciar ar ngparvisor s

Allzeavens Emplovar's [ep— [ —
and iy asribton i anosping offior ar sanmndion widh she
Dtrorstionan Mg i J— drecioe and memagemen 3 he gias
Hama P bomum silrezms rohems e 3ihs s Tl
Fhd el WA RMDO oo el Ve e [ FoaEed el ond
Aeprrisr
Can Ouagang "0 ] = H 151
warg Nickorg 00 - - - o
Frp— 00 - - - E
Therg Wei 00 - - - - o
Chag Ik 10 241 241 131
Chan Purses a0 Y i H Erits
oy Yefing 130 134 i ] 380
- . . -
Formar Directarsamd Sapsreimrn
——t
[ r— - - - - - -
e Shayirg - 1 wH - Y ] 1802
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Motes to the Consohdated Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(dmounts in millions gff Revoninkd unless otherwise stated)

Benefits and interests of directors and smpervisors (contimmed)
Directors and supervizers’ emoluments (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 20146
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
Motes to the Consohdated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
(dmounts in millions gff Revoninkd unless otherwise stated)

66  Benefits and interests of directors and smpervisors (contimmed)
fa) Directors and supervisers’ emoluments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 20146 (continued)
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

66 Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (continued)

{a) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments {continned)

Notes:

(1) Mirs. Li Qingping, Mr. Zhu Gaoming and Mr. Chang Zhenming did not receive
any emoluments from the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
Their emoluments were paid and borne by CITIC Limited and CITIC Group, an
intermediary parent company and the ultimately parent company, respectively, of
the Group which were not disclosed in the table above. A portion of their
emoluments received from the parent companies were in respect of their services
to the Group.

(i) Mr. Zhang Xiacwei resigned in August, 2016.

(1) Ms. Li Zheping and Mr. Yuanming resigned in June, 2016

(iv) Allowances and benifits in kind includes housing provident funds, social
insurance such as medical insurance, as well as other allowances and benefits
kind.
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China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31 December 2017
{Amounis in millions of Renminbi unless otherwise sfated)

Benefits and interests of directors and supervisors (continued)
Other benefits and interests

No direct or indirect retirement benefits and termination benefits were paid to directors
as at 31 December 2017 (as at December 2016: Nil).

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the balance of loans and
advances from the Group to Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body
corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors was not significant.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the vear or
at any time during the year 2017 (2016: Nil).

Events after the reporting period

On 26 March 2018, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend and capital injection
to Baixin and submited them to the ordinary shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

for approval.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of Chinawith Limited Liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 160 to 276, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure regquirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (*HKSAS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (*HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and investments classified as receivables
Consolidation of structured entities ~ Non-principal guaranteed wealth management products
De-recognition of financial assets
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and investments classified as receivables

Loans and advances to customers Loans and advances to customers

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5 and Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s loans and advances |We evaluated and tested the design and operating

to customers amounted to RMB 2,877.9 billion, and the effectiveness of the relevant controls over the impairment
corresponding allowance for impairment losseswas RMB | assessments and impairment allowance computations for
75.5 billion. loans and advances to customers, including review and
approval of results of credit reviews on impaired loans, the
Allowance for impairment |osses represented management’ | periodic revaluations of collateral, the estimation of future

s best estimates of losses incurred within loans and cash flows for impaired |oans, and the collective impairment
advances to customers as at the balance sheet date. The computations (including the selection and changes of
allowance was computed individually or on acollective models, data inputs and key assumptions and changes

basis, where appropriate. thereof used in the computations).

We performed independent credit reviews of selected

Corporate |oans were initially assessed for impairment samples, considering the credit profiles of the related
individually by management. If objective evidence of borrowers, guarantors and the collateral, as well as externa
impairment was identified, management regularly assesses evidence and factors, to ascertain whether management’s
the amount and timing of the expected future cash flows ~ |identification of impaired loans was appropriate.

from the loans to cal cul ate the allowance for impairment
losses, which was the difference between the carrying

amount of the loans and the present value of their expected |&Sample basis, datainputs to the discounted cash flow
future cash flows. models, including the cash flow status of the borrowers and

guarantors, latest collateral valuations, applicable haircut
rates and disposal plans, in supporting the estimation of
future cash flows and present value.

For impaired loans identified individually, we examined, on
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Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Non-impaired corporate loans and all personal |oans were
included in homogeneous groups with similar credit risk
characteristics for performance of impairment assessments
on acollective basis. Models were used for this purpose,
considering the similarity of credit risks and applying key
assumptions such as, historical loss experience, loss
identification period for incurred but unidentified
impairment losses, macro-economic factors, and special
considerations for high risk products and geographical
locations in the calculation methodology. M anagement
assessed these key assumptions on a periodic basis, and
made adjustments where deemed appropriate.

Investments classified as receivables

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5 and Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2016, the Group’s investments
classified as receivables (“Investments’) amounted to RMB
1,037.5 hillion, and the corresponding allowance for
impairment losseswas RMB 1.8 billion.

For those |oans and advances to customers which were
assessed by management on a collective basis for
impairment losses, we conducted independent testing on the
appropriateness of the design and logic of the models
employed by management. We tested the migration model
for corporate loans and the roll rate models for personal
loans, respectively, including completeness of the source
data, appropriateness of the key assumptions, and
mathematical accuracy of the calculations.

We discussed with management and scrutinized the
appropriateness of those key assumptions applied in
management’ s impairment assessment, and compared them
with available external evidence where necessary. We aso
applied sensitivities to underlying key assumptions.

Investments classified as receivables

L oans and advances to customers and Investments relating
to the same borrower were included in the Group’s
integrated credit approval and management system so that
management managed its credit risk exposure in a holistic
manner.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets, the
testing of relevant controls over impairment identification
and assessments of these Investments was covered through
our testing of internal controls over loans and advances to
customers mentioned above.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
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Management focused on and assessed the Investments with
credit-type underlying assets individually for impairment.
Underlying assets not identified asimpaired from the
individual assessments were included in homogenous
groups with similar credit risk characteristics, considering
risk factors relating to different industries and different
types of underlying assets, and were assessed for
impairment on a collective basis.

I dentification and assessment of impairment of loans and
advances to customers and Investments involved complex
and significant judgments by management, and, as such, we
focused on this area as a key audit matter.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets where the
underlying assets related to borrowers who also had
outstanding balances of loans and advances with the Group,
we applied a consistent approach, to selection of samples
and conducting credit reviews. For borrowers with no
outstanding balances of loans and advances to customers
with the Group, we separately selected samples and
performed procedures on them to ascertain whether there
was objective evidence of impairment for the underlying
assets.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets, that
were not identified asimpaired from individual assessments,
we evaluated the appropriateness of the Investments
alowance for impairment losses based on the credit risk
characteristics of the underlying assets, and by reference to
the level of the Group’s collective impairment allowance for
its corporate |oans and advances to customers with similar
credit risk characteristics.

Based on the procedures performed above, in the context of
the inherent uncertainties associated with impairment
assessments, the assessment approaches, methodol ogies and
key assumptions adopted by management were considered
acceptable.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities  Non-principal Guaranteed Weath Management Products

Refer to Note 4(a), Note 5 and Note 62 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, unconsolidated structured entities |\ye evaluated and tested the design and operating

included non-principal guaranteed wealth management effectiveness of management's relevant controls over the
products (“WMPs") issued and managed by the Group. consolidation of structured entities for non-principal
guaranteed WMPs. These controls primarily included the
Management's decision on whether or not to consolidate | review and approval of the contractual terms, the resultsin
structured entities was based on an assessment of the Group | yariaple return calculations, and the consolidation

'S power, its variable returns and the ability to exercise its | asgeasment conclusions for these structured entities.
power to influence the variable returns from these
structured entities. We selected samples of structured entities for non-principal

guaranteed WM Ps and performed the following tests:
We focused on the consolidation assessment and judgment

made by management involving the structures entities for assessed the Group's contractual rights and obligations
non-principal guaranteed WMPs during our audit as in light of the transaction structures, and evaluated the
whether or not to consolidate these entities involved Group's power over the structured entities;

significant judgment. performed independent analysis and tests on the variable

returns from the structured entities, including but not
limited to commission income and asset management
fees earned, retention of residual income, and, if any,
liquidity and other support provided to the structured
entities;

assessed whether the Group acted as aprincipal or an
agent through analysis of the scope of the Group’s
decision-making authority, its remuneration entitlement,
other interests the Group held, and the rights held by
other parties.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
management’ s judgment relating to the consideration of
structured entities for non-principal guaranteed WMPs
acceptable.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

De-recognition of Financial Assets
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Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5 and Note 63 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into transactions which involved transfers of
financial assets including those through securitisation and
loan transfers.

Management analysed the Group’s contractual rights and
obligations in connection with such transfers, and assessed
the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of
ownership were transferred by using models to determine
whether the de-recognition criteriawere met. Where
necessary, the Group assessed whether it had relinquished
its control over the transferred financial assets to determine
whether the de-recognition criteria were met.

The de-recognition assessment relating to the transfer of
financial assetsinvolved significant judgment from
management, and as such, we focused our audit on the de-
recognition of these financial assets.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls over transfers of
financial assets, including the review and approval of the
structure designs and contractual terms of the transactions,
the approval of models for testing the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership and the key parameters and
assumptions used in the models, aswell asthe review and
approval of management’ s assessment results.

We selected samples and read through transaction
agreements to assess the contractual rights and obligations of
the Group, and whether the Group transferred the rights to
receive contractual cash flows from the financial assets or
the transfer qualified for the “ pass through” of those cash
flows, to independent third parties.

We also assessed the appropriateness of the models, the
parameters and assumptions, the discount rates, and the
variability factors. We also tested the mathematical
accuracy of the calculations.

For financial assets where the Group neither retained nor
transferred substantialy all of the risks and rewards
associated with their ownership, we analysed whether the
Group had relinquished its controls over these financial
assets, and if the Group had a continuing involvement in
these transferred financial assets.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
management’ s assessment over de-recognition of transferred
financial assets acceptable.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for ng the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsas a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HK SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. |f
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financia statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ho Shuk Ching,
Margarita.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
(incorporated in the People’ s Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 1 to 191, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for

the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarised as follows:
Impairment of loans and advances to customers and investments classified as receivables

Consolidation of structured entities  Non-principal guaranteed wealth management products

De-recognition of financial assets
Disclosure of the possible impact of IFRS 9 implementation
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and investments classified as receivables

L oans and advances to customers

Refer to Note 4 (c), Note 5 and Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group's loans
and advances to customers amounted to RMB
3,196.89 hillion, and the corresponding
allowance for impairment losses was RMB
90.90 hillion.

Allowance for impairment losses represented
management’ s best estimates of losses
incurred within loans and advances to
customers as at the balance sheet date. The
allowance was computed individually or on a
collective basis, where appropriate.

Corporate loans were initially assessed for
impairment individually by management. If
objective evidence of impairment was
identified, management regularly assesses the
amount and timing of the expected future cash
flows from the loans to calculate the
allowance for impairment losses, which was
the difference between the carrying amount of
the loans and the present value of their
expected future cash flows.

L oans and advances to customers

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls over the
impairment assessments and impairment allowance
computations for |oans and advances to customers,
including review and approval of results of credit
reviews on impaired loans, the periodic revaluations
of collateral, the estimation of future cash flows for
impaired loans, and the collective impairment
computations (including the selection and changes of
models, data inputs and key assumptions and
changes thereof used in the computations).

We performed independent credit reviews of
selected samples, considering the credit profiles of
the related borrowers, guarantors and the collateral,
aswell as externa evidence and factors, to ascertain
whether management’ s identification of impaired
loans was appropriate.

For impaired loans identified individually, we
examined, on a sample basis, datainputs to the
discounted cash flow models, including the cash
flow status of the borrowers and guarantors, latest
collateral valuations, applicable haircut rates and
disposal plans, in supporting the estimation of future
cash flows and present value.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and investments classified as receivabl es(continued)

Non-impaired corporate loans and all personal
loans were included in homogeneous groups
with similar credit risk characteristics for
performance of impairment assessmentson a
collective basis. Models were used for this
purpose, considering the similarity of credit
risks and applying key assumptions such as,
historical loss experience, loss identification
period for incurred but unidentified
impairment |osses, macro-economic factors,
and special considerations for high risk
products and geographical locationsin the
calculation methodology. Management
assessed these key assumptions on a periodic
basi s, and made adjustments where deemed
appropriate.

Investments classified as receivables

Refer to Note 4 (c), Note 5 and Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group’s
investments classified as receivables
(“Investments’) amounted to RMB 534.06
billion,and the corresponding allowance for
impairment losses was RMB 2.94 hillion.

For those |oans and advances to customers which were
assessed by management on a collective basis for impairment
losses, we conducted independent testing on the
appropriateness of the design and logic of the models
employed by management. We tested the migration model for
corporate loans and the roll rate models for personal loans,
respectively, including completeness of the source data,
appropriateness of the key assumptions, and mathematical
accuracy of the calculations.

We discussed with management and scrutinized the
appropriateness of those key assumptions applied in
management’ s impairment assessment, and compared them
with available external evidence where necessary. We also
applied sensitivities to underlying key assumptions.

Investments classified as receivables

Loans and advances to customers and Investments relating to
the same borrower were included in the Group’s integrated
credit approval and management system so that management
managed its credit risk exposure in a holistic manner.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets, the testing
of relevant controls over impairment identification and
assessments of these Investments was covered through our
testing of internal controls over loans and advances to
customers mentioned above.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers and investments classified as receivabl es(continued)

Management focused on and assessed the
Investments with credit-type underlying assets
individually for impairment. Underlying
assets not identified asimpaired from the
individual assessments were included in
homogenous groups with similar credit risk
characteristics, considering risk factors
relating to different industries and different
types of underlying assets, and were assessed
for impairment on acollective basis.

| dentification and assessment of impairment
of loans and advances to customers and
Investments involved complex and significant
judgments by management, and, as such, we
focused on this area as a key audit matter.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets where the
underlying assets related to borrowers who also had
outstanding balances of loans and advances with the Group,
we applied a consistent approach, to selection of samples and
conducting credit reviews. For borrowers with no outstanding
balances of loans and advances to customers with the Group,
we separately selected samples and performed procedures on
them to ascertain whether there was objective evidence of
impairment for the underlying assets.

For Investments with credit-type underlying assets, that were
not identified as impaired from individual assessments, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the Investments allowance
for impairment losses based on the credit risk characteristics
of the underlying assets, and by reference to the level of the
Group's collective impairment allowance for its corporate
loans and advances to customers with similar credit risk
characteristics.

Based on the procedures performed above, in the context of
the inherent uncertainties associated with impairment
assessments, the assessment approaches, methodol ogies and
key assumptions adopted by management were considered
acceptable.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities  Non-principal Guaranteed Wealth Management Products

Refer to Note 4(a), Note 5 and
Note 62 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Asat 31 December 2017, unconsolidated
structured entities included non-principal
guaranteed wealth management products
(“WMPs") issued and managed by the
Group.

Management’s decision on whether or not to
consolidate structured entities was based on
an assessment of the Group’s power, its
variable returns and the ability to exercise its
power to influence the variable returns from
these structured entities.

We focused on the consolidation assessment
and judgment made by management
involving the structures entities for non-
principal guaranteed WM Ps during our audit
as whether or not to consolidate these entities
involved significant judgment.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating effectiveness
of management’s relevant controls over the consolidation of
structured entities for non-principal guaranteed WMPs. These
controls primarily included the review and approval of the
contractual terms, the resultsin variable return calculations, and
the consolidation assessment conclusions for these structured
entities.

We selected samples of structured entities for non- principal
guaranteed WM Ps and performed the following tests:

assessed the Group' s contractual rights and obligationsin
light of the transaction structures, and evaluated the Group's
power over the structured entities;

performed independent analysis and tests on the variable
returns from the structured entities, including but not limited
to commission income and asset management fees earned,
retention of residual income, and, if any, liquidity and other
support provided to the structured entities;

assessed whether the Group acted as a principal or an agent
through analysis of the scope of the Group’s decision-
making authority, its remuneration entitlement, other
interests the Group held, and the rights held by other parties.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
management’ s judgment relating to the consideration of
structured entities for non-principa guaranteed WMPs
acceptable.
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De-recognition of Financial Assets
Refer to Note 4(c), Note 5 and

Note 63 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group entered into transactions which

involved transfers of financial assetsincluding
those through securitisation and loan transfers.

Management analysed the Group's contractual
rights and obligations in connection with such
transfers, and assessed the extent to which the
associated risks and rewards of ownership
were transferred by using models to determine
whether the de- recognition criteria were met.
Where necessary, the Group assessed whether
it had relinquished its control over the
transferred financial assets to determine
whether the de- recognition criteria were met.

The de-recognition assessment relating to the
transfer of financial assetsinvolved significant
judgment from management, and as such, we
focused our audit on the de- recognition of
these financial assets.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the relevant controls over transfers of
financial assets, including the review and approval of
the structure designs and contractual terms of the
transactions, the approval of models for testing the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the
key parameters and assumptions used in the models,
aswell asthereview and approval of management’s
assessment results.

We selected samples and read through transaction
agreements to assess the contractual rights and
obligations of the Group, and whether the Group
transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows
from the financial assets or the transfer qualified for
the “pass through” of those cash flows, to
independent third parties.

We also assessed the appropriateness of the models,
the parameters and assumptions, the discount rates,
and the variability factors. We also tested the
mathematical accuracy of the calculations.

For financial assets where the Group neither retained
nor transferred substantially all of the risks and
rewards associated with their ownership, we analysed
whether the Group had relinquished its controls over
these financial assets, and if the Group had a
continuing involvement in these transferred financial
assets.

Based on the procedures performed above, we found

management’ s assessment over de- recognition of
transferred financial assets acceptable.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Disclosure of the possible impact of IFRS 9 implementation

Refer to Note 3(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 9 involves three major changes:
classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting.

In addition, according to International
Accounting Standard 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors, for those IFRSs which are issued
but not yet effective, entities should disclose
the possible impact whether it is known or
can be reasonably estimated. Therefore, the
Group disclosed the possible impact, whether
it is known or can be reasonably estimated, of
the IFRS 9 implementation in the notes to the
financial statements for the year 2017.

Estimation of the impact on equity
attributable to ordinary equity holders for
IFRS 9 implementation is a highly complex
process, which involves significant
management’ s judgment. Hence, we focused
on this area as akey audit matter.

Other Information

We obtained management’ s judgement and logic on
classification under IFRS 9 and its result, checked the
consistency of the classification against the relevant
requirements of IFRS 9, and assessed the accuracy of the
classification;

We obtained management’s valuation method and results of
parameters selection for financial products measured at fair
value, and assessed the reasonableness of the valuation method
and parameters selected with the involvement of our valuation
specidlists;

For Expected Credit Losses (“ECL") under IFRS 9 estimated by
management, we performed the following procedures:

Obtained an understanding of methodology for ECL model,
development processes and its relevant controls, through
review of documentation and discussion with management
and credit modelling speciaists. With the involvement of
our modelling specialists, we assessed the reasonabl eness of
assumptions and judgement made by management on model
adoption and parameters selection;

Examined the key data inputsto the ECL model on a
sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness.

We obtained an understanding of the key processes related to
information disclosure, and inspected the management’ s
approval documents on the information disclosure related to
change in accounting policies.

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’ s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
arerequired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsihility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but isnot a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group
's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuresin the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

467/478



EDINETOIOOD
00000000000000000000dgoddddao(es9gd)
oooooog

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin interna control that we identify during
our audit.

We al so provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Chan Kwong Tak.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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